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VISION B =

Making an impactful contribution
to build a sustainable and
environmentally friendly world.
RABEERBEBAER £BRIRR
RERH R -

MISSION &7

To be a global market leader in resources recycling and
environmental protection, earning a quality return to
shareholders through the provision of quality products and
services, by a group of motivated and diversified staff force.

BfisAzanERBeR‘EEBEER KRS BOIKS
ERBEERERBERITENMSEEE L HBRRER
BR[O -

CULTURE 321k

We are committed to building a long-term and win-win I fIERERF 6 FEHEE 2T & 52
partnership with our customers including suppliers. SRR R K -

We provide a safe workplace and career development FHfIER A8 TIRELZE2H TFRE
opportunities for our employees. MEEEEMOEE -

We are devoted to achieving a quality, stable and HKMERABRERESAE BT M
continuous return for our shareholders. FF AR 3 o

We meet our corporate social responsibility, making FHMIERGCEMLSEE BiLEEL
continuous contributions to social well-being and  RIRIZ(RETEEL EHf o
environmental protection.
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A Snapshot of CEG in 2019
“TE-NFESRRERRE

We are one of the largest metal recyclers
globally, and the only listed metal recycling
corporation with major operation bases

ABOUT CEG across three continents (Asia, Europe and

ﬁa ﬁs\@% I§1% North America) in the world.
BMAREMEANEEBERKRE 2 — TE22HRE
——REBEEEMEMD - BIRIEEZ=MNH
thBEEBiZ-

HONG KONG

E‘;ﬁ ©Group headquarters
EEEE

©0ne of the few operators in Hong Kong
that recycles material within a closed-loop
system
EERBATZ e —EFARA RS EIIK
WA ESRE 2 —

©The first private company to obtain the Licence
to Dispose of Waste in Hong Kong for waste
electrical and electronic equipment processing
ERE—RLECEXREREYEE MR IAGIERE
ERETEM

© Largest privately owned and most diversified and
comprehensive e-waste recycling centre in Hong
Kong
EEZEASEERETEENLEETEY
(] 2 Ay
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Taizhou production site
AMEEREM

©Engaged in aluminium ingot and copper rod foundry ‘
business

= tnde MR EER

€ A major metal importer and domestic metal trader

TESBEOBLEASBE SR

Yantai production sites

EeEELEN

© Metal recycling operation: mainly engaged in domestic
metal trading

CEBEWEY TR2NESBES

€ Waste-lubricant oil recycling operation: purification,
distillation and addition of lubricant additives to produce
lubricant base oil for lubricant oil production plants

BEm B SRS 5L - B IUE R RAR A - A& EE
Ve A S R AE E DB R EE R Ve

— GERMANY

/
=
Y & Operates 80 yards, including joint ventures, covering
\‘\\ South-West, Central and Eastern Germany
BEOEL S (BEASLR) BEGEAERS +HR
) R B
\ © Strongest region of operation in Scholz Group

B = 81 0 e 8 ) AR 42 1t [

© Covering full scope of collection, sorting and processing
with all types of equipment including the most advanced
post-shredder material recovery technology

RiBEE (BEKRLENHRYH BRI RE2EH
Wi - D8RR ER IR AR

Technical Equipment, excluding joint ventures
Bii®E (TREeERE)

Shredder ¥ HEH# - 5
Shears B7 4] #% : >15
Employees £ & : >1,400

BEABREEERAT —B-hEFEH 3



A Snapshot of CEG in 2019
TE-NFEESRREZRE

d b & 7 yards, including joint ventures, in operation
BEVELIS (BEEERE)

© 100% subsidiary and joint venture in Buffalo and Rochester

RRFEBEBRNIB 2 2EFRAIRAEERE

| € Business model includes brokerage and yard business
(including feeder yards)
EBEAEEIRISER (BIEHES)

B PO 738 2 % B T 353 3 2 2R 2

Technical Equipment £ 1i7 2% 45

Shredder $F# - 3
Shears 37404 : 1
Employees & 8 : >240

POLAND
B B

& Operates 5 yards covering central and southern Poland,
the most industrialised and scrap rich areas
2ESETLS BERRIECEESESAEREYRS
B 3B K2 m BB

’;\I.‘i © Operations covering full scope of collection, sorting

and processmg with all types of equipment
/ SRE2 SERERERENNE HERERRE
i Technical Equipment 17 =& #5

[ Shears BT ) #% : 2
Employees € & : >130

& Operates 16 yards
EiE16/ET5

© Market leader for ferrous scrap trading in Austria
B EEHEeBEEN LRSS

& Joint venture with steel mill Voestalpine Group

| R EER TS SRR

© Sourcing subsidiary in Hungary

LA 8 5F R ) 5REE T 2 A

& Strong track record in project business (e.g. power
plant dismantling)
HE % (Pl ERIFR) X R HR

Technical Equipment F /7 3%

Shredder $3HE# : 2
£ ER =< ; ' ; Shears 87 # : 5
-9 Employees & & : >300

\ - ,.
\ /

#
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4, ASnapshot of CEG in 2019
A S NEECREREBZRE

oo - ) e—
L —_

© 61 yards mainly situated in northern Bohemia and Prague area

- CZECH REPUBLIC 38 £ B IR K DAL B R AT R 0 B 061 18 T 95 |

Eﬁ;t*u € 100% subsidiary . .
2ETRA '\b{f:_::____.a—-'

© Joint venture with steel mill Voestalpine Group -

Ha] MR B S SR B LB Voo
& A very strong market share in ferrous market (covering both old

scrap and new scrap market)

REESBMS OREEREH RFERTS) TG Tish B h A
© Business model is comparable with Germany with a dense yard

network including a large number of feeder yards and several ‘

processing yards -_— 7
BEFEENERESX RIS MEE  BRZEENSRS "\\
.

& L%

L ¥,

Technical Equipment #2117 3% &

Shredder e : 2 ol
Shears 87 ) # - 6 —
Employees €& : >370

& Operates 18 yards
EE18ETH

€ 100% subsidiary
2EF A

& Strong non-ferrous operations
BEesRBEKTR

&€ Well equipped with yard network, transportation assets
and processing capabilities to cover all suppliers (industry

and old scrap)
ER A

Bl RIFE) TI5ME  BEREERMIENAEERS
FER (TEBEMRERER)

© Footprint for paper and plastic recycling
R 4ok & 2B B Bk

&€ New Leimbach shear and plastic recycling/granulation in

place since January 2020
Shredder #) % : 1 BT -THE— ARRE AR EREREK

Shears 3y 11 : 3 /iR
Employees & 8 : >290

Technical Equipment F: 17 5% #5

BSBREEERAR —E-hEEH 5



A Snapshot of CEG in 2019
TE-NFESRREBRS

© 38 yards in operation

ROMANIA HRIBELE
Joint venture with two experienced local business partners
#Eenn e ATS S oncse) el s
Sle HREEMEREENEBRBERIAERE

¢ Covering the heavily populated and well industrialized areas in
this country
BEZBEAOREZEREE L HE

© Market attractive due to strong supply from industry as well as
presence of old scrap

TEEARERMERERAN m5ARS N
& Proximity to Turkey enables significant scrap exports
BT T EE AT RE R OER

© High non-metals share of sales (including significant portion of
wood, paper and plastics)
FEEB (BEREAM ERERBB)NEEHE GRS

Technical Equipment #2117 5% &

Shredder ) FE# : 2
Shears B7 )1 : 6
Employees & 8 : >600

& 4 yards in operation
EIEAE T

€ 100% subsidiary
2EFRA

& Business model with feeder and production yards

REMFEIS R AEE T B EBEN

© New headquarter at deep sea harbor yard in Fredericia
in fourth quarter of 2019
RZBE-NFENFEEASREATRGEAN TSR
ST AL

¢ Potential in non-metals

RAERIFCBEHNED

& Efficient production
= EE

Technical Equipment F: 17 5% #5

Shears 87 1% : 2
Employees € 8 : >35

e \\\. -

- — R \"\_\_ = —_—
O . 7 . ™ -

e N \ g . !
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A Snapshot of CEG in 2019
TENTFESRREBRSE

€ Owns 15 yards
BEA15E %

© 50% joint venture with a local co-shareholder
B — A RIRER K HEBS0% RS &

MEXICO
S

© Strong presence in northern part of Mexico, with
strong industrial supplier base
MREFEFFILABNTIHEE KR E) - BB TEH
fE7
Technical Equipment 47 3%
318 © Strong supply from industrial accounts made
Shredder @ﬁ#% g operations more robust than peers in North-America
Shears 53 - RERS TERFNEESEHEERR B EN—
Employees /£ & : >300 AL s

¢ Joint venture with Century Metal Recycling
Group (“CMR")

© Joint venture with Heng Hup Group
MEEEBKLEERE A Century Metal Recycling Group ([CMR |)
. . ) [DAVAS -1t 3
¢ Engaged in the dismantling of scrap motors and other
mixed scrap metal © Engaged in the dismantling of scrap motors
and other mixed scrap metal

NEEREERLEMBEE RS SBOFE
NEBFEERLEMEE RS SBOFE

& Joint venture with Hidaka Yookoo Enterprises Co.
Limited and Suzuki Shokai Co. Limited
B Hidaka Yookoo Enterprises Co. Limited & Suzuki

_ THAILAND

B . Shokai Co. Limitedfi 37 & & 1> ¥
- A= ‘ © To engage in the dismantling of scrap motors and

other mixed scrap metal

NEREERRHEMBEERS SBOFE

€ To commence operation in 2020
BRZBE_TFRAEE

ERREBERAT —F-IFER




Financial Highlights

MBRERE

For the year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+t—HLEE

Increase/
(Decrease)
2019 2018 #wm,/
—E-h#F —T—-N\F CR)
Operating results (HK$M) KEZEE (BBET)
Segment revenue Pal-idl g
Asia EED) 2,015.4 3,751.4 (46.3%)
Europe BM 12,166.8 15,166.5 (19.8%)
North America b =M 1,410.9 2,386.7 (40.9%)
Inter-segment sales o EPE S & (229.7) (391.8) (41.4%)
Revenue U 5 15,363.4 20,912.8 (26.5%)
Gross profit E7 877.9 1,684.1 (47.9%)
Segment (loss)/profit D8P (E18) R
Asia EED) (172.3) 275.2 (162.6%)
Europe BM 379.7 4435 (14.4%)
North America b =M (48.4) 8.4 (676.2%)
Unallocated vl (45.9) 118.4 (138.8%)
Profit before interest and B ) B K 75 38 A1 g
tax (EBIT) 113.1 845.5 (86.6%)
Finance costs, net ISR AN JF BE (212.6) (376.1) (43.5%)
(Loss)/Profit before income tax BTSRRI (&),
Y ) (99.5) 469.4 (121.2%)
Income tax expense FriSfifMx (34.3) (70.4) (51.3%)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FAN(ER),HEF (133.8) 399.0 (133.5%)
Financial position (HK$M) MR (B8HBT)
Net cash generated from operating & & BB TSR & /F 5
activities 528.8 317.3 66.7%
Cash and pledged bank deposits Re REERRITER 976.5 1,010.7 (3.4%)
Total assets AEME 10,190.0 11,387.5 (10.5%)
Equity attributable to RABIRREEER
shareholders of the Company 4,941.3 5,175.3 (4.5%)
Per share data (HK$) SRER (FBT)
(Loss)/Earnings per share NN &Y
attributable to shareholders B (BE) &BF
of the Company (0.08) 0.25 (132.1%)
Shareholders’ funds per share SRBEERES 3.08 3.22 (4.3%)

8 Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2019



Financial Highlights
B EE

For the year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+t—HLEE

Increase/
(Decrease)
2019 2018 #m/
—E-hEF —E—)N\F CRA)
Key ratios (%) FEP B E(%)
Gross profit margin EF=x 5.7 8.1 (2.4)
Net profit margin’ S5 Al = (0.8) 1.9 2.7)
EBIT/Revenue B R A IE AT
il P 0.7 4.0 (3.3)
Return on shareholders’ funds? % 3R & & (o] 7R K2 (2.6) 7.8 (10.4)

Revenue in Last 5 Years

Gross Profit (Loss) and Gross Net Profit (Loss) and Net Profit

BERFRE Profit (Loss) Margin in Last 5  (Loss) Margin in Last 5 Years
Years? BEREFEN(BE)R
BERFERN (BFE)R FomA (| xR
EF (FBE) =
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEET BEET
25,000 2,500 15% 5
600 " 5.0%
2,000 12% 400 0.0%
20,000 (©.8%)
9.7% 200 5.0%
15,000 o N o 0 == -10.0%
A 6.7% 5.7%
(200) -15.0%
1,000 6%
10,000 (400) -20.0%
500 3% (600) -25.0%
(800) -30.0%
5,000 . o
(1,000) -35.0%
15 2% (1200 305% 40.0%
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Asia T/ ™ Europe B Gross Profit/(Loss) B,/ (E518) Net Profit/(Loss) F&F,/ (&518)
= North America 3t 3 M —— Gross Profit/(Loss) Margin ¥,/ (F18) = — Net Profit/(Loss) Margin B5%F], /" (f&518) =
Net profit margin is calculated as profit attributable to shareholders of the Company g FHEAERZREARABRBEGSFHKREOE
as a percentage of revenue DLETE
Return on shareholders’ fund is calculated based on the profit attributable to 2 R E & BIR R RABRE AR R AR &R F G F
shareholders of the Company as a percentage of average shareholders’ funds HRRESHBEDLLTE
These figures illustrate the impact after the adoption of HKFRS 15 Revenue and HKFRS 3 ZEHTRIEMNBE M HRESENF 155 K

16 Lease for comparison purpose only.

RESUBREEASIGHARR 2 PY - Et
LELR

BLSBREENERAR —E-NEEHR 9



Chairman’s Statement
THERS

2019 ANNUAL RESULTS

2019 has been a difficult year. The US-China trade dispute lasted
for more than a year, leaving apparent impact on the domestic and
foreign economies. The extent of influence was not limited to the two
countries involved, and the global economy began to show signs of
slowing down due to the uncertainties brought by the trade war. The
US economy was seemingly thriving, but the growth was only driven by
consumption and service industry. The US industrial activities showed
a momentary sign of recovery at first when the US adjusted the tariffs
upward, and temporarily supported the iron and steel industries in the
US, but other industries such as automobile manufacturing that use
steel, iron and aluminium as raw materials had to face the predicament
of rising costs and squeezing profits. The increased tariffs had not eased
the downturn of the traditional industries in the US, but instead showed
signs of further fall in demand.

The European economy with Germany as its key driver also showed
signs of slowdown. The EU region grew by only 0.1% in the fourth
quarter of 2019, while the German economy grew 0.6% for the
whole year in 2019, but was primarily driven by the service industry.
The German economy has been growing for the past decade, but
the growth rate began to slowdown and the export growth is on the
downturn. In view of the impact from the trade war on the supply
chain, many enterprises postponed their investment plans, and hence
orders for machineries were affected. The German automotive industry
is also facing transformation. As environmental protection is gaining
more attention in Europe, the key players in the automotive industry
need to introduce more models of new energy vehicles and to eliminate
or rebuild existing production lines. This will have short-term impact
on production and demand of scrap metal. Thankfully, the overall
unemployment rate in Europe is currently at its lowest level in the past
decade, especially in Germany where its current unemployment rate
is at historical low. This provided support for demand in the domestic
markets to a certain extent. The gradual introduction of new vehicle
models in 2020 is also expected to increase sales volume.

10  Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2019

“E-NEFFERE
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FroMEAE T -TFEHL SRR
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The slowdown in industrial activities also directly affected global
demand for metals and has been indirectly reflected in the commodity
prices. The sluggish industrial activities in Europe and in the US reduced
the demand for metals, especially in the automotive industry. The
monetary easing policies in Europe, however, provided certain support
to the construction, infrastructure and real estate industries in Europe,
thereby driving some demand.

In 2019, the Group’'s shredded motor line in the US commenced
operation. This processing line collects and processes scrap motors
in the East Coast and around the Great Lakes region in the US. In
designing this processing line, the Group preserved its flexibility to the
maximum extent, as not only can it shreds scrap motors, but it also
processes scrap cables. The Group’s FMA (fine-grained metal containing
waste) processing line in Germany also has commenced commercial
operation. This processing line mainly processes shredded wastes and
waste circuit boards, and recycles the copper and precious metals
therefrom. The FMA processing line further reduced the residual wastes
which would have been landfilled or incinerated and enhanced the
recovery rate of end-of-life vehicles ("ELV"). The processing technique in
the FMA processing line was researched and developed internally over a
two year time frame, upholding our leading position in the industry in
terms of technological advancement.

2019 was also a year of business transformation. Due to the changes
under the Catalog for the Administration of the Import of Solid Wastes
promulgated by the Chinese Government, the existing scrap metal
dismantling business, such as imported scrap motors and cable scrap,
operated by the Group’s plant in Taizhou is gradually relocated to
Southeast Asian countries and other countries in the “Belt and Road”
initiative as set out in the Group’s business strategy.

The joint venture between the Group and Heng Hup Group (“Heng
Hup Group”, a leading scrap ferrous metal trader in Malaysia)
commenced production in the first half of 2019, primarily engaging in
the dismantling of scrap motors and other mixed scrap metal. The scrap
steel and scrap aluminum produced are mostly sold to the local markets
in Malaysia. Majority of the steel mills in Malaysia uses scrap steel for
production, and thus, the demand for scrap steel is relatively stable.
Copper scrap from the Malaysian joint venture is mainly exported to
China. The Malaysian joint venture is currently increasing its production.

Chairman’s Statement
EFERS

TERHNRETEEZETE2HEBE R
A R R AE KSR (B AR o BRE T A
BRERETeBRR LERARBEIE-ER
BUNH ERE BB Al BN RS BENE
METTERET —EXF mHE8 THHH
Sk o

ZE-NF EEEXENEEEHRETE
BHREAEE - ZEEREREREXER
EMERRRAEEEH ERTEIERN
Rk KEOERTHRABEENEZE KT
REFEEH ZEBGOUNEEEES
47 o S B A B E MFMA (fine-grained metal
containing waste ) FRI2 R IR ATG R AEE © %
PR 3R 4R 2 B AR IR R I 1 A A )N B L R B B
1R - S B E A SRR B S8 o FMARIEAR
HE—PRETREBHEERRENEGRER
Wik 7 WEAENGES EREE - FMAR
BRORETEHEEMERKE EHE
R 2 - ZRIBENIABRER TR
5 FHEE R RIS R UL o

“ENFHREFREBHN—F - XPEBA
HE CEOBEMEERRR) 8 SEBTH
BMNARRBHEOREEY BEREESE
T2 BRFBEBCRESBENEELHEERS
BRIREEE—wBEEER-

EERERACELNECECBE S HE
A&E ([Heng Hup Group |) &1ERK S HIAE
CECER T NF LI FRKEE A&
ARRAFENREFETHREMBEERESE
R AR EETS - R RE SN A EE8R £ B i B2k
PR EH TS - BRAEAREAEERNS KA
BES - BREH L BREE - SRALTEE QT
FEESRAIEZ A FIR S - AR B ATER
BN EEREER o

EeRREBERAH

—g-hEgg 1



12

Chairman’s Statement

ERHBS

Another joint venture formed by the Group and Century Metal
Recycling Group (“CMR”, India’s largest producer of aluminum and
zinc die-casting alloys) also commenced production in November 2019.
This joint venture is mainly engaged in the dismantling of scrap motors
and other mixed scrap metal. The Indian market is enormous and the
recycled metals currently produced is sold locally. As the ratio between
electric furnaces and blast furnaces in India is higher than that in China,
their dependence on iron ore is relatively lower than that of China,
therefore, the Group has greater bargaining power as a scrap steel
supplier. The Indian joint venture is currently ramping up its production.

A cooperation agreement was signed in November 2019 among the
Group, Hidaka Yookoo Enterprises Co. Limited (the largest scrap steel
and iron recycler in Thailand) and Suzuki Shokai Co. Limited (a leading
resource recycling company in Japan and our long-term business
partner) to establish a joint venture to set up a metal recycling business
in Thailand in 2020, focusing on the dismantling of scrap motors. The
project is currently under preparation.

2019 was the toughest year for the Taizhou plant since its
establishment. Due to changes in the PRC national policies, the Taizhou
plant transferred its primary business abroad and dismissed most of
its long-time employees. Apart from Greater China, the Group also
streamlined the organisational structure in Europe and North America
as a response to the market changes and to optimise the cost structure.
On behalf of the Group, | would like to thank everyone for their
dedication and contributions over the years.

The remaining staff at Taizhou plant, other than those in the production
of copper rod and recycled aluminum ingots, will mainly support the
development of the Southeast Asia operations and the domestic scrap
metal collection in China. The Shuyang Division under the Taizhou plant
will mainly engage in the dismantling of local scrap motors in China.

Against this broad backdrop, both the revenue and profit of the Group
experienced a year-on-year decrease with broader declines in Asia
and North America. The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 amounted to HK$15,363.4 million (2018: HK$20,912.8
million), representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 26.5%.

Chiho Environmental Group Limited = Annual Report 2019

EEHNEEAMNEBHEBELSRED
Century Metal Recycling Group ([CMR )&
BRI NEEEBR _T—NF+— AR
BEE - AERRITENEHFEEH R ME
ERASEBNINBERS -EMSBEN 85
EEMNBESBEHEE L - BN BRED
EEEHSBELHELHES  FiLHEEa
RTEEARY P BIE - REEEF SRR E
FEE A AR A ERE - AR B ARG INEE

BB

SEEFENSAEMEDWEA®FT
(T Hidaka Yookoo Enterprises Co. Limited |)
FBARBERERBKAR  BERRRES
B AREE ([Suzuki Shokai Co. Limited |)
RZBE—NFT+—AEE6ERR  KRKZ
ABENYE HEE_S_EFEEREMBRE
NERIFRATHCBENER - BAITEET

Bk

TE-NERAMNRTRNILESRBREN
—F-mRERBRRAERRA aMARHR
BREXEBBSI wEBTREIREA
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FERUNFEMBR-A B EBABCRA SR -
EURARKREBEHZMUABZFNE NM
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RMBEAESBEREBNRE - 2N QA8
TEMGEENNEEZNEEANEESH
Ay

FEk—EBAESET SEEBKARFE
B A F BT TR E A IR dE ERR 1R &
AEE-EEBEE_ZT-NFEt+_A=+—
HIEFE &2 A153186,3408 8T (=
T — \4F :209181,2808 B L) ' R TR
26.5% °



The loss attributable to shareholders of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2019 was HK$128.7 million (2018:
profit HK$401.2 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 132.1%. The basic and diluted loss per share in 2019
were HK$0.08 (2018: basic and diluted earnings per share HK$0.25).

REGIONAL PERFORMANCE

In 2019, as the shrinking of the German automotive industry affected
its peripheral industries, the revenue recorded by the Group from
Europe decreased by 19.8% year-on-year to HK$12,166.8 million
(2018: HK$15,166.5 million), and a segment profit of HK$379.7 million
(2018: HK$443.5 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of
14.4%.

The US-China trade war has a greater impact on the US industrial
activities. Increase in prices and sales volume at the onset of the US-
China trade war could not be sustained, and even began to have
counter-effects at the later stage. The main reason was that the
root cause of de-industrialisation in the US was not only from the
competition of China-manufactured products, but also from US's
domestic issues. In the US market where the Group operates, while
it remains profitable in the fast-growing Southwestern region, the
Northeast region is becoming increasingly competitive due to reduced
industrial activities in the traditional industrial towns. In 2019, the
Group’s revenue from North America decreased 40.9% to HK$1,410.9
million as compared to last year (2018: HK$2,386.7 million), and a
segment loss of HK$48.4 million (2018: segment profit HK$8.4 million).

As the Group's Southeast Asia business was still at its start-up stage in
2019, its contribution to revenue and earnings were relatively limited.
Currently, the business in Asia mainly represented those in Greater
China, including Hong Kong. In 2019, the revenue from the Asia
region decreased by 46.3% to HK$2,015.4 million when compared to
last year (2018: HK$3,751.4 million), and segment loss was HK$172.3
million (2018: segment profit HK$275.2 million). The decline was
mainly caused by the revisions of the Catalog for the Administration of
the Import of Solid Wastes by the China Government, while the new
businesses in China could not form a scale to replace those interrupted
business in the short term.

Chairman’s Statement
EFERS

BEZZT-NF+A=+—HLEFE A2
ARG EE1182,8708 BT (—ZE— N\EX
F - 418120858 70) - R TREA132.1% =
T-NFHNEFREAREEEIS 50085 T
(ZE2E-N\FNERERREEZF 50258
JL) °

AR - NFRAREIEZHEITET
HEBEYE £E-_Z—NERNEE 2 Ik
BEAFERLL TE19.8%%E121186,6808 %5 7T
(ZZ—)\4F : 151{86,6508 87T ) * D307
B31E7,9708 8 T (ZF — /\F : 4(84,3508
BIL) R TE14.4% o

FEMNIEAERYZIPEEIHEFER
ReHEBSEHFIHMNERIIEESRBEE
i BEEAABAREERBR - HFER
E 2 EE R AT ba i ERIRTEER K
BFBEMNZFE MELZEEBEARNLAM
BoSBEEMEREMIS BRTETRRERE
M FERAR  RittENERTEEER
BLIEZDHRLOMBFEBRR - EBR =
T-NF-EEMBEZ BEREFELET
F£40.9% = 14181,090& & 0 (Z T — N\ F:

23188,6708 B 7T) - 7 HIEE B4,8408 % T
(Z2—N\FnEaF 8408 L) °

HREENEEREFSR T —NFHEL
RBIRE  HRANMBINERRELERBR -
BRI ESETERETEENNRPE
oM —ZT— NG iAW R EFHE
Lt T B846.3% ZE201/81,5408 B L (ZZE—N
1 37185,1408 % 70) - D EbEsI81187,2308
B (ZE—N\FHEmH:2187,5208 7%
TL) e THREZRFBBMAEN CEOEDE
A &) FTEE - B REIg e £ 58 A&
SEF K R BT TSR AR

EeRREBERAH

—z2-nEgR 13



14

Chairman’s Statement

ERHBS

PROSPECTS

In December 2019, the European Commission passed the European
Green Deal with a goal of achieving carbon emission neutral by 2050.
In addition to expanding the scope of carbon tax, there is also a need
to review the fossil energy tax, to support low-carbon iron and steel
production and development of new energy battery technology, and to
formulate a series of action plans for a circular economy. Among them,
resources recycling are not only because of environmental protection,
but also for the protection of resources necessary for the sustainable
development of European industries.

As China barred the import of unprocessed waste plastic, the Group
also invested in a new plastic recycling line which will commence
operation in early 2020 to process waste plastic in Europe and produce
highly added value LDPE and HDPE pellets. Those pellets are high value
industrial raw materials and can be exported around the world. It would
help mitigate the plastic issue in Europe and enhance the Group’s
plastic recycling business.

In the fourth quarter of 2019, the market saw signs of the US-China
trade war ending and industrial activities began to rebound, with
various metals prices also having increased towards year-end. The
economic impact from the outbreak of the novel coronavirus pandemic
("COVID-19") before the Chinese New Year in 2020 would be difficult
to assess. Production resumption after the Chinese New Year holidays
usually drive up prices due to restocking after generally low inventory
level of enterprises in the PRC before the Chinese New Year. This year,
the resumption of business activities was delayed until April in China as
production only gradually resumes after nation-wide lockdowns were
gradually lifted. In Europe, US and other parts of the world, widespread
lockdowns started in March. While some countries are exiting or
preparing to exit their lockdowns towards end of April, some countries
may extend lockdowns towards May. We have seen major disruptions to
global supply chains. Ports, customs and banks, all of which are critical
to the global supply chain, are either understaffed as they are required
to work on shifts or employees are at home office or quarantines. Our
recycling operations are considered essential industry and the Group
was able to maintain operations in most countries where we operate.
We have implemented protective measures to safeguard the safety
of the staff. We are satisfied that these measures are working but we
urge everyone to continue to be vigilant to contain the spread of the
pandemic. At this point of time, it is difficult to determine the impact of
the pandemic to the Group's businesses.
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One of the important tasks in 2020 is to increase the output in the
South and Southeast Asia processing yards. New energy vehicles will be
the future direction in the automotive industry. The Group estimated
that the number of electric engines and motors will increase in the
future, and the demand for copper will also step up. Not only do South
and Southeast Asia have a young population and abundant labour
resources, they are also at a stage of rapid industrial development,
capable of replacing China as the future dismantling bases and sales
markets for recycled metals.

2019 was a critical year for the automotive industry in Europe. Most
German automobile companies agreed that the automobile industry
would head to the direction of electric vehicles going forward. Once
the strategy has been determined, the German automobile companies
would accelerate their investments in electric vehicles, including
auxiliary power battery and power system. Comparing to traditional
petrol or diesel vehicles, electric vehicles require more copper and are
equipped with more automotive electronics components. The Group's
R&D team will also focus more in this area, to improve the processing of
materials generated from the future automotive industry such as scrap,
motors and batteries, thereby maximising resources recycling.

In mid-2019, the new Measures for the Management of End-of-Life
Vehicle Recycling ( {GREE#EEN S BIUE R 1)) ) promulgated in China
lowered an important barrier to this blue ocean market. Leveraging on
our existing scrap metal business layout and experiences in China, the
Group will explore opportunities to develop the ELV business in China
with our own resources or by way of joint venture, and transfer from
Europe and the US the Group’s leading technology on ELV processing
into China.

I would like to extend my heart-felt gratitude to the members of the
Board and all our employees around the world for their loyalty, efforts,
professionalism and valuable contributions, and also to our customers
and partners for their priceless support and trust.

Qin Yongming
Chairman
Hong Kong, 12 May 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIRES MR DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The macro market environment throughout 2019 has been volatile
due to the prolonged US-China trade war which has brought adverse
impact to the Group. The Group sold in aggregate over 4.8 million
tonnes of recycled products in 2019, a 10.1% decrease when compared
to 5.3 million tonnes being sold in 2018. Revenue for the year was
HK$15,363.4 million, a decrease of approximately 26.5% compared to
HK$20,912.8 million last year.

The decrease in revenue was largely driven by the slowdown of the
industrial activities globally and led to a soft demand for metal scraps.
Scrap prices have been in a downward trend since the start of 2019
with the prices bottomed out in October 2019.

Our China operation has been particularly impacted by the changes
in China’s Catalog for Administration of the Import of Solid Wastes
which banned the import of scrap motors into China, effective at the
beginning of 2019. Sales have been temporarily affected as the Group
is in transition to shift the production bases from China to South/
Southeast Asia.
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Increase/
2019 2018 (Decrease)
—E-hE “E-N\E #0,/ (BP)
Asa As a
percentage of percentage of
total segment total segment
HK$M revenue HK$M revenue HK$M
- 159 Bplas \ 169 Bz )
BEET BENEIN BEAT BENESL BEAT
Europe M 12,166.8 78.0% 15,166.5 71.2% (2,999.7)
North America =M 1,410.9 9.1% 2,386.7 1.2% (975.8)
Asia Yl 2,015.4 12.9% 3,751.4 17.6% (1,736.0)
Total segment revenue DK BE 15,593.1 100% 21,304.6 100% (5,711.5)
Inter-segment sales DEREEE (229.7) (391.8) 162.1
Revenue Wz 15,3634 20,912.8 (5,549.4)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Gross Profit/Margin

Gross profit for year was HK$877.9 million, a decrease of HK$806.2
million or 47.9% compared to HK$1,684.1 million recorded in the
previous financial year. The decrease in gross profit was mainly
attributable to the rising energy and transportation cost but declining
scrap prices, putting pressure on our margins. Gross profit declined also
due to the lower tonnage processed in our China facilities as a result of
the import restrictions on scrap motors in China.

Gross profit margin for the year decreased from 8.1% to 5.7%.
The decline in gross profit margin is largely attributed to the weak
performance from the China operations, while the gross profit margin
in Europe stays largely stable.

Profit Before Interest And Tax (EBIT)/Margin

EBIT for the year was a profit of HK$113.1 million, as compared to a
profit of HK$845.5 million last year. EBIT margin was 0.7% for the year
(2018: 4.0%).

Total operating expenses were HK$1,021.6 million, a decrease of
23.3% over the previous financial year. The decrease is in part due to
lower tonnages, but also due to cost control measures put in place
during the year. Total operating expenses as a percentage of revenue
increased slightly from 6.4% to 6.6%.

Distribution and selling expenses increased from HK$49.0 million to
HK$51.5 million, an increase of 5.1% compared with the last financial
year. The increase is mainly due to a reclassification of freight and
packaging expenses from administrative expenses and the addition of
some new sales agents during the year. As a percentage of revenue,
distribution and selling expenses was 0.3% (2018: 0.2%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Profit Before Interest and Tax (EBIT)/Margin (continued)

Administrative expenses decreased from HK$1,283.3 million to
HK$970.1 million over the last financial year, partly due to stringent
cost controls are in place in the course of the Group transitioning our
production bases to South/Southeast Asia. As a percentage of revenue,
administrative expenses remained flat at around 6.3% as compared to
last year (2018: 6.2%).
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Increase/
2019 2018 (Decrease)
—E-NF —E-N\F #Bm/ ()
Asa As a
percentage percentage
HK$M of revenue HK$M of revenue HK$M
€] (&)
E:cn BoL BEBT Bl BEBT
Distribution and selling expenses PEREERT 515 0.3% 49.0 0.2% 25
Administrative expenses THREX 970.1 6.3% 1,2833 6.2% (313.2)
Total @it 1,021.6 6.6% 1,332.3 6.4% (310.7)

Loss/Profit Attributable to Shareholders and Loss/
Earnings Per Share

Loss attributable to shareholders of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2019 was HK$128.7 million, as compared to a profit of
HK$401.2 million in the last financial year.

Taxation charges reduced from HK$70.4 million in the last financial
year to HK$34.3 million in the current year as the profitability in some
regions have lessen this year.

Basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
HK$0.08 as compared to earnings per share of HK$0.25 in the previous
financial year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Analysis of Cash Flow from Operations

The Group's net cash generated from operating activities for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was HK$528.8 million, an increase of 66.7%
as compared to HK$317.3 million in the previous financial year, as
the Group carefully managed its working capital in response to the
uncertainties in the market conditions.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Shareholders’ funds as at 31 December 2019 were HK$4,941.3 million,
a decrease of 4.5% from HK$5,175.3 million as at 31 December 2018.
Shareholders’ funds per share decreased by 4.3% from HK$3.22 to
HK$3.08.

The Group's financial resources remain stable and steady. As at 31
December 2019, the Group had cash, various bank balances and
pledged bank deposits amounting to HK$976.5 million, a decrease of
3.4% or HK$34.2 million as compared to HK$1,010.7 million as at 31
December 2018. It was mainly for repayment of external borrowings
and working capital needs for expansion of business operations.

The current ratio has decreased from 1.62 as at 31 December 2018
to 1.01 as at 31 December 2019 as certain borrowings have been
reclassified as current liabilities as they will be maturing within the
next twelve months. Subsequent to year-end, the Group has reached
an agreement with the lender to extend the repayment date of these
maturing loans to March 2021. With the extension of the repayment,
the current ratio would have been 1.76 as at 31 December 2019.

Total external borrowings, including lease liabilities, were approximately
HK$3,556.5 million (31 December 2018: approximately HK$3,787.6
million). Such borrowings were mainly utilised for the purchase of mixed
recycle metal and working capital, and denominated in Euro, U.S. Dollar
and Renminbi. Approximately HK$2,102.8 million (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$1,757.9 million) of borrowings are at fixed interest
rates.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2019 was 34.9%
(31 December 2018: 33.3%) which is calculated based on the total
borrowings divided by our total assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Working Capital Change

Inventories as at 31 December 2019 were HK$1,495.9 million, having
decreased from HK$2,105.7 million as at 31 December 2018. The
inventory turnover days for the financial year was 45 days, increased
slightly by 3 days than the last financial year as sales were soft during
the year.

Provision for inventories as at 31 December 2019 were HK$35.9 million,
as compared to the provisions of HK$38.8 million as at 31 December
2018

The Group is committed to streamline and improve the inventory cycle
so as to mitigate the short-term impact of price volatility on the overall
performance of the Group.
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Net trade and bills receivables as at 31 December 2019 were HK$957.3
million, decreased from HK$1,367.5 million as at 31 December 2018.
Debtor turnover days for the financial year increased from 23 days
to 28 days when compared with the last financial year. The lower
receivable balance as at 31 December 2019 was partly due to reduced
sales as well as timing of sales towards the year end. The Group adopts
a tight management on credit exposure.

FEHRERERFER-_ZE—N\F+=A
=+—H®13{86, 7508 TRIE T —
F+ZA=+—HME5,7308 58—
B EARLL - AR BFE R EUERRGAE A
23R ME28 K- R _E—NLFE+ A
=+ BMRERGRESE SR B —ERE
ETH AR ERREEIERAE - NEH
HEBERBRETERISER -

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
All figures are in HK$M unless RRBEHAN MEESHE
stated otherwise KB&EBITERT
Trade and bills receivables, net FE S RREEKFIA 957.3 1,367.5
Average receivables as a percentage T REBGRIBEKREE S
of revenue 7.6% 6.4%
Turnover days PEEER=E ¢ 28 daysk 23 daysk
EARREESRAT —B-hEg5Hi 21



Management Discussion and Analysis

EIEESYRR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Working Capital Change (continued)

Trade and bills payable as at 31 December 2019 were HK$639.3 million,
as compared to HK$1,042.9 million as at 31 December 2018. Creditor
turnover days for the year ended 31 December 2019 remained flat at
21 days as compared with the last financial year.

TSR (8)

BEELE (E])
EHRNEBEENRBER-_ZE—NLFE+_A
= +—HA6E3,9308F 0 MR_Z—/)/\F
+Z—A=+—HEA1084,2008 BT - H=E
—E-AF+ A=+ HALFENEMNE
FEEEEE F—PREEHER KR A2
9{0

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
All figures are in HK$M unless REEHBAN FRESRE
stated otherwise NBEBBTTERT
Trade and bills payables B RERERENFKIA 639.3 1,042.9
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Treasury Policies

The Group's treasury policies are designed to mitigate the impact of
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates arising from the Group's
global operations. The Group principally uses forward foreign exchange/
futures contracts as appropriate to hedge the foreign exchange risks/
commodity price risks in the ordinary course of business. It is the
Group’s policy not to enter into derivative transactions for speculative
purposes.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group invested HK$733.2
million (31 December 2018: HK$602.1 million) in the purchase
of tangible assets including land, buildings, plant, machinery and
equipment for the improvement of production efficiency, of which
HK$337.5 million were financed from internal resources and HK$395.7
million were financed through lease arrangement.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Revenue by Products
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Operation Performance

The Group continued to operate in our long established markets and
also has been expanding into new markets in South/Southeast Asia.
Through the geographic diversification, we are in a good position to
mitigate the risks of overly relying on a single market.

Europe

Our Europe segment provides all steps in recycling mixed metal scraps
and is equipped with one-stop shop service for collecting, gathering,
sorting and processing. We are among the processing and technology
leaders in ferrous and non-ferrous metal recycling worldwide. We own
many advanced processing technologies in scrap metal shredding and
post-shredding processing.

Our scrap metal shredding services, including cleaning, sorting,
shearing, shredding, and pressing, constitute a “One-Stop-Shop”
process for all customers and cater to any metal supply needs. In post
shredding technologies, we are able to achieve approximately 97%
recovery rate for ELV, ranking as a world leader (95% recycling rate is
the existing recovery target under the European Union directive).

In 2019, the sales tonnage for the Europe segment was 4.09 million
tonnes, a drop of 6.8% as compared to 4.38 million tonnes in the
previous financial year. Segment revenue was HK$12,166.8 million,
decreased by 19.8% at current exchange rate or by 15.4% in local
currencies. Demand has been strongly affected by a weak automobile
and machine engineering industry in Europe due to a softening demand
in China as a result of the US-China trade war, and less exports to China
due to the import restrictions of certain scrap metals which came into
effect this year.

Scrap prices in Europe have dropped on average by 9% in 2019. The
lack of investments in the aging European infrastructure limited the
transportation capacity, and with the increasing tolls, freight costs are
on the rise. Gross profit for the year, therefore, was only HK$876.5
million, a decrease of 23.6% at current exchange rate or 19.2% in local
currencies as compared with the last financial year. Gross profit margin
for the year dropped slightly from 7.6% to 7.2%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EIEESYRR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Europe (continued)

Segment profit for the year was HK$379.7 million, a decrease of 14.4%
at current exchange rate or 7.4% in local currencies. Effective cost
management in coping with the challenging market conditions had
partially outweighed the drop in gross profit.

Besides efficient margin control, several business improvement initiatives
have been initiated to react to the market downturn. Alternative sales
channels have been identified to reduce the impact brought about by
China’s new import restrictions. Moreover, additional sorting processes
have been implemented in some of our European yards to fulfil China’s
requirements on importing of cleaned scrap. The Group has also been
expanding our non-metallic businesses such as recycled plastics and
paper to diversify and mitigate the challenges brought about from the
metal recycling business. An all new plastic recycling line will come
online in 2020 to help contribute relieving Europe’s plastic problem.

North America

The North America segment possesses extensive recycling process
know-how in all relevant process steps from collection, sorting,
processing to trading of materials. It operates state-of-the-art shredder
technology and has extensive post-shredding technologies in place for
recovery optimisation. The North America segment has also commenced
its scrap motor mechanical shredding and dismantling as well as trading
of reused auto components.

The segment sales tonnage for the North America segment was 0.45
million tonnes as compared to 0.61 million tonnes last year. Segment
sales revenue was HK$1,410.9 million as compared to HK$2,386.7
million, a drop of 40.9% at current exchange rate or 37.6% in local
currencies. Demand from local steel mills has fallen due to mill outages
and destocking at the mills. The main driver behind the weak steel scrap
demand in US is the generally weakening macroeconomic factors in the
US, especially in the industrial sector, which had been badly affected by
the US-China trade war. The uptick in steel prices in US after the tariff
war started was short lived and prices soon dropped faster than it was
before the pre-tariffs war. The trade war resulted in declining activities
and lowering demand. Automotive production trended down across
most countries over the second half of 2019, resulting in more stagnant
steel demand towards the end of the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
North America (continued)

In 2019, falling domestic steel scrap prices have put significant pressure
on margins, with a steep price decline in October 2019 to year lows.
As China imposed retaliatory tariffs on certain scraps from US, the
materials need to be diverted to other markets which further eroded
the margins in US. Hence, segment gross profit was HK$103.2 million,
decreased by 50.4% at current exchange rate, or 47.7% in local
currencies. Gross profit margin dropped from 8.7% last year to 7.3%
this year.

The lowered sale volume, together with a narrowed margin, turned the
segment profit from a profit of HK$8.4 million to a loss of HK$48.4
million as compared to the last financial year.

Asia

Our major production facilities in Asia include Yuen Long (Hong Kong),
Taizhou (Zhejiang) and Yantai (Shandong), and has expanded to
Malaysia and India in the current year.

The sales tonnage in the Asia segment was 0.23 million tonnes (2018:
0.31 million tonnes) as the scrap motor dismantling business has been
temporarily interrupted while the Group relocates the production to our
new processing yards in South/Southeast Asia. Segment revenue has
decreased by 46.3% from HK$3,751.4 million last year to HK$2,015.4
million.

The bearish scrap prices and the temporarily reduced sales volume have
hampered our margin, resulted in a gross loss for the Asia segment. The
gross loss for the year was HK$83.0 million, with a gross loss margin of
4.1%, as compared to a gross profit of HK$352.2 million and a gross
profit margin of 9.4% last year.

As a result, the Asia segment has experienced a loss of HK$172.3
million during this transformation period, as compared to a profit of
HK$275.2 million last year. As our new production facilities in South/
Southeast Asia ramp up operation, the performance of our Asia
segment will gradually recover.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EIEESYRR DM

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had pledged certain plants and
buildings, land use rights, inventories, trade receivables and bank
deposits with an aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$3,807.4
million (31 December 2018: HK$4,308.3 million) to secure borrowings.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had capital commitments in
respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment, additions
in construction in progress and investments in joint ventures which
are contracted for but not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements and amounted to HK$128.9 million (31 December 2018:
HK$116.6 million).

As at the date of this report, save as disclosed below, the Board is not
aware of any material contingent liabilities.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (31 December 2018: HK$27.4 million) which consist of non-
financial guarantee in favour of investee entities.

A writ of summons was issued by Delco Participation B.V. (“Delco”),
as plaintiff, on 21 December 2015 in the High Court of Hong Kong
(High Court Action No. 3040 of 2015, “"HCA 3040/2015"), followed by
an amended writ on 5 December 2016, against the Company and Mr.
Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang”) as defendants for a sum of HK$57.8 million
together with interest and costs. The claim relates to an alleged non-
payment of a portion of the loans advanced by Delco Asia Company
Limited (“Delco Asia”) to subsidiaries of the Company in accordance
with the terms of a shareholders loan assignment dated 24 June 2010
between, amongst others, Delco Asia and the Company. The Company
gave notice of the intention to contest the proceedings on 4 January
2016 and filed its defence on 23 September 2016. An amended writ
of summons was filed by Delco on 5 December 2016, adding Fang
Ankong (“Fang”) as a defendant to the proceedings. The Company
filed its amended defence on 13 December 2016 and the Plaintiff filed
its amended reply to the Company’s defence on 21 December 2016.
The case is still in progress.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (continued)

Each of Mr. Fang, a former director of the Company, and HWH Holdings
Limited (“HWH"), undertook to the Company to indemnify and hold
harmless on demand (on an after-tax basis) the Company against all
losses arising out of, inter alia, HCA 3040/2015 in accordance with the
terms of a letter of indemnity signed by Mr. Fang and HWH in favour
of the Company on 17 December 2015. Further, HWH has also agreed
that a sum including the amount of HK$57.8 million be held in escrow
as security for any liability of the Company in respect of, inter alia, HCA
3040/2015. As such, the Board does not consider HCA 3040/2015 to
be a claim of material importance.

A writ of summons was issued by Delco as plaintiff on 10 November
2016 in the High Court of Hong Kong (High Court Action No. 2939 of
2016, “"HCA 2939/2016") against the Company as the 1st defendant,
Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited (“CTHK"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as the 2nd defendant, HWH as the 3rd defendant, and Mr.
Fang as the 4th defendant. So far as the Company and its subsidiaries
are concerned, Delco claimed against the Company for damages for
an alleged breach of a letter of undertaking dated 3 March 2015 in
relation to a convertible bond issued by the Company and subscribed
for by Delco on 1 March 2012. Delco further claimed against CTHK for
a sum of US$1.0 million, allegedly advanced by Delco Asia to CTHK
on or around 16 April 2009. Delco further claims interests, costs and
further or other relief. The Company and CTHK filed their defence on
24 March 2017 and the plaintiff filed its reply to the Company and
CTHK's defence on 20 June 2017. The case is still in progress.

Whilst the Board does not consider HCA 2939/2016 to be a claim
of material importance for the reason set out above, details of HCA
2939/2016 are disclosed herein for the sake of completeness.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EIEESYRR DM

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group in its ordinary course of business is exposed to market risks
such as commodities price risk, foreign currencies risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's risk management strategy
aims minimising the adverse effects of these risks on its financial
performance.

On 7 March 2018, the Group adopted a commaodity price risk hedging
policy which the Board believes is suitable for the current operating
conditions. The commodity price risk hedging policy is posted on the
Company's website, www.chihogroup.com.

As part of its foreign currency hedging strategy, the Board closely
monitors the Group’s foreign currency borrowings in view of the volatile
exchange rate of Euro, Renminbi and other relevant currencies to U.S.
Dollar and considers various measures to minimise foreign currency risk.

Regarding credit risk, the Group continues to follow the best practices
of cash collection for sales of most recycled products in order to
minimise the carrying amounts of the financial assets in the Group's
financial statements. In addition, the Group continues monitoring
closely its trade debtors to minimise potential impairment losses.

Regarding liquidity risk, the Group continues maintaining a balance
between the continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank borrowings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a workforce of 3,115
employees. In addition, we engaged approximately 350 separation
and selection workers through local recognised contractors. We have
not experienced any strikes, work stoppages or significant labor
disputes which have affected our operations in the past. We have
not experienced any significant difficulties in recruiting and retaining
qualified staff. We continue to maintain good relationships with our
employees.

The Group's total staff costs for the year was approximately
HK$1,155.1 million. The remuneration package of staff consists of
basic salary, mandatory provident fund, insurances and other benefits
as considered appropriate. Remuneration of the employees of the
Group is determined by reference to the market standard, individual
performance and their respective contribution to the Group.

The emoluments of the Directors are subject to the recommendations of
the remuneration committee of the Company and the Board's approval.
Other emoluments including discretionary bonuses, are determined by
the Board with reference to the Directors’ duties, abilities, reputation
and performance.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group considers that investor relations are important to a listed
company. The Board believes that maintaining a good relationship
with investors and keeping them up-to-date on the latest corporate
communications and business development in a timely fashion would
enhance transparency and strengthen corporate governance of the
Group.

Going forward, the Company will continue to endeavour to keep our
investors abreast of the corporate and business developments, and to
introduce the Group’s strengths and strategies in order to gain support
and recognition from them and also the market in general.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

ESRSREEAEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS $i{TE& =

Mr. Tu Jianhua (“Mr. Tu”), aged 56, is an executive Director of the Company. He was appointed as an executive Director
on 29 April 2015. Mr. Tu is a member of the executive committee and the strategy and investment committee of the
Company and he is also the director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Tu was appointed as the chief executive
officer of the Company during the period from 16 February 2016 to 31 March 2016. He has been the chairman of
USUM Investment Group Limited since April 2014. He has been the director of Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (R &£ EER
A 7A]) since January 1996 and the director of Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd (&% B R A 7)) since January 2003. USUM
Investment Group Limited, Loncin Group Co., Ltd. ((E& & B BBR A 7]) and Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (E&ZERAER LD
a]) are controlling shareholders of the Company.

He served as the chairman of the board of Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (R & A& B R A 7)) in the period from January
2003 to July 2010 and from February 2013 to December 2013, the executive director of Loncin Group Co., Ltd. ([£#
£ E AR A A]) from January 1996 to January 1997, and the chairman of the board of Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (2 &%
B AR AR]) from January 1997 to December 2013. He served as the general manager of Chongging Loncin Gasoline
Engine Company (SinoAmerican Joint Venture) (R E& B EEME & )THEH A F]) , a company that used to be controlled
by Mr. Tu during its existence, from 1995 to 1996, and served as the chairman of Chongging Loncin Transportation and
Machinery Factory (EER&EZBEMER ) , a company that used to be controlled by Mr. Tu during its existence, from
1993 to 1995. He served as the chairman of Chongging City Jiulongpo District Loncin Metal Factory (EEm SLEE &
[EZSEM) , a company that used to be controlled by Mr. Tu during its existence, from 1991 to 1993 and the factory
director of Chongging Cinhua Metals Factory (EE & E & BE M E) , from 1983 to 1990.

Mr. Tu graduated from the Economic Management (48 E 2 F 2 ) of the Open College in Chongging City Municipal
Party School (EEMZ B HEEPT) in December 1998. Mr. Tu previously acted as the deputy to the 11th, 12th
National People’s Congress, the deputy to the 2nd, 3rd and 4th Chongging Municipal People’s Congress and the
member of the Finance and Economic Affairs Committee of Chongging Municipal People’s Congress. He currently serves
as a Member of the National Committee of the 13th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a Standing
Committee Member of the Executive Committee of the 12th All China Federation of Industry & Commerce (£ B T 75
i) , the president of Chongging City Industry and Commerce Federation ( & 1 L8 ) , the President of Chongging
City General Chamber of Commerce (EEE M4 ) , the president of Chongging City Technology Equipment Industry
Chamber of Commerce (EE MR EHEEBEER), the vice president of Chongging City Charity Federation ( EEE T
#E#8€) and the vice president of Chongging City Private Entrepreneurs Confederation (EE TR E (XA S

Mr. Tu is a non-executive director of Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.* CBES M AR AT ), a company listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 3903), and a director
of Loncin Motor Co., Ltd., a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 603766).

The annual salary of Mr. Tu is HK$2,600,000, He is also entitled a discretionary bonus. The annual salary and discretionary
bonus of Mr. Tu are determined with reference to his duties and responsibilities in the Company, qualifications,
experience, the prevailing market conditions and the Company’s remuneration policy and is subject to annual review by
the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company.
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EShSREEAEEE
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EShRSREEAERE

Mr. Qin Yongming (“Mr. Qin”), aged 56, is the chairman of the Board and an executive Director of the Company.
He joined the Group on 1 June 2016 as executive vice president, and was appointed as an executive director on 30
June 2016. He was re-designated to chief executive officer of the Company on 24 October 2016, to the chairman of
the Board of the Company on 17 July 2017, and was appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company on 11
October 2017. Mr. Qin ceased to be the chief executive officer of the Company with effect from 1 March 2020. Mr. Qin
serves as the chairman of the executive committee, the nomination committee, the strategy and investment committee
and the pricing committee of the Company. He is also the director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Qin was
appointed as the president of USUM Investment Group Co., Ltd. on 22 January 2018. From 2004 to 2016, Mr. Qin
worked with LafargeHolcim group and his last position with LafargeHolcim group was the purchasing director of the
China region, with a particular focus on raw materials and cementitious materials. Mr. Qin served as the head of the
purchasing department of Tianjin Henkel Detergent Co. Ltd. from 1996 to 1999 and the finance director of Tianjin Philips
Sy Catering and Entertainment Co., Ltd. from 1994 to 1996. Mr. Qin has extensive experience in corporate operation
management, process and budget control, strategic materials procurement and supplier management. Mr. Qin holds a
bachelor degree of Finance and Accounting from Renmin University of China and a Master of Business Administration
from the University of Southampton.

The annual salary of Mr. Qin is HK$5,200,000. He is also entitled a discretionary bonus. The annual salary and
discretionary bonus of Mr. Qin are determined with reference to his duties and responsibilities in the Company,
qualifications, experience, the prevailing market conditions and the Company’s remuneration policy and is subject to
annual review by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company.
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Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan (“Mr. Suchan”), aged 38, joined the Group as the chief executive officer and executive
Director of the Company on 19 February 2020. Mr. Suchan serves as a member of each of the executive committee,
pricing committee and strategy and investment committee of the Company. Mr. Suchan graduated with a Bachelor’s
degree (Diplom-Kaufmann) in Business Administration and Economics from the University of Applied Sciences in Essen,
Germany in 2005. He further holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Nanyang Technological University
in Singapore and from Tsinghua University in Beijing, China respectively. Mr. Suchan started his career at the German
pharmaceutical and chemical company Bayer AG as a management trainee in 2002 where he worked across various
marketing and finance functions in Germany and Poland. In 2006, he joined specialty chemicals company Lanxess as
a Strategy Consultant working in Germany, Canada and China. From there he moved to become Head of Corporate
Development based in Shanghai at Lanxess Greater China in 2008. In 2010, Mr. Suchan joined Lanxess’ Inorganic
Pigments business unit as Commercial Director for Asia Pacific and in 2012, he took over responsibility as Vice President
for Global Product Management. In 2014, Mr. Suchan was additionally appointed as Vice President for all operations of
the Inorganic Pigments business unit in the Asia Pacific region which also included the responsibility as Managing Director
for Lanxess’ three Inorganic Pigments production sites in Shanghai and Ningbo, China. Since April 2017, Mr. Suchan had
been globally responsible for identifying and implementing digital solutions which can be used along the whole chemical
value chain within Lanxess' Digital Transformation activities. In addition, Mr. Suchan was also the Chief Digital Officer at
Lanxess in Asia-Pacific coordinating Digital Transformation efforts in the region.

The annual salary of Mr. Suchan is HK$6,288,000. The annual salary Mr. Suchan are determined with reference to
his duties and responsibilities in the Company, qualifications, experience, the prevailing market conditions and the
Company's remuneration policy and is subject to annual review by the Board and the remuneration committee of the
Company.
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Mr. Wong Wun Lam (“Mr. Wong”), aged 55, was the chief financial officer and an executive Director of the Company
and resigned with effect from 20 December 2019. He joined the Group on 10 August 2017 as chief financial officer, and
was appointed as an executive director on 11 October 2017. Mr. Wong served as a member of each of the executive
committee, the strategy and investment committee and the pricing committee of the Company. He was also the director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. And he has resigned on 20 December 2019. Mr. Wong obtained a Bachelor of
Commerce degree from the University of Calgary and received a degree of Executive Master of Business Administration
from Kellogg School of Management at the Northwestern University. He is also a Chartered Accountant of Canada. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Wong had more than 29 years of extensive experience in the field of financial management.
He was the Chief Financial Officer of Cargo Services Group and before that, Mr. Wong worked in Royal Philips
Electronics, Jarden Corporation and CLP Power and held senior positions in financial and business management.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Mr. Wong was not entitled any salary for the appointment as executive
Director of the Company but he was entitled to an annual salary of HK$2,600,000 for his role as chief financial officer.
He was also entitled a discretionary bonus. The annual salary and discretionary bonus of Mr. Wong were determined with
reference to his duties and responsibilities in the Company, qualifications, experience, the prevailing market conditions
and the Company’s remuneration policy and was subject to annual review by the Board and the remuneration committee
of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS &3 JEH{T= S

Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam (“Dr. Loke"), aged 70, is an independent non-executive Director. He was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 23 June 2010. Dr. Loke serves as the chairman of the audit committee
and a member of the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the Company. Dr. Loke has over 41
years of experience in accounting and auditing for private and public companies, financial consultancy and corporate
management. He holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Universiti Teknologi Malaysia and a Doctor of
Business Administration degree from University of South Australia. He is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales; Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors; The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director
Association. He currently serves as an independent non-executive director of the following companies whose shares are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange: V1 Group Limited (Stock Code: 82), Matrix Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1005), CIMC-TianDa Holdings Company Limited (formerly known as China Fire Safety Enterprise Group Limited) (Stock
Code: 445), Zhong An Group Limited (formerly known as Zhong An Real Estate Limited) (Stock Code: 672), Tianjin
Development Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 882), Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited (Stock Code: 1619), Forebase
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2310), Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited (Stock
Code: 3626), Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 2882), Zhenro Properties Group Limited
(Stock Code: 6158), TC Orient Lighting Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 515) and TradeGo FinTech Limited (Stock Code:
8017).

Dr. Loke is entitled to a director’s fee of HK$250,000 per annum, which is determined with reference to his duties and
responsibilities in the Company and the market rate for his position as independent non-executive Director and is subject
to annual review by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company.
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Ms. Qian Liping (“Ms. Qian”), aged 42, is an independent non-executive Director. She joined the Group on 24 October
2016. Ms. Qian is a member of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of
the Company. Ms. Qian is currently a professor at the School of Economics and Business Administration in Chongging
University and a managing director of Marketing Committee, Chinese Research Council of Modern Management. She
was also a visiting scholar of the Chinese University of Hong Kong from 2010 to 2011. Ms. Qian has been appointed
as an external review expert of several journals including “Management World”, “Journal of Marketing Science” and
“Nankai Business Review"”, and was awarded “2015 Annual Excellent Review Expert” by “Journal of Marketing Science”.
She has more than 16 years of research experience in B2B Marketing and Marketing Channel Management and has
intimate knowledge of the marketing environment and management mechanism in mainland China. Ms. Qian holds a
doctoral degree in Management from School of Management of Xi‘an Jiaotong University.

Ms. Qian is entitled to a director’s fee of HK$250,000 per annum, which is determined with reference to her duties and
responsibilities in the Company and the market rate for her position as independent non-executive Director and is subject
to annual review by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company.
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Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew (“Mr. Ko"”), aged 69, is an independent non-executive Director. He joined the Group on 19
February 2020. Mr. Ko is the chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company and a member of the audit
committee and the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Ko graduated from the University of Wisconsin-
Madison with a Bachelor’s degree in chemical engineering in 1974, the University of Kentucky with a Master’s degree in
chemical engineering in 1976, and also from Marshall University with a Master of Business Administration in 1982. Mr.
Ko started his career at Dow Chemical Company in 1976 and spent 31 years in various manufacturing and commercial
leadership roles, with his most recent role from 2005 to 2007 as vice president of Greater China, responsible for business
development. He also previously served as director of operations of Greater China, general manager of Greater China,
and also an executive or director of various joint ventures of Dow Chemical Company. In 2007, Mr. Ko joined AEA
Investors, a global private investment firm focused on private equity and debt investments in the middle market, and is
currently a partner and an operating executive.

Mr. Ko is entitled to a director’'s fee of HK$250,000 per annum, which is determined with reference to his duties and
responsibilities in the Company and the market rate for her position as independent non-executive Director and is subject
to annual review by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company.
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Mr. Zhu Hongchao (“Mr. Zhu"), aged 60, was an independent non-executive Director. He joined the Group on 18 April
2018 and resigned with effect from 19 February 2020. Mr. Zhu was the chairman of the remuneration committee of the
Company and a member of the audit committee and the nomination committee of the Company. And he has resigned
on 19 February 2020.

Mr. Zhu is one of the founding partners of Shanghai United Law Firm and a senior lawyer. He possesses a Juris Master
degree obtained from Fudan University and has rich litigation and non-litigation experience in terms of Contract Law,
Law of Torts, Company Law and other legal fields. Mr. Zhu has served as a permanent legal adviser or specially invited
adviser of a large number of state-owned enterprises, Global 500 enterprises and governmental departments for a long
time. As one of the first batch of lawyers with the qualification to practice securities law, he has participated in the
reorganisation and listing of over 40 large Chinese enterprises.

Mr. Zhu is currently the director and senior partner of Shanghai United Law Firm. He also serves as an arbitrator of
China International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission, Shanghai International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission (Shanghai International Arbitration Center) and Shanghai Arbitration Commission, a mediator of Shanghai
Commercial Mediation Center, and a part-time professor of Shanghai University Law School and East China University of
Political Science and Law.

He once served as the third, fourth, fifth and sixth deputy president of All China Lawyers Association, the sixth president
of Shanghai Bar Association and the seventh chief supervisor of Shanghai Bar Association.

He is an independent director of the following companies: Wonders Information Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 300168 (SHE)),
Caitong Fund Management Co., Ltd., Jupai Holdings Limited (Stock Code: JP (NYSE)), and E-House (China) Holdings
Limited and Leju Holdings Limited (Stock Code: LEJU (NYSE)). He is currently an independent non-executive director of
E-House (China) Enterprise Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2048 (HKEX)). He once served as an independent director of
the following companies: Sinochem International Corporation (Stock Code: 600500 (SHA)), Shanghai Guangdian Electric
Group Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 601616 (SHA)) and Tengda Construction Group Co,. Ltd. (Stock Code: 600512 (SHA)).

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and up until his resignation, Mr. Zhu was entitled to a director's fee of
HK$250,000 per annum, which was determined with reference to his duties and responsibilities in the Company and the
market rate for her position as independent non-executive Director and was subject to annual review by the Board and
the remuneration committee of the Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT B4 I8 A B

Mr. Goh Kian Guan (“Mr. Goh"), aged 42, is the vice president, chief investment officer of the Company and general
manager of the investment & development department of the Company. Mr. Goh also serves as a member of the strategy
and investment committee of the Company and he is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He joined the Group
on 1 January 2016. Before joining the Group, Mr. Goh was the managing director for investments at USUM Investment
Group Limited. Prior to USUM Investment Group Limited, Mr. Goh was the head of international merger & acquisition at
an investment firm in Shanghai. Before that, Mr. Goh served in Standard Chartered Corporate Advisory and BNP Paribas
Investment Banking Energy & Commodities team. Prior to his post at investment banking, Mr. Goh was with the strategic
investment team for Singapore Telecom working on merger & acquisition. Mr. Goh has many years of experiences with
both buy-side and sell-side, covering energy, commodities, transportation, telecom-media-technology (TMT) and high
end manufacturing. Prior to that, Mr. Goh spent 6 years as an engineer, working on various projects, including oil fields,
refineries, petrochemical plants, pharmaceutical plants, power plants, oil rigs, real estates and advance equipment
manufacturing, covering technical, commercial and financial management.

Mr. Goh graduated with a Master of Finance degree from the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology of Australia, and
a Bachelor of Engineering in Civil from the Nanyang Technological University of Singapore.
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Ms. Yiu Yi Ting (“Ms. Yiu"), aged 39, is the company secretary of the Company. She joined the Group in May 2017.

Ms. Yiu has worked in corporate secretarial field and corporate trust fields in several listed companies on the Main Board
and GEM of the Stock Exchange, commercial bank and professional firms for over 17 years.

Ms. Yiu graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2011 and was awarded a Master’s Degree in Corporate
Governance. She is an associate member of both The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United
Kingdom and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
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The Directors of the Company have the pleasure in presenting their
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Reporting Period”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance by operating segments for
the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out at in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group on
pages 116 to 117 of this Annual Report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors did not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 is set out in sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 10 to 15 and pages
16 to 31 respectively of this Annual Report which also form part of this
Directors’ Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group has implemented a number of resources conservation
initiatives in its operations and workplaces. It is our strategy to
gradually embed sustainability into our daily management, thus, we
will continue to improve environmental sustainability measures in
all our facilities. During the Reporting Period, we complied with all
relevant environmental regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC that
have a significant impact on the Group’s business. There were no
significant fines and no non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance
with environmental laws and regulations during the year. Details of
the above information will be set out in our environmental, social and
governance report which is scheduled to be published within three
months after the issuance of this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group was not aware of any non-compliance with laws and
regulations during the year ended 31 December 2019 that would
have a significant impact on the Group in relation to issues such as
environmental protection, employment and labour practices, operating
practices and the community.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
EMPLOYEES

Maintaining and consolidating its relationship with customers is crucial
to increasing the profits of the Company. When carrying out business
with customers, the Group has adopted various methods to collect and
report their needs and expectations and taken corresponding measures
for improvement. The results of such measures were reviewed and
feedbacks were provided to the customers. The main duties include
conducting customer satisfaction survey by sending out questionnaires
to have their feedbacks, opinions, suggestions, complaints or praises to
ensure the service quality and to make improvement.

The Group's raw materials are required to be purchased in both
overseas and domestic markets. Maintaining a good relationship with
our scrap metal suppliers is one of the most important task in scrap
metal procurement. In addition, the Group continues to secure a group
of quality scrap suppliers by conducting regular evaluations, so as to lay
a solid foundation for the recycling and dismantling production of the
Group.

The Group is committed to providing equal employment opportunities
without regard to sex, age or nationality, which is in accordance with
anti-discrimination laws. We endeavor to ensure employees are treated
equally within our welfare system and are provided with effective
channels to freely express and communicate their opinions.

Our Group is committed to maintaining the highest standard of ethical
and responsible conduct when conducting business. A group-level
Whistle-blowing Policy is in place to deter corruption or any possible
violation of law or company policy and to promote standards of good
corporate practices.
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CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL IN THE YEAR

Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital in issue during
the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS" INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance with any member of the
Group as the contracting party and in which any of the controlling
shareholders or any of its subsidiaries possessed direct or indirect
substantial interests, and which was still valid as at 31 December 2019
or any time during such year and related to the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)

Mr. Tu Jianhua

Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed with effect from 1 March 2020)

Mr. Wong Wun Lam (Chief Financial Officer)
(resigned with effect from 20 December 2019)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Loke Yu
Ms. Qian Liping
Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew
(appointed with effect from 19 February 2020)
Mr. Zhu Hongchao
(resigned with effect from 19 February 2020)

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, Ms. Qian
Liping shall retire from office and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
under articles 84(1) & (2).

Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan and Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew shall hold office
until the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company pursuant
to article 83(3) and then being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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EFEHRS

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Start Expire Duration of contract
R Elp AHEH
Executive Director Qin Yongming 17 July 2017 N/A (open contract) N/A (open contract)
HTES ZoKH T —tF TER TR
tA+tR (REEEHEH) (BEEEHEH)
Tu Jianhua 29 April 2018 28 April 2021 3 years
REE —T-N\E —F-—& =%
MA-+hE mA-+N\B
Rafael Heinrich Suchan 1 March 2020 29 February 2023 3 years
Rafael Heinrich Suchan “E-TE —EZZF =F
=hA—H —A=tAhR
Independent Non-Executive Directors Loke Yu 24 June 2019 23 June 2022 3 years
BUFRITES Bk —Z-NE —Eo—F =F
AAZ+HmA ARZ+=RH
Qian Liping 24 October 2019 23 October 2022 3 years
BEBY —E-NF kSt -2 =F
+A-+mA +A=+=H8
Ko Frankie Andrew 19 February 2020 18 February 2023 3 years
B —T-ZF —TZ=f =
ZA+AR —R+NB

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has any services contract with the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management are set at
on pages 32 to 42.
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CHANGES OF INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes
in information required to be disclosed by Directors pursuant to
paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules after
the publication of the Interim Report 2019 of the Company are set out
below:

Experience including other directorships

Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam, an independent non-executive Director
of the Company, resigned as an independent non-executive director of
Lamtex Holdings Limited (stock code: 1041) with effect from 23 March
2020.

Disclosure pursuant to Rule 13.51(2)(h)

Mr. Tu Jianhua (“Mr. Tu”), an executive director of the Company,
has received a decision on disciplinary actions (“Decision”) against
Shanghai Fenghua (Group) Co., Ltd. (“"Fenghua”), controlling
shareholder Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Loncin Holdings"”), actual
controller Mr. Tu and responsible persons ([2019] No. 124) ( { L/&:&
FR BT REBRDIRTEE) [2019] 1245%), issued by the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. According to the Decision, funds of Fenghua in the
aggregate amount of RMB480 million were used by its controlling
shareholder (i.e. Loncin Holdings), which constituted occupation of
funds by a controlling shareholder for non-operational purposes. As set
out in the Decision, the Shanghai Stock Exchange had determined that
Mr. Tu (as the actual controller of Fenghua) had used his control over
Fenghua to damage the independence of Fenghua, and violated Articles
1.1, 1.4 and 2.2 of the Notice on Certain Issues and Related Party Funds
Exchanges and Listed Companies’ External Guarantees and Guidelines
for Controlling Shareholders and Actual Controllers of Listed Companies
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. As described in the Decision,
having taken into consideration that Loncin Holdings has returned
the occupied non-operational funds and the related interest, and has
adopted measures to remedy the relevant violations, the Shanghai Stock
Exchange considered imposing lighter disciplinary measures. As such,
the Shanghai Stock Exchange has publicly condemned, among others,
Mr. Tu in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Stock Listing
Rules and the Measures for the Implementation of Disciplinary and
Supervision Measures of the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Report

EFEHRS

DIRECTORS" MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION
TO THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS

Saved as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” on pages 51 to 54 in this Annual Report and Note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business (including
those to which the Company's subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its
parent company was a party) in which a director of the Company or an
entity connected with a Director had material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provide that every Director
shall be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company
against liabilities (to the extent permitted by the Companies Ordinance
(Cap 622)) incurred by him as such Director in the execution of his
duties or otherwise in relation thereto, provided that such indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attach to any such director.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and costs
associated with defending any proceeding which may be brought
against the Directors of the Company.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
on pages 56 to 57 in this Annual Report, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into during the year or which subsisted at the end of the
year.

DIRECTOR’S RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
on pages 56 to 57 of this Annual Report, during the year, none of
the Company, its parent company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings, including the maturity profile, currency
and interest rate structure of the Group are set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company or any of Its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its
existing shareholders.
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Directors’ Report

EFEHRS

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) by reason of their
holding of the shares of the Company.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. As at 31
December 2019, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$3,785.0 million.

DONATIONS

The Group did not make any donations during the Reporting Period.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2019, the Group's largest supplier accounted for 1.6% (2018: 3.0%)
of the total purchases. The five largest suppliers comprised 6.1% (2018:
9.5%) of the total purchases.

Aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers were
less than 25% of total revenue in 2019.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their respective
close associates or any shareholder of the Company (which, to the
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest
suppliers or five largest customers during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the Company's business were entered into or subsisted during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company had
the following connected transaction and continuing connected
transactions:

Sales Framework Agreement

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 11 January
2017, a number of connected transactions were entered into and
carried out between the Company, members of the Group and Loncin
International Limited (“Loncin International”) according to the sales
framework agreement (the “Sales Framework Agreement”) entered
into between the Company and Loncin International on 11 January
2017. Pursuant to the Sales Framework Agreement, Loncin International
purchased and the Company supplied, or procured relevant member(s)
of the Group to supply, certain products to Loncin International for
a term which commenced from 11 January 2017 and ended on 31
December 2019.

The annual caps in respect of the transactions contemplated under the
Sales Framework Agreement for each of the financial years ended 31
December 2017, 2018 and 2019 were US$150.0 million, US$250.0
million and US$350.0 million respectively. The total amount of the
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2019 was US$17.7
million.

Mr. Tu, a Director and controlling shareholder of the Company, holds
98% equity interests in Loncin Group Co., Limited, which in turn
holds 98% equity interests in Loncin Holdings Co., Limited (“Loncin
Holdings”). Loncin International is wholly-owned by Loncin Holdings.
Therefore, Loncin International is a connected person of the Company

under the Listing Rules by virtue of being an associate of Mr. Tu.
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EFEHRS

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Sales Framework Agreement (continued)

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios for the annual
caps in respect of the Sales Framework Agreement exceeded 5%,
accordingly, the Sales Framework Agreement constituted a continuing
connected transaction for the Company and was subject to the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. On 17 February
2017, an extraordinary general meeting of the Company was convened
and the Sales Framework Agreement was duly approved.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 22 January 2020,
the Sales Framework Agreement expired on 31 December 2019,
and the Company and Loncin International entered into a new sales
framework agreement (the “New Agreement”) on 22 January 2020
(which is effective from 22 January 2020 to 31 December 2020),
and set the annual cap for the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the New Agreement for the year ending 31
December 2020. Pursuant to the New Agreement, relevant member(s)
of the Group will continue to supply certain non-ferrous metal products
to Loncin International.

The proposed annual cap in respect of the transactions contemplated
under the New Agreement is US$3,800,000 for the year ending 31
December 2020.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios for the proposed
annual cap in respect of the New Agreement exceeds 0.1% but is less
than 5%, the New Agreement as well as the proposed annual cap for
the continuing connected transactions contemplated thereunder are
subject to reporting, annual review, and announcement requirements
but are exempted from the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For further details,
please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 22 January and
17 February 2020 respectively.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Framework Sale and Purchase Agreement

On 16 October 2018 (after trading hours), Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Metals
Company Limited* (8 NEBE& XS BABRAF), an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a framework sale and
purchase agreement (the “Framework Sale and Purchase Agreement”)
with Chongging USUM Recycling Resources Developments Co., Ltd.*
(ERAEBAERMABAERLQT) ("USUM Recycling”) for a term of
six (6) months commencing from 16 October 2018 regarding the supply
of scrap copper/brass to USUM Recycling for a total consideration of up
to RMB100.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$113.4 million).
There was no transactions made during the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: RMB97.5 million).

USUM Investment Group Hong Kong Limited ("USUMHK"), being
a controlling shareholder of the Company, is a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of USUM Investment Group Limited* A& £ BN A
FR27A]) ("USUM Investment”) which directly holds 100% interest in
USUM Recycling. Accordingly, USUM Recycling is a connected person
of the Company as defined in the Listing Rules and the transactions
contemplated under the Framework Sale and Purchase Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 16
October 2018.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed
by the independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-
executive Directors have confirmed that the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
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EFEHRS

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Framework Sale and Purchase Agreement (continued)

(b)  either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from (as the case may be)
independent third parties;

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole; and

(d)  within the respective cap amounts as disclosed in the previous
announcements in which the relevant continuing connected
transactions were disclosed.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Apart from the aforesaid continuing connected transactions, no other
related party transactions disclosed in Note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements entered into by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2019 constituted connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules. The Company confirms
that it has complied with applicable disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, none of the Directors
(except Mr. Tu Jianhua, details of which are set out below) has interests
in any businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, pursuant to the Listing
Rules:

Directors’ Report

ESERS

BERBFRGFT RS
RBE-2-NF+-A=+-BILEE"
RIE LR BREE ORREL LRI
HFEHIIIT ) )OS B 1 B s KRR
WA F TR BB FNEMEBR R

Description of businesses of the entity hich

Name of entity which businesses are
considered to compete or likely to
compete with the business of the Group
BRARAEEEBBRBRER
THEERHENERRRER

Name of Director the Group

EEpg

are considered to compete or
likely to compete with the business of

Nature of interest of
the Director in the entity

BRARAREEBBAA TR T8
BERAFNEBULSNEROHL

ESRARNEEME

Mr. Tu Jianhua Chongging USUM Recycling Resources
Development Co., Ltd. (“Chongging

Usum”)

According to the business scope as registered
with the State Administration For Industry
& Commerce of the PRC, this entity may

Controlling Shareholder

engage in, inter alia, recycling, processing,
marketing and sale of recycling resources,
scrap metal related businesses.

ERREBLER
REERAR ([2REHE])

REERE

REXPBRRIEIRERRERNEE
BE HERTLE (AFaE) BLERE

BRBR

BomI -EHEREE BESBMERER-

* for identification purposes only

Although the scope of business of Chongging USUM allows it to
engage in businesses that are considered likely to compete with the
business of the Group, Mr. Tu Jianhua reported to the Board that
Chongging USUM is currently only engaged in the disintegration of
automobiles and trading of steel scrap in the PRC, which are neither
the same as nor compete with the businesses of the Group. Further,
Chongging USUM has no intention to engage in businesses that
compete with or are likely to compete with the Group’s businesses.

The Board and management team of the Company and Chongging
USUM do not overlap with each other and are independent of each
other. Therefore, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of
Chongging USUM in which Mr. Tu Jianhua has declared interests.

* ERES
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EFEHRS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 23
June 2010 (the "Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”). The Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme was approved by written resolutions of the shareholders
of the Company and as approved by the listing committee of the Stock
Exchange is valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
23 June 2010. It is a share incentive scheme established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions that the eligible participants have
or may have made to the Group. Pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme, the Board may, as its discretion, offer to grant an option to any
director, employee, advisor, consultant, distributor, contractor, supplier,
customer, agent, business partner, joint venture business partner,
promoter, service provider of any member of the Group.

When the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted on 23 June
2010, the original scheme mandate limit in respect of which share
options could be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was
100,000,000 Shares and it was refreshed during the 2013 extraordinary
general meeting of the Company.

Pursuant to the terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and in
compliance with the provisions in Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules,
the maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all share options to be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme and all other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 161,973,829 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as at
17 February 2017, being the date of the 2017 extraordinary general
meeting (“2017 EGM"), when the scheme mandate limit was last
refreshed.

In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company's shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors of the Company, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date which is
not later than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options.

The subscription price at which a grantee may subscribe for shares on
the exercise of an option under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion at the time
of the grant of relevant option and in any case shall not be less than
the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets on the date of grant; (i) the average
of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets for the five trading dates immediately preceding
the date of grant; or (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

No share options have been granted or outstanding during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

As at the date of this report the total number of securities available
for issue under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme under the refreshed
Scheme mandate limit, and all other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 161,973,829 shares, representing 10.09%
of the total number of Shares of the Company as at the date of this
report.
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EFEHRS

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company or any specified undertaking of the
Company and Its Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code"”), were as follows:

I
EBRIETRABRSATRS  HEAR
0 RS AN R EE O E A
ARPHEERAA

R-B-NF+_A=+—H ARAES
REZTHABRAR B EEAEHEE
(ERR (BHEPEKRD) ([BxEPEK
f511) EEXVER) BBz fn - R RIEEZTHE
RRRIRIERE KA ERHIFE32GRATFE
BB R AP AT RC SR SR IR B AR B B 8 PR
BEMETAEFETESRZINRETH
(MRESTA BEHNEARRREEHARS
FRAERAR (MBI HERIORRMT

Long positions in Shares: REOHNEFRE:
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company
(Note 1)
Total number of AR TRE
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares interested BHBEDL
EEpA B3 REmtE BERBNROEH (M$3E1)
Mr. Tu Jianhua Interest in controlled 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
corporations
REBESRL RREGER 2 #E s (BzE2)
Dr. Loke Yu Beneficial owner 730,000 0.05%
BE g AR £ BB A
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company or any specified undertaking of the
Company and Its Associated Corporations (continued)

Notes:

(1)

(2)

Save

As at 31 December 2019, the total number of issued Shares of the Company was
1,605,152,291 Shares.

The 1,008,885,181 Shares were held by USUM Investment Group Hong Kong Limited
("USUMHK"), a company in which Mr. Tu Jianhua (“Mr. Tu") was indirectly interested.
USUMHK is directly wholly owned by USUM Investment Group Limited (“USUM
Group”), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC. The single largest
shareholder of USUM Group is Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Loncin Holdings”), with
an equity interest in USUM Group of approximately 49.055%. The remaining equity
interests in USUM Group are held by 16 individuals and 28 companies, all of whom
are independent third parties of Loncin Holdings and Mr. Tu, and they each hold
between 0.29% to 10% equity interests in USUM Group. Loncin Holdings is 98%
owned by Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (“Loncin Group”) and 2% owned by Mr. Tu. Loncin
Group is 98% owned by Mr. Tu; 1% owned by Ms. Tu Jianmin and 1% owned by Ms.
Tu Jianrong, both being sisters of Mr. Tu. USUMHK held 1,008,885,181 Shares as at
31 December 2019. Therefore, Mr. Tu was deemed to be interested in the Shares held
by USUMHK pursuant to the SFO.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the

Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests or

short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the

Company or any of its associated corporations which would have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the

SFO),

or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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EFEHRS

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
persons, other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company,
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as

follows:

Long positions in Shares:

Eas KT ()
TERFRAD TR RABREG 0K
KA

RZF-AF+=A=+—R BRAARES
REBIBABSN U TFALRAR AR
RIBRRG PR B RBEES KBS HHIE
3361478 17 B 2 B ac Mok AT aC e as Bk

B
R HEFRE:

Approximate
percentage of
Shareholding in
the Company

Total number of (Note 1)
Shares interested HARATRE
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest BHEEEN BREDL
BREBHHE B, Rty R 17 4EE (MFEE1)
USUM Investment Group Beneficial owner 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
Hong Kong Limited
AR EEE (FB)ERAQA EmR R (FFE2)
USUM Investment Group Limited Interest in controlled 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
corporations
MEREEEROBRAR REZEHNER 2w (FF3E2)
Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
corporations
BEEIERBR QR REEGER 2 = (PfF3E2)
Loncin Group Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
corporations
fEEsEBERAQA REZGER 2w (FfFE2)
Mr. Tu Jianhua Interest in controlled 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
corporations
IRBEE S A MREZEHNER 2w (FF3E2)
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

(continued)

Directors’ Report

ER KR ()

ESERS

FERFRAARD TR R EBER G HIERDR

#E (&)

Approximate
percentage of
Shareholding in
the Company

Total number of (Note 1)
Shares interested (ERNNE)
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest BEREEN BHBES
BREEZRE B B, REmtE IR 17 48 % (HEEE)
FZERERBIRG Interest in controlled 1,008,855,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
ORI BRAR corporations
Pz E RS BART M ESER 2 #a (MfEE2)
ORI BR AR
Baohua United Capital Interest in controlled 1,008,855,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
Management Limited corporations
REBSEEEBERAT MIESER 2 #a (M3E2)
Tai Security Holding Limited Beneficial owner 98,773,990 (Note 3) 6.15%
Tai Security Holding Limited BERBEAA (PfF3E3)
Good Union Hong Kong Beneficial owner 44,700,000 (Note 4) 2.78%
Investment Limited
EEBBEREARRAA EREBA (Mf5E4)
Mr. Zhang Mingjie Interest in controlled 143,473,990 (Notes 3 8.94%
corporations and 4)
SREAZN ST A REIEGER 2 (Mf5E3%4)
Pengda Value Fund SPC (acting for ~ Beneficial owner 93,292,000 (Note 5) 5.81%
and on behalf of DTC SP)
Pengda Value Fund SPC BExEEA (BfF3ES)
(RDTC SPITH)
ELSRREESRAT —B-hEs® 61
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EFEHRS

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions

in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

(continued)

ER KR ()

FERFRARD TR REER G HIERR

xR (&)

Approximate
percentage of
Shareholding in
the Company

Total number of (Note 1)
Shares interested LR ATRE
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest BEREEN BHBES
BREB HHE B, kY B3 EE (MFEE1)
Cinda Asset Management Interest in controlled 93,292,000 (Note 5) 5.81%
(Cayman) Limited corporations
Cinda Asset Management R ESER 2 #a (HI5E5)
(Cayman) Limited
Cinda (BVI) Limited Interest in controlled 93,292,000 (Note 5) 5.81%
corporations
Cinda (BVI) Limited REZESER 2 (MI5E5)
Cinda International Holdings Interest in controlled 93,292,000 (Note 5) 5.81%
Limited corporations
EERBIZERERAA REZEGER 2 = (FfF3ES)
Sinoday Limited Interest in controlled 93,292,000 (Note 5) 5.81%
corporations
Sinoday Limited M ZESER 2 #am (HM$5E5)
China Cinda (HK) Holdings Interest in controlled 93,292,000 (Note 5) 5.81%
Company Limited corporations
FEEE (BB IERBRAA REZEHNER 2w (FF3ES)
China Cinda Asset Management Interest in controlled 93,292,000 (Note 5) 5.81%
Co., Ltd.* corporations
TREZEETEROERAT RIESEE 2 #ER (FfF3ES)
Cinda Securities Co., Ltd Interest in controlled 81,432,000 (Note 5) 5.07%

EEEFRMNAERAF

* For identification purpose only

Chiho Environmental Group Limited

corporations
MREGER 2 #E S
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)
Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes:

(1)

(3)

(4)

5

(6)

As at 31 December 2019, the total number of issued Shares of the Company was
1,605,152,291 Shares.

The 1,008,885,181 Shares were held by USUMHK, a company in which Mr. Tu was
indirectly interested in. USUMHK is directly wholly owned by USUM Group, a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC. The single largest shareholder of USUM
Group is Loncin Holdings, with an equity interest in USUM Group of 49.055%.
The remaining equity interests in USUM Group are held by 16 individuals and 28
companies, all of whom are independent third parties of Loncin Holdings and Mr. Tu,
and they each hold between 0.29% to 10% equity interests in USUM Group. Loncin
Holdings is 98% owned by Loncin Group and 2% owned by Mr. Tu. Loncin Group
is 98% owned by Mr. Tu; 1% owned by Ms. Tu Jianmin and 1% owned by Ms. Tu
Jianrong, both being sisters of Mr. Tu. USUMHK held 1,008,885,181 Shares as at 31
December 2019. Therefore, Mr. Tu was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
USUMHK pursuant to the SFO.

The 98,773,990 Shares were held by Tai Security Holding Limited (“Tai Security”)
as beneficial owner and Tai Security was wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang Mingjie (“Mr.
Zhang") as at 31 December 2019. Therefore, Mr. Zhang was deemed to be interested
in the same number of Shares as held by Tai Security pursuant to the SFO.

The 44,700,000 Shares were held by Good Union Hong Kong Investment Limited
("Good Union") as beneficial owner and Good Union was wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang
as at 31 December 2019. Therefore, Mr. Zhang was deemed to be interested in the
same number of Shares as held by Good Union pursuant to the SFO.

The 93,292,000 Shares were held by Pengda Value Fund SPC (acting for and on
behalf of DTC SP) (“Pengda”) as beneficial owner and Pengda was wholly-owned
by Cinda Asset Management (Cayman) Limited (“Cinda Asset Management”). Cinda
Asset Management was wholly-owned by Cinda (BVI) Limited which was in turn
wholly-owned by Cinda International Holdings Limited (“Cinda International”). Cinda
International was held as to 63% by Sinoday Limited which was wholly-owned by
China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited, which was in turn wholly-owned by
China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. Therefore, China Cinda Asset Management
Co., Ltd, China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited, Sinoday Limited, Cinda
International, Cinda (BVI) Limited and Cinda Asset Management were deemed to be
interested in the same number of Shares as held by Pengda pursuant to the SFO.

The 81,432,000 Shares were held by Pengda Value Fund SPC (acting for and on
behalf of DTC SP) (“Pengda”) as beneficial owner and Pengda was wholly-owned
by Cinda Asset Management (Cayman) Limited (“Cinda Asset Management”). Cinda
Asset Management was wholly-owned by Cinda (BVI) Limited which was in turn
wholly-owned by Cinda International Holdings Limited (“Cinda International”). Cinda
International was held as to 63% by Cinda Securities Co., Ltd. (“Cinda Securities"”).
Therefore, Cinda Securities was deemed to be interested in the same number of
Shares as held by Pengda pursuant to the SFO.
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EFEHRS

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set by the
senior management of the Group based on their performance,
experience, and prevailing industry practices so as to retain competent
employees.

The emolument of the Directors is decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to the
Directors and eligible employees, details of which are set out on page
56 to 57 of this Annual Report.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION BY BAND

The remuneration of the Company'’s senior management by band for
the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out below:

B K ()
EBRIAER ARG RAABRA OERR
®A ()

B EXFTHESN R AEF A= +—
A ARAUTARETAL (AATDEER
FETHA BRI WD TR SRS
oh A RIS 5 B D XV 2 %3
SEHEXREFARBAARABBEER
G0 B 3361 A T I BB R M ARk
CEEY R

S B B
AEENEREEERETEEERORE
ERFIRATERPIRIFMER A RE A
B hiEE -

FHZESREBARANKLERE BEAX
BREBHSBEETEETNHMH-

ARRERABRETENABEERAE
RIEE  FHEFBHN A FRESCES7TH

=AREEABRZFHMAER
BE-F-NF+A=+—ALEEAR
ABRERAR 2 FINERHFIMT ¢

Number of
individuals
A8

Remuneration Band: FrEN AR B
HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 078702 1,000,000/ T 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001% 7t £ 1,500,0007% 7T 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 23,000,000 7T 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T £3,500,000/%8 7T 1
More than HK$3,500,001 3,500,001 T A £ 3
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this Annual
Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float under the Listing Rules throughout the financial
year ended 31 December 2019 and as at the date of this report.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 271 of the annual
report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public
Accountants, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board

Qin Yongming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 12 May 2020
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Corporate Governance Report
TERELBHRS

INTRODUCTION

The Company recognises the importance of maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance. The Company believes that an
effective corporate governance practice is fundamental to enhancing
shareholder value and safeguarding the interests of Shareholders and
other stakeholders. The Board sets appropriate policies and implements
corporate government practices appropriate to the conduct and growth
of the Group's business. The code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the
"CG Code”) have been adopted to shape the Company’s corporate
governance structure. This corporate governance report describes how
the principles of the CG Code have been applied during the year ended
31 December 2019 under different aspects.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognises the importance of corporate transparency
and accountability and is committed to achieving a high standard of
corporate governance. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions of
the CG code and Corporate Governance Report, contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules, with exceptions as explained below:

A.2.1

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. During the year ended 31 December
2019, Mr. Qin Yongming (“Mr. Qin“) held the offices of chairman of
the Board (“Chairman”) and chief executive officer (“CEQ") of the
Company. The Board believed that vesting the roles of both Chairman
and CEO in the same person provides the Company with strong and
consistent leadership and allows for effective and efficient planning
and implementation of business decisions and strategies. Accordingly,
the Directors considered that the deviation from provision A.2.1 of the
Code was appropriate in such circumstance.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE (continued)

Mr. Qin had tendered his resignation as the CEO of the Company with
effect from 1 March 2020 to focus on his other roles in the Group,
but remains as an executive Director of the Company and chairman
of the Board. Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan was appointed as CEO of
the Company with effect from 1 March 2020. Going forward, the
change of the CEO will allow the Company to better comply with the
requirement under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

A.5.5(2)

Pursuant to code provision A.5.5 (2) of the CG Code, where the Board
proposes to elect or re-elect an independent non-executive Director
(who will be holding their seventh (or more) directorship, the Board
should explain why such individual would still be able to devote
sufficient time to the board in the relevant Shareholders’ circular. Dr.
Loke Yu is an independent non-executive director of more than seven
public companies (including the Company) and was re-elected as an
independent non-executive Director at the Company’s annual general
meeting on 31 May 2019. The Company did not make the relevant
disclosure in its circular dated 18 April 2019 in relation to the re-
election of Directors (including Dr. Loke Yu), but subsequently included
the relevant explanation in its interim report for the six months ended
30 June 2019. The Nomination Committee and the Board focus
on the ability of a director to commit sufficient time to discharge
his responsibilities as a board member rather than the number of
directorships held, and as such they were of the view that Dr. Loke
Yu is able to devote sufficient time and attention to the Company’s
affairs having regard to his previous attendance at all Board and other
committee meetings held during the year.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the directors. All Directors have confirmed, following
specific enquiries made by the Company of all such Directors, that they
had complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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TEELORS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report,
the Board comprised three executive Directors (including the Chairman)
and three independent non-executive Directors, whose biographical
details are set out in the “Profile of Directors and Senior Management”
section on page 32 to 42 of this Annual Report, namely:

£
EEEmAM

RAFEHTEMNKEERTTRE EX5g
RER=2HTEE (BRIFE) =28
FEMITESRAE - REZBEFITHRANFR
ERNENE[EXEREREBABEE]| —&

N BFEENERRE:

Date of first Date of last
appointment re-election
to the Board as Director
Name of Director BREZEMA F-REER
ESHE EEEg2HH AESECHH
Executive Director BITES
Qin Yongming (Chairman) KB (EE) 30 June 2016 31 May 2019
—E-RF —E-NF
NA=+H AA=+—H
Tu Jianhua Tu Jianhua 29 April 2015 12 June 2018
RIEEE —E-NF —E-)N\F
mMA—-+hH ~A+=H
Rafael Heinrich Suchan Rafael Heinrich Suchan 1 March 2020 N/A
(Chief Executive Officer) (TR E)
—T-TF i@ A
=H—H
Independent Non-Executive Director BIYFBITES
Loke Yu e S AR 23 June 2010 31 May 2019
—E-ZF —E-NF
NAZ+=H AA=+—H
Qian Liping R 24 October 2016 24 May 2017
—E-RF —E—tF
+A=-+mA FA-+mA
Ko Frankie Andrew = ¥ 58 19 February 2020 N/A
—E-TF i@ B
—A+ANB
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Composition of the Board (continued)

None of the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship) with any
other Director or chief executive.

Roles and responsibilities of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management
of the business and affairs of the Group. The Board meets regularly
to discuss the overall strategies as well as operational and financial
performances of the Group. Certain matters are reserved for decisions
by the Board, including matters relating to: (i) the formulation of the
Group’s overall strategy and directions; (ii) any material conflict of
interest of substantial Shareholders of the Company or Directors; (iii)
approval of the Group’s annual results, annual budgets, interim results
and other significant operational and financial transactions; (iv) changes
to the Company’s capital structure; and (v) major appointments to
the Board. The Board has delegated the day-to-day management,
administration and operation of the Group and implementation and
execution of policies and strategies decided by the Board to the
executive Directors and management of the Company.

The Board is also responsible for performing corporate governance
duties including risk management, internal controls, those under D.3.1
of the Corporate Governance Code and relevant compliance issues
relating to the business operation of the Group.

The Board reviews and monitors the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior managers; develops,
reviews and monitors the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees and Directors.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic
planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of the
Group. The Directors collectively bring a variety of experience and
expertise to the Company.
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EEXEBHRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board meetings and Board practices

All Directors have been given sufficient time and support to understand
the affairs of the Group and they have full and timely access to all
relevant information regarding the Group's affairs and have unrestricted
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary (“the
Company Secretary”). The Directors may seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expenses in carrying out their duties and
responsibilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, 7 Board meetings and
one general meeting of the Company were held. The meetings are
structured to allow open discussion. At the Board meetings, the
Directors participated in discussing the strategies, operational and
financial performance, corporate governance policy and internal control
of the Group.

Set out below is the attendance of the Directors at the Board and
general meetings held during the year:

58 (&)

EXEe3RESZEER
EREECHHRABEESSS  BRASE
B CEHARKEBRARASEEBEZ
FrEMRRERZ —UIHED  EHES AR
& ([2AE]) 22 RRFm A ZEAR
H e EEEBITREMBBERAISRBLER
BER - ERAAAERE-

BE
pallES

—F-AF+-A=t+-BLTEE
ATREERERR—AADARER
HERRLRE R R EE
b EEURSRNRARE RN B

B BB - R AR RS-

o

i Iﬂ@ B P %

ESHENAFERTZEFEERRER
REWIBERFIELAT :

No. of meeting attend/ Eligible to attend
BHE/ RERLESERY

Regular General
Name of Director Board Meeting Meeting
Espg THEZEER REAE
Executive Director YiTES
Qin Yongming FokH 717 1/1
Tu Jianhua REE 717 01
Rafael Heinrich Suchan (appointed with effect from Rafael Heinrich Suchan 0/0 0/0
1 March 2020) (EE_?_?E A—BREZE)
Wong Wun Lam (resigned with effect from BERR (BT -NF+tAZTHRET) 6/7 11
20 December 2019)
Independent Non-Executive Director BUFBITES
Loke Yu Fe 1 717 11
Qian Liping BEY 777 11
Ko Frankie Andrew (appointed with effect from mfmﬁﬁi (HZE-ZF_A+NAREZRAT) 0/0 0/0
19 February 2020)
Zhu Hongchao (resigned with effect from KAB(H-T-TE-ATNAREE) 717 11

19 February 2020)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board meetings and Board practices (continued)

The Company Secretary or the staff of the company secretarial
department of the Company prepared and kept detailed minutes of
each Board meeting and, within a reasonable time after each meeting,
the draft minutes were circulated to all Directors for comment and the
final and approved version of the minutes were sent to all Directors
for their records. The same practices and procedures as used in the
Board meetings had also been adopted and followed for the Board
committees meetings. All the minutes of the meetings recorded
sufficient details of the matters considered and decision reached are
available for inspection by the Directors at anytime.

Notices of Board meetings were given to the Directors at least 14 days
prior to the date of the relevant meeting. Briefing papers were prepared
for all substantive agenda items and were circulated to the Directors at
least three days before each Board meeting. The company secretary is
responsible for providing accurate, timely and clear information to the
Directors prior to the Board meetings so as to ensure that the Directors
are able to make informed decisions regarding the matters to be
discussed in the meeting.

If any of the Directors has a potential conflict of interest in a matter
being considered in the Board meeting, such Director(s) shall abstain
from voting in relation to that particular matter. Independent non-
executive Directors with no conflict of interest in such matters would
be present at the Board meetings to deal with such conflict of interest
issues.

Access to sufficient information of the Group

The management is committed to providing the Board with appropriate
and sufficient explanation and information of the Group’s affairs
through financial reports, business and operational reports and budget
statements, in a timely manner, to enable them to make informed
decisions.

The Directors are also provided with access to the Group’s management
and Company Secretary at all times to obtain relevant information for
carrying out their duties as Directors of the Company.
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EEXEBHRS

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Qin Yongming (“Mr. Qin") took up the
role of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer simultaneously.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Qin Yongming was responsible for
providing leadership of the Board and ensuring that all Directors are
properly informed on issues to be discussed at Board meetings. In
addition, he was responsible for ensuring that all Directors receive, in a
timely manner, adequate, complete and reliable information in relation
to the Group's affairs. The Chairman also encouraged Directors to
actively participate in and to make a full contribution to the Board so
that the Board functions effectively and acts in the best interest of the
Company.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Qin Yongming was also responsible
for the strategic planning, administration and management of the
business of the Group. He was also responsible for the formulation
and successful implementation of Group policies and assuming full
accountability to the Board for all operations of the Group. Mr. Qin
Yongming oversaw the Group’s compliance and internal control matters
and maintains an ongoing dialogue with the Chairman and all Directors
to keep them fully informed of all major business developments and
issues. He had also been focusing on strategic planning and assessment
of mergers and acquisitions opportunities for the Company.

Mr. Qin had tendered his resignation as the CEO of the Company with
effect from 1 March 2020 to focus on his other roles in the Group,
but remains as an executive Director of the Company and chairman
of the Board. Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan was appointed as CEO of
the Company with effect from 1 March 2020. Going forward, the
change of the CEO will allow the Company to better comply with the
requirement under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All independent non-executive Directors were appointed for term of
three years. None of them hold any other offices in the Company or
any its subsidiaries or is interested in any Shares of the Company under
their respective letter of appointment. In the Board meetings and
Board committee meetings held during the year, constructive views and
comments are given by the independent non-executive Directors, who
have provided their independent judgement on the issues relating to
the strategy, performance, conflict of interest and management process
of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were three
independent non-executive Directors, representing more than one-
third of the Board. Among the three independent non-executive
Directors, one of them has the appropriate professional qualifications
in accounting or related financial management expertise as required by
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of its current independent non-
executive Directors a written confirmation of his/her independence and
the Board considers all of them, namely Dr. Loke Yu, Ms. Qian Liping
and Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew, to be independent pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.
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EEXEBHRS

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Yiu plays an important role in supporting the Board by ensuring
efficient and effective information flow within the Board and that the
Board's policy and procedures are followed.

The Company Secretary has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs. The Company Secretary reports to the Board through the
Chairman and CEO. All Directors may have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary who regularly updates the Board on
governance and regulatory matters and facilitates the induction and
professional development of the Directors.

The Company Secretary is also responsible for ensuring the procedures
of the Board meetings are observed and providing the Board with
opinions on matters in relation to the compliance with the procedures
of the Board meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company Secretary
had received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The Board is fully involved in the selection and appointment of the
Company Secretary.
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EEEOWRS
BOARD COMMITTEES EELET
To assist the Board in the execution of its duties, the Board has ZEFEBRAANEZEFZEE (NTEEE B
delegated specific functions to six Board committees, namely ZEE REXZE® FHEZEEE BKHERK
the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination ZBZEE@RFEZE®)ZRIEERE NUiHB
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Strategy and Investment ~ B/EFZ&#ITRIS  FHIEHIIM T -
Committee and the Pricing Committee, details of which are as follows:
Strategy and
Executive Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration Investment Pricing
Name of Director Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
B
g #7%8g ENEEE REZEE FMzEE REZEE EEZER
Executive Director YTES
Tu Jianhua REE M M
Qin Yongming KA C C C C
Rafael Heinrich Suchan Rafael Heinrich Suchan M M M
(appointed with effect from (RZZZZF
1 March 2020) ZR—BREZM)
Wong Wun Lam AR (AZE-NF M M M
(resigned with effect from +ZA=t+AE
20 December 2019) BHE)
Independent BYFYTES
Non-Executive Director
Loke Yu e K C M M
Qian Liping BB M M M
Ko Fankie Andrew =i (A5 =TF M M C
(appointed with effect from ZRAThB#
19 February 2020) EZ{E)
Zhu Hongchao KEB(RZZZTF M M C
(resigned with effect from ZAThBRET)
19 February 2020)
* C - Chairman & C—%JF
M - Member M—k 8
E Other members of the pricing committee are certain senior management of the g EEZEGHMKERAARETEREERAE
Company.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board established the Executive Committee in March 2011 with
written terms of reference, which is responsible for the management
and administration of the business of the Company and any matters
which are within the ordinary course of the Company’s business under
the control and supervision of the Board and in accordance with the
provisions of the terms of reference of the Executive Committee for
ensuring a high standard of corporate governance and compliance
of the Company. The written terms of reference of the Executive
Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company's website.
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TEEELOHS

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (continued)

The Board delegated certain corporate governance functions to the
Executive Committee, which develops and reviews the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and makes
recommendations to the Board; reviews and monitors (i) the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company; (i) compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; and (iii) the code of conduct and Model Code applicable
to the Directors or employees.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director is provided with information and
a comprehensive induction to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well
as his/her responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and
regulations.

Development and training of Directors is an ongoing process to ensure
that they can perform their duties appropriately. During the year ended
31 December 2019, all Directors were provided with regular updates
on the Company's performance, position and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In
addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that they continue to make contribution to the Board in
an informed and relevant manner. The Company updates Directors on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (continued)

Directors’ Training and Professional Development
(continued)

The training received by the Directors during the year ended 31
December 2019 is summarized as follows:
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HITEREE (B)
EERIIREXRER (H)

BEER#EC
ERTER 215

—hFE+ZA=+—RHLF
aJIHE%zzZZDT-

Directors Types of training
= I E R
Tu Jianhua R B
Qin Yongming Z= KA B
Rafael Heinrich Suchan Rafael Heinrich Suchan

(appointed with effect from 1 March 2020) (A -_ZF=A—HEEZE) -
Wong Wun Lam (resigned with effect from EHR(HZE-NFTZAZ+HRBET)

20 December 2019) A, B
Loke Yu e 8 AR A, B
Qian Liping BEY A, B
Ko Frankie Andrew = o 5

(appointed with effect from 19 February 2020) (AZZE_ZEF_ATHhBREZE) -
Zhu Hongchao (resigned with effect from KAB(BZTEZFTF_A+NAEET)

19 February 2020) A, B

A - attending seminars/conferences/forums/briefings/workshops relevant to the business
of the Group or Director’s duties

B — reading articles relevant to corporate governance, regulatory updates and Directors’
duties and responsibilities

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in June 2010 with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a set of the revised
terms of reference of the Audit Committee on 15 December 2015,
which has included changes in line with the amendments to the Main
Board Listing Rules relating to the risk management and internal
control section of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report which has come into effect for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The written terms of reference
of the Audit Committee are available on the Stock Exchange's website
and the Company’s website. The Audit Committee has established a
whistleblowing policy of the Company in December 2012 and set out
the procedures on reporting possible improprieties in financial reporting
matters of the Company.
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EEEOHRS

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include monitoring the
integrity of the financial statements of the Company, reviewing the
effectiveness of Company’s internal control (including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company's
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programs
and budget) and risk management systems as delegated by the Board,

EnEee (B)
EREEC Y TERBAEEEALNTANE

BREDTELH REFSREBTARA

ZAREE (BRERTRME ARAGHE
MBERBBAE R T2 BF MG RIAREE
AEINTRE) RERERSIE 2K LE
BN BEMETTER KPR RRBAES

and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment B{EHIEBER BEREZETRREMHARER
and engagement of the external auditor for the audit and non-audit ABITHEEBE -
services. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
enabling it to discharge its duties.
Members of the Audit Committee and the attendance of each member BEZZEE@KEREKE 2 HEBRAT :
are as follows:
Role in Meetings Attended/
Name of Director Position Audit Committee  Eligible to Attend
gt/
Exns B RERZEECHE FERLESERY
Loke Yu Independent non-executive Director Chairman 2/2
e g BUFRITES £
Qian Liping Independent non-executive Director Member 212
BB BUFNTES &
Ko Frankie Andrew (appointed with effect from Independent non-executive Director
19 February 2020) Member 0/0
®ing (R-Z-_2F-_ATNBREZRE) BUFRTESR &
Zhu Hongchao (resigned with effect from Independent non-executive Director
19 February 2020) Member 212
Ft# (B_T_TF_ATNBREE) BUFRITES B8
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee HZE-ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILFE FZ
reviewed, together with the management, the annual results, interim ZE@EREREENEEZEFSHENS

results and related announcements including the disclosures, financial
reporting and the accounting policies adopted by the Group prior to
the submission to the Board’s approval; discussed with management
on significant judgements affecting Group’s consolidated financial
statements and approved the appointment of auditor; reviewed and
discussed the internal control report; reviewed and assessed the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’ internal control and risk
management; and reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness during the audit
process.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group on a
going concern basis. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company's
annual results and consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019. The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment in annual/
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had engaged the
Group’s external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"), to provide
the following services and their respective fees charged are set out as
below:
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Type of services PR 75 3 Bl
Audit services EE RS 26.1
Non-audit services AR 6.6
Total waEt 32.7

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had also engaged
other auditors to provide audit services and non-audit services to
certain subsidiaries of the Group and the aggregated fees charged were
HK$ 1.4 million and HK$0.7 million respectively.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)
Board’s Responsibilities for the Accounts

The Board is responsible for the preparation of accounts for each
financial period, which gives a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period.
In preparing these accounts for the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable, and has prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all
information and representations contained in the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flow for that period. The Directors consider that the financial
statements have been prepared in conformity with all appropriate
accounting standards and requirements and reflect amounts that are
based on the best estimates and reasonable, informed and prudent
judgement of the Board and the management. The Directors are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared
the financial statements of the Company on a going concern basis.

The statements of the auditor of the Group about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
section headed

“Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 108 of this

Annual Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing and
supervising the financial reporting process, risk management and
internal control procedures of the Group and nominating and
monitoring external auditors. In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules, the chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the
appropriate professional and accounting qualifications.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established in June 2010 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a set
of the revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee on
15 August 2013. The written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the Stock Exchange's website and the
Company's website.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include:

1. formulating the nomination policy for consideration by the Board
and implement the nomination policy laid down by the Board;

2. reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; and

3. identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises Mr. Qin Yongming,
Executive Director, and Dr. Loke Yu, Ms. Qian Liping and Mr. Ko Frankie
Andrew, Independent Non-Executive Directors, and is chaired by Mr. Qin
Yongming.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Nomination Committee convened one meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2019 with the attendance of each member as
follows:

REZEENEE_Z-NF+A=+—
AIEFERBR—REH SKELFEERN

Role in Meetings
Nomination Attended/
Name of Directors Position Committee  Eligible to Attend
Bt/
EEpg B EREZEEBEZHE FERLEESERY
Qin Yongming Executive Director Chairman 17
FokH HITES TR
Loke Yu Independent non-executive Director Member "
Fe g BUFRTESR &
Qian Liping Independent non-executive Director Member 171
BB BUFNTES &
Ko Frankie Andrew (appointed with effect from Independent non-executive Director
19 February 2020) Member 0/0
whnd (BT FF_ATNAREZMT) BAUFNMTES %8
Zhu Hongchao (resigned with effect from Independent non-executive Director
19 February 2020) Member "
FEE(RZZRF-ATNAREE) BUFNTES &

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination
Committee has reviewed and discussed the composition, size and
structure of the Board, the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and re-election of Directors.

In considering the nomination of new directors, the Company will
propose the candidates to the Nomination Committee, which will
review and make recommendation to the Board on the expertise, skills
and experience of the candidates appropriate to the requirements of
the business of the Company.

The composition of the Board has a significant element of diversity,

in terms of skills, regional and industry experience, background and
gender.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)
Board Diversity Policy

The Company has established a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 15 August 2013 which sets out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Board sets measurable objectives to implement the Board Diversity
Policy and reviews such objectives from time to time to ensure their
appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards achieving
those objectives. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Nomination Committee considered the age, education background and
working experience of the candidates when selecting the executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in June 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on, among other things, the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all directors and senior
management of the Company, and the remuneration packages for all
executive Directors and senior management of the Company.

The remuneration for the executive Directors comprises basic salary,
allowance and discretionary bonus.

Salary adjustments are made where the Remuneration Committee
takes into account performance, contribution and responsibilities of the
individual. Apart from basic salary, executive Directors and employees
are eligible to receive a discretionary bonus taking into account
factors such as market conditions as well as corporate and individual's
performance during the year.

The following table illustrates the elements of remuneration of
executive Directors and senior management.

8%

HE 8
ARAREERETRANMEE NS EERE
BTAR-_ZE-—TFENARITFHNEZE S
WATREERBAZHE - FMEZ B S mBE
0 [E] 0Bk 32 P 48 Uk e AR 2 R A8 vt AT B B o

YRR AEMN (ERPEE)ARREHE
MEEERRRERBHFIMBRIIE UK
ARRERATESTRSAERE ZHNE
MRAESgRHEEBZS-

HITEZNHFMeREERT S RERBBETE
ATHE -

FMEZ B EREARER BERIRBE ML
FMRE - REBRRAFREZTRARBER
BEARR ATEZREEREAFHEINMTE
BN BIEAL -
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Remuneration Purpose Reward Policy details
e B 40 PR
Basic salary To reflect the market value of Cash payment monthly Reviewed annually

each individual with market trend
EXHe RBEEAZTSEE BRABE MR BFERMSBBIELH R
Allowance To attract and retain employees Reimbursement Market conditions
==Bh Wal Rk EES e Mmi51ER

Discretionary
performance bonus

To motivate employees to deliver
high levels of performance of
the Company and individual
performance goals

HENEE AR FEL R/KER
RIBAREKEARIRBIE

BB RBEIEL BEfR
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EEELRS
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued) TMEE = (8)
The following table shows the breakdown of the Directors’ TRIIFREFHE-ZT-NF+-_A=+—
remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2019: BIEFE &M BEDH:
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and Performance scheme Other
Fees  allowances bonus  contributions benefits Total
BARER
Be  HeREE KRR AR 2 EF @it
(Note (a))
(BizE@)
Year Ended 31 December 2019: BE-E-AE+t-A=t-HLEE:
Executive Directors BES
Mr. Tu Jianhua RRERE - 26 35 - - 6.1
Mr. Qin Yongming FXBEE - 5.2 40 - 07 99
Rafael Heinrich Suchan Rafael Heinrich Suchan
(appointed with effect from 1 March 2020) (H-Z-EF=f-BHEZA) - - - - - -
Mr. Wong Wun Lam (resigned with ERRAA(RZE-NF
effect from 20 December 2019) +-A-tBEHT) = 30 = = = 30
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFYTES
Dr. Loke Yu BEMEL 03 - - - - 03
Ms. Qian Liping BERLT 03 - - - = 03
Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew (appointed with mhakE(B-5-%F
effect from 19 February 2020) ZRThBREEAE) - - - - - -
Mr. Zhu Hongchao (resigned with FEREE(B-S-FF
effect from (19 February 2020) ZAthBERT) 03 - - - - 03

Note a: During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company made contributions to ~ fiita: HEZZ—-NF+-A=+—HLFE ARA

the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for Mr. Tu Jianhua, Mr. Qin DRIARREESE RKAEERERREER
Yongming and Mr. Wong Wun Lam of HK$18,000, HK$18,000 and HK$18,000 BRI AT S 58I E B #13%18,0007% 7T
respectively (2018:HK$18,000, HK$18,000 and HK$18,000 respectively). 18,0007 7T &2 18,0008 T (=T — NF: D5l A

18,0007 7T * 18,0007 7T 518,000/ 7T )
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration
Committee held two meetings. The Remuneration Committee
determined the policy for the remuneration of executive Directors,
made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of directors
and assessed the performance of the executive Directors. Members of
the Remuneration Committee and the attendance of each member are

as follows:
Name of Director Position
EEps Bz

~

s B

Z8€ (&)

RBE-F-NF+_A=T—HLFERN"

FHEZEeHERMAEH FHEEEER

%ﬂﬁé%Z TR REEFEERE

JE

S

SEHEBE R RFIZATERNRE - F
EREZREREREREHERBMT
Role in Meetings
Remuneration Attended/
Committee  Eligible to Attend
EFEMEES it/

2B SERHFEEERY

Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew (appointed with effect from Independent non-executive Director
19 February 2020)
BhEEE (B-T-_SF_ATtNBREZAE) BUFNITES

Dr. Loke Yu Independent non-executive Director
BEEMmE L BUFSTES
Ms. Qian Liping Independent non-executive Director
ERT AL BUFRITES
Mr. Zhu Hongchao (resigned with effect from Independent non-executive Director

19 February 2020)
AL (B-Z-ZF_ATABRET) BUFNTES

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration
Committee has discussed and recommended to the Board for approval
of the Directors’ and senior managements’ remuneration of the Group
for the year of 2019, and the bonus payments to the Directors and
senior management.
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STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

In order to cope with the Group’s development needs, enhance
scientific planning and decision-making, promote the effectiveness
of material investment decision-makings and improve the corporate
governance structure of the Group, the Company established the
Strategy and Investment Committee in December 2015. The written
terms of reference of the Strategy and Investment Committee have
been subsequently adopted on 2 February 2016 and are available on
the Company's website.

The principal functions and responsibilities of the Strategy and
Investment Committee are to (i) study on the development strategies
and planning; and (i) advise on the decision-makings on material
investments and capital operation of the Company.

The duties of the Strategy and Investment Committee include the
following aspects:

(i) to act as a delegate for the Board generally;

(i) to make decisions and pass resolutions, and to exercise all powers
of the Board on all matters of the Company in relation to its daily
operations and investment activities, including any non-connected
transaction if the applicable percentage ratios calculated under
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules less than 5%; and

(iii)  to make recommendations to the Board concerning matters
of corporate significance not otherwise dealt by any other
committees of the Board, recommendations must be submitted
to the Board for approval in respect of all transactions if the
applicable percentage ratios calculated under Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules equal to or are more than 5%.
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EXEBWS
STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE BREREZEE (B)

(continued)

Notwithstanding that the Strategy and Investment Committee is BEEMEKEZSS@ERUAAINEE
entitled to exercise all powers of the Board on all matters of the if’ﬁ&&ﬁ/ﬁ@]E’Jﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ@i*ﬂ%%@

Company in relation to its daily operations and investment activities, — #1 * {EAR IR EE 22 P e RISl 45 DLEE
recommendations must be submitted to the Board for approval for R EMR5%HIAERS E\'Jbéﬁﬁx #T
all transactions with a percentage ratio equal to or higher than 5% =g

according to the testing result of the Stock Exchange.

The Strategy and Investment Committee currently consists of Mr. Qin B EREZ S8 FREARKBEE RE
Yongming, Mr. Tu Jianhua, Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan, and Mr. Goh  ZEJE4 - Rafael Heinrich Suchan’t 4 K& = 2R
Kian Guan and is chaired by Mr. Qin Yongming. Mr. Rafael Heinrich R4 - ZRKBASEAE B ENFE © Rafael Heinrich
Suchan was appointed as a member of the Strategy and Investment ~ SuchanfEER —ZE_TF=HA - HEZHER

Committee on 1 March 2020. BRmEICELZEENE -
STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE —E— ﬂi@k B ELZEESR
MEETINGS ATTENDANCE 2019 Z BFEES
Role in
Strategy and Meetings
Investment Attended/
Name of Committee members Position Committee  Eligible to Attend
EEKERE BiHE/
ZERREHRE B ZEEBZHE RERLEEIRY
Qin Yongming Executive Director Chairman 0/0
Z Kk HTES £
Tu Jianhua Executive Director Member 0/0
REE HOTES 8
Goh Kian Guan Chief Investment Officer Member 0/0
RER BRRET B8
Rafael Heinrich Suchan (appointed with Executive Director Member 0/0
effect from 1 March 2020)
Rafael Heinrich Suchan (=S -Z5=A—HAREZHE) H11EZ 8
Wong Wun Lam (resigned with Executive Director Member 0/0
effect from 20 December 2019)
BEAR(A-E-NETAZTHERE) HTES B8
William Thomas Bird (resigned with Chief Operating Officer Member 0/0
effect from 24 October 2019)
William Thomas Bird (E=Z—NFT+AZTHAKLET) HFELEER &
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PRICING COMMITTEE

The Pricing Committee, which currently comprises Mr. Qin Yongming,
Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan and Mr. Udo Langhans and is chaired
by Mr. Qin Yongming, has been established and delegated with the
operations of the Group’s policy regarding dealings in metal futures
contracts (the “Policy”). It determines the range of metal futures
contracts that the Group may enter into during the month. On a daily
basis, the Pricing Committee reviews the open positions of the Group
and determines (i) the offer and sell price of our physical stock and
our hedging requirements; (ii) the quantity and the price of the metal
futures contracts that the Group is going to buy or sell; (iii) enhance
the risk management of commodity price fluctuations and to ensure an
effective risk monitoring system.

The Board receives a report from the Pricing Committee on the Group's
metal futures activities carried out. Should the Pricing Committee
determine that any positions are to be taken, it must inform the Board
and provide supporting reasons in its report. In addition, the Company’s
finance department assesses and reports to the Board on the open
positions of the Group based on the Group's cash position.

In the event the report from the Company's finance department
demonstrates that the Group is not in strict compliance with the
hedging limit and the daily limit, the Group will put in place and
implement a plan to decrease the open positions of the Group within a
reasonable time in order to comply with the limits.

Following a review of the current business operations, internal controls,
risk management and policies and practices regarding dealings in metal
futures contracts of the Group, on 7 March 2018, the Board adopted a
commodity price risk hedging policy which the Board believes is more
suitable for the current operating conditions of the Group.
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PRICING COMMITTEE (continued)

The Pricing Committee convened eight meetings during the year ended
31 December 2019 with the attendance of each member as follows:

Role in Meetings Attended/

Pricing Committee  Eligible to Attend
EEBERE giiE,/
2B RERLREEERY

Name of Committee members Position
ZEBHAERS B

Qin Yongming Executive Director
FKH HITEZ

Wong Wun Lam (resigned with effect from Executive Director
20 December 2019

ERR(B-S-NF TR THREE)

William Thomas Bird (resigned with effect from
24 October 2019)

William Thomas Bird (B=Z—NETA-TNALEHT) EFEER

Udo Langhans

Udo Langhans

HITEE
Chief Operating Officer

BmEREELE

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2019, the Pricing Committee
has reviewed the Group’s monthly physical stock price and commodities
transactions. The Pricing Committee held review meetings with the
Board of Directors in 2019 to review and discuss the Pricing Committee
Report. In the review meetings, the Pricing Committee and the Board
of Directors reviewed and discussed the Group’s commodity future
contracts’ exposure level, the corresponding procurement and inventory
management strategy of each quarter in 2019, and reviewed the
Group'’s Policy regarding dealings in metal futures contracts.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Responsibility of the Board and management

The Board is responsible for overseeing and ensuring the Group
has established and maintained an appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems, including reviewing their
effectiveness where as management is responsible for the design and
implementation of the risk management and internal control systems.

The Company leverages on the expertise offered by internal and
external professionals to develop its internal control system, which
includes a well-established corporate structure and an organisation with
clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems are designed
to assist the Group in meeting its strategic objectives. These systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk Management Framework

The Group has established an Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM")
framework to assist the Group in managing its risks. The Group’'s ERM
framework includes the following key elements:

(1) Risk Identification — A Risk Universe fits for the Group's business
model has been established. Relevant risks faced by the Group
have been identified and the risks are classified into four types,
namely, strategic, operational, financial reporting and compliance
Risk;

(2)  Risk Assessment — A Risk Workshop amongst key management
members was conducted to assess and priorities the risks of
the Group. The risks are assessed in terms of the likelihood of
their occurrence and the significance of their impact by the key
management of the Group;

(3) Risk Mitigation — A Risk Owner is assigned to each key risk
identified. Each Risk Owner is responsible for the risk assigned.
Risk mitigation actions are tailored and established to address the
risks; and
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EEXEBHRS

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Risk Management Framework (continued)

(4)  Risk Monitoring and Reporting — Risk Owner is responsible for
ensuring the risk mitigation plan is executed and implemented
properly by appropriate parties (e.g. with appropriate measures/
adequate policies and procedures in place).
has a role to evaluate and assess if the risk mitigation plans
are designed and operated effectively by management. The
development and the status of the ERM program is reported to
the Audit Committee on a regularly basis.

Internal Audit

The implementation of the Group’s ERM framework was assisted by
management, the Group’s Pricing Committee, Strategy and Investment
Committee and Internal Audit Department. These framework and setup
enables the Group to ensure any new and emerging risk relevant to the
Group’s operation is promptly identified and managed.

Internal Audit

The Group’s Internal Audit Department is to provide independent
assurance to the Board and executive management on the adequacy
and effectiveness of risk management and internal controls for the
Group. The Group's Internal Audit Department adopts a risk-and-
control based audit approach. The annual work plan of the Group's
Internal Audit Department covers major activities and processes of
the Group's business units whilst audit plan is reviewed and agreed
by the Audit Committee.
work, the Group's Internal Audit Department conducts other review
and investigative work as may be required. All audit reports are
communicated to the Audit Committee and key members of executive
and senior management. Audit issues are tracked and followed up for
proper implementation, with progress reported to the Audit Committee,

In addition to the agreed schedule of

executive and senior management periodically. The risk management
and internal control system of the Group is reviewed and assessed
on an on-going basis by the Executive Directors, and will be further
reviewed and assessed at least once each year by the Audit Committee
and the Board.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Effectiveness

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted an annual
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2019,
covering the material financial, operational and compliance controls,
and considered the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems effective and adequate.

The Audit Committee has also conducted an annual review of the
adequacy of resources, qualifications, experience and training programs
of the Group's internal audit staff and accounting and financial
reporting staff and considered that the staffing is adequate and the
staffs are competent to carry out their roles and responsibilities.

(@) The Board shall be ultimately responsible for ensuring that
adequate and effective systems are present to maintain
compliance with the continuous disclosure obligations of the
Company.

(b)  The Board shall delegate the routine oversight of the Company's
disclosure obligations to the Disclosure Team, which is responsible
for:

(i)  ensuring proper systems and controls are in place to collect,
review and verify potential Inside Information;

(i) reviewing potential Inside Information and deciding which
information must be disclosed;

(i) deciding whether the Company may delay publication of

Inside Information;

(iv) vetting and clearing announcements or other public

disclosures (such as presentation materials for analysts’

meetings);
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Effectiveness (continued)

(b)  (continued)

(v)  deciding whether other action, such as the seeking of
suspension of trading pending clarification of uncertainties,
as may be necessary;

(vi)  keeping proper records of all the information received and
decisions made;

(vii) where necessary, engaging financial, legal or other advisers
to assist the Disclosure Team to carry out its duties;

(viii)

ensuring that employees are educated on the policy and
internal reporting process;

(ix)  supervising the Company’s compliance with continuous
disclosure obligations; and

(x)  establishing periodic financial reporting procedures so that
key financial and operating data is identified and escalated

in a structured and timely manner.

(c)  The Disclosure Team comprises the following members or their
delegates:

(i) Executive Directors;
(i) Chief Financial Officer; and

(iii)  Other members as the Board may designate from time to
time.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Effectiveness (continued)

As soon as the staff become aware of the potential inside information,
they must immediately report to their respective disclosure officers. The
respective disclosure officers will report to Responsible Director of the
Disclosure Team in writing. The report (the “Report”) must be sent to
the Responsible Director by hand or email and marked “Private and
Confidential” on the cover. The Report should set out details of the
inside information including:

(@)  a general description of the matter;
(b)  the name(s) of the party(ies) involved;
(¢)  the relevant date(s) of the event(s) or transaction(s);

(d) the status of the matter (e.g. negotiations still in progress/
preliminary negotiations/final stage)

(e)  the amount and other major term(s) involved; and

(f)  if applicable, the Report should also attach the draft agreement
to be entered into by any member of the Group as well as any
other document which may be of relevance.

Upon receipt of the Report, the Responsible Director shall, forward the
Report with relevant materials to the Disclosure Team. The Disclosure
Team shall then conduct preliminary assessment of the information
received, and after consultation with the relevant professional advisers
of the Company and then report to the Board of Directors.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication policy
(the "Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) in March 2012 for
setting out the policies, communication strategies and practices
of the Company for communication with its shareholders. The
Shareholders’ Communication Policy enables the Shareholders to obtain
comprehensive and plain information of the Company, to exercise their
powers on an informed basis and to strengthen their communication
with the Company.

The Company has established and maintained a dialogue with
Shareholders by conveying information to the Shareholders and
investors through the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual
reports); annual general meeting and other meetings that may be held;
and all the information submitted to the Stock Exchange for disclosure,
as well as corporate communications and other publications which shall
be posted on the website of the Company.

The Company undertakes to convey information to the Shareholders
and investors in a timely and effective manner at all times. If there are
any questions about the Shareholders’ Communication Policy, it shall be
delivered to the Company Secretary or the Head of Investor Relations
Department of the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(continued)

Dividend Policy

The Company may declare and pay dividends to the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) by way of cash or by other means
that the Board considers appropriate. It is the policy of the Board, in
recommending dividends, to allow the Shareholders to participate in
the Company's profits, and at the same time, to ensure the Company
to retain adequate reserves for future growth. The Company’s decision
to declare or to pay any dividends in the future, and the amount of
such dividends will depend upon, among other things, the current and
future operations, financial condition, liquidity position and capital
requirements of the Group, as well as dividends received from the
Company's subsidiaries and associates, which in turn will depend
on the ability of those subsidiaries and associates to pay a dividend.
In addition, any final dividends for a financial year will be subject to
the approval of the Shareholders. The declaration and payment of
dividends by the Company is also subject to any restrictions under the
laws of Bermuda, the laws of Hong Kong, the Company’s articles of
association, bye-laws and any applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Whilst this Dividend Policy reflects the Board’s current views on the
financial and cash-flow position of the Group, the Board will continue
to review this Dividend Policy from time to time and the Board may
exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify this Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.
There is no assurance that dividends will be declared or paid in any
particular amount for any given period. The Dividend Policy shall in no
way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company that any
dividend will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate
the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Shareholders general enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited.

Shareholders and the investment community may at any time make a
request for the Company’s information to the extent such information is
publicly available.
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EEXEBHRS

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)
Procedures for putting forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time forward enquires to the Board in writing
through the Company Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the
Board for handling. The contact details of the Company Secretary are as
follows:

The Company Secretary

48 Wang Lok Street

Yuen Long Industrial Estate
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2587 7799
Email Address: ComSec@chihogroup.com

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings

Subject to the provisions of the articles of association of the Company
("Articles of Association”), the Listing Rules and the applicable laws
and regulations, Shareholders may convene general meetings of the
Company in accordance with the following procedures:

1. One or more Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company (the Requisitionist(s)”) may require the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company (an
"EGM") by depositing a written requisition (the “Requisition”) at
the registered office of the Company at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and a copy thereof at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at 48 Wang Lok Street, Yuen Long
Industrial Estate, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Board or
the Company Secretary.

2. The Requisition must clearly state the name(s) and shareholding in
the Company of the Requisitionist(s), specify the purposes of the
EGM and the details of the business proposed to be transacted in
the EGM and be signed by the Requisitionist(s) and may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
the Requisitionists.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued) PRERHER (48)

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General BRRBEARRAS2Z2EF (#)
Meetings (continued)

3. Upon receipt of the Requisition, the Directors shall verify the 3. WEIFERER FEREERREZKRH

Requisition with the Company's branch share registrar and upon BRIEREZRRKE URERZS
this confirmation that the Requisition is proper and in order, shall KERLERBEER- F’?f_LEUIET7j F'fﬂ
forthwith proceed duly to convene the EGM, and such EGM REERIARE  ZREIFIARSER
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of the RERXRRERMQMEARET-
Requisition.

4. If the Directors do not within twenty-one (21) days from the date 4. fHEXBFRER -+ —QNERN EF

of the deposit of the Requisition proceed duly to convene the ARERXBRABRRENARE - AIFE KA
EGM, the Requisitionist(s), may himself or themselves convene the BENAREAFXNBRABREFNARE M
EGM in the same manner and all reasonable expenses incurred by ERAREZEREGARRRERIRE
the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be MEBEE AR BRARTME
reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company. SRAVEHER

5.  Under the Articles of Association and pursuant to the 5.  IREABKEERMANNL EHRRAZAE -

requirements of the Listing Rules, a notice specifying the time — D R EAR A - b Bh Ko 0 AR R B K
and place and the general nature of the proposed business to be FrREBEHE —RIEBE 2 BEER
transacted at the EGM shall be given to all Shareholders entitled RIAT AR AMB AL RERRSRIKR
to attend the EGM for consideration in the following manner: B2RREL  AREER:

() notice of not less than 21 clear days or 10 clear business )y (WERKRERIAS EEBET
days, whichever is the longer, if a special resolution is to be ARERBABHTOR21EE
passed at the EGM; and FI0ETEEEAHBE (UK

RERE) K

(i) notice of not less than 14 clear days or 10 clear business iy RABHEMBEILT BABELETD
days, whichever is the longer, in all other cases, provided R4 B SI0ETEZE BB
that a EGM may be called by a shorter notice if it is so HEARRERE) HEWNEXRS
agreed by a majority in number of the Shareholders having HERLERREFINAGERE
the right to attend and vote at the EGM, being a majority FTERERIBRR (ZRZER
together holding not less than 95% in nominal value of the ERBETLORE TZENZ
issued shares of the Company giving such right. RARBEITRG ZEEIS%)

2 - B AT ABE B H 3R & A B
RREFRIARE

The notice period is exclusive of (i) the day on which the notice BERTEFE(BSRENFERRE

is served or deemed to be served; and (i) the day on which the EH: RHBITRERSHIAGEEH
EGM is to be held.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Make Proposals at
General Meetings

Subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Listing
Rules and the applicable laws and regulations, Shareholders may
propose a resolution at general meetings of the Company by following
the "“Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General Meetings” to
convene an extraordinary general meeting and propose a resolution
to be resolved at that extraordinary general meeting. Please refer to
the document titled “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings” on the Company'’s website.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

Subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Listing Rules
and the applicable laws and regulations, the Company may from time
to time in general meeting by ordinary resolution elect any person to be
a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional Director.

1% Shareholder(s) may propose a person (the “Candidate”) for
election as a Director at general meeting in accordance with the
following procedures:

(@) a Shareholder or a group of Shareholders holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company may requisition an extraordinary general meeting
to propose the Candidate to be elected as a Director in
the manner provided in “Procedures for Shareholders to
Convene General Meetings”; or

(b)  Election of directors whether by rotation or otherwise in
the place of those retiring would be considered ordinary
business at an annual general meeting of the Company (the
"AGM") and if the notice of an AGM includes the election
of Directors, any Shareholder may propose the election of
any person as a Director at the AGM;
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BRRREER-SALRESZRF (H)

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)
Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for

Election as a Director (continued)

1.

(continued)

Provided that, in each case, no Candidate other than a Director
retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the
Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any
general meeting unless:

(i) a notice signed by a Shareholder (other than the person
to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such Candidate for election; and

(i) a notice signed by the Candidate of his willingness to be
elected,

shall have been lodged to the Company at its principal place
of business in Hong Kong at 48 Wang Lok Street, Yuen Long
Industrial Estate, Hong Kong within the period of at least seven
(7) days commencing on the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting and ending no later than seven (7) days
prior to the date appointed for such general meeting.

In addition, the notice must contain the information as specified
in Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules about the Candidate,
including but not limited to the following:

(i) full name;

(i) age;

(iii)  business and residence addresses;

(iv)  principal occupation or employment;

(v)  experience including (a) other directorships held in the
last three years in public companies the securities of
which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or
overseas, and (b) the major appointments and professional
qualifications; and

(vi) interests in shares of the Company within the meaning of

Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 576
of the Laws of Hong Kong).

(%)
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EEXEBHRS

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no change in the
Company's constitutional documents.

CONVENING OF GENERAL MEETINGS

The Board strives to maintain an on-going dialogue with the
Shareholders of the Company. Shareholders are encouraged to
participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and
vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to attend
the meetings. The process of the Company’s general meetings are
monitored and reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes
will be made to ensure that Shareholders’ needs are best served. The
Company uses the annual general meeting as one of the principal
channels for communicating with the Shareholders. The Company
ensures that Shareholders’ views are communicated to the Board.

At the annual general meeting, each substantially separate issue has
been considered by a separate resolution, including the election of
individual Directors. The Chairman of the Board, chairmen of the
respective Board committees and the external auditor usually attend
annual general meetings to communicate with and answer questions
from the Shareholders.

The last annual general meeting of the Company was the 2018 annual
general meeting (the “2018 AGM") which was held at 23/F, Infinitus
Plaza, 199 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong on Friday, 31 May 2019
at 11:00 a.m.

All resolutions put to Shareholders at the 2018 AGM were passed.
The Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar were appointed as
scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes cast at that meeting.
The results of the voting by poll were published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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CONVENING OF GENERAL MEETINGS (continued) ARRERAE (&)

Percentage of

Resolutions proposed at the 2018 AGM votes in favor
REB-NFREBFAGRENRBR RERENBED L

1.

To review and approve the audited consolidated financial statements, the report of the

Directors and the report of the independent auditor of the Company for the year ended 31

December 2018. 100%
BERERRABE_ZT-N\FT_A=ZT—HLFENLEXGESUBERE ~A7
EEEMENBURBARE -

To re-elect Mr. Qin Yongming as an executive Director of the Company 100%
BRFKARERERDANITES

To re-elect Dr. Loke Yu as an independent nonexecutive Director of the Company. 100%
EEESME T RERARBI B IERITES

To authorise the Board to fix the Directors’ remuneration 100%

REESEETEFHMN

To re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company and to authorise the
Board to fix its remuneration. 100%

BRESRKBEHMEBARARATZHAMN UREEESBETHETM-

To grant a general mandate to the Directors to allot, issue and deal with any additional

shares in the Company which shall not in aggregate exceed 20% of the total number of

shares of the Company in issue as at the date of passing this resolution.** 98.812%
RYEEWE FTREERABEMEIINIG 2 —REE EROBE G HTEHEBER

RRRBBE B ARRAEEITRNDAEZ20% © **

To grant a general mandate to the Directors to exercise all the powers of the Company

to repurchase its own shares not exceeding 10% of the total number of shares of the

Company in issue as at the date of passing this resolution.* 100%
BRYERTEARRMEBEREN BROARRRG 2 —REE EROBE TEBBIRE
RBBEAARRADBITROMAE210% © *

To approve the extension of the general mandate granted to the Directors to allot new
shares by adding to it the number of shares repurchased, if any, pursuant to the share

repurchase mandate. 98.800%
HAEBBEMBERMBELEEBLZRHEBE (NE)MBEARTESEERRN 2 —
R
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The management of the Company believes that effective and proper
investor relations play a vital role in creating shareholders’ value,
enhancing the corporate transparency as well as establishing market
confidence. As such, the Company has adopted a stringent internal
control system to ensure true, accurate, complete and timely disclosure
of relevant information pursuant to requirements of relevant laws
and regulations in order to ensure all shareholders equal access to
information. To strive for effective communication and transparency
of the Company, the personnel in charge have frequent contact with
Shareholders and investors through various channels such as via
interviews, presentations, internet, telephone and email.

In addition, the Company has during the year ended 31 December
2019 organised numerous site visits to the Group’s facilities with several
fund managers and equity market analysts. Through the site visits,
the visitors managed to have a better understanding of the Group's
operations and an opportunity to know more about the Group's
development strategy.

We will continue to establish communication opportunities in order to
enhance investors’ understanding of and confidence in the Company.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

To deter wrongdoing and to promote standards of good corporate
practices, the Company adopted a whistleblowing policy in December
2012. This policy aims at encouraging and enabling employees of the
Group at all levels and others to report violations or suspected violations
and to raise serious concerns about possible improprieties in matters of
financial reporting or other matters of the Group.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the securities
regulations of the Stock Exchange and the Securities and Futures
Commission, and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the
public in accordance with relevant laws and regulations. Our primary
focus is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate, truthful
and complete, thereby enabling Shareholders, investors as well as the
public, to make rational and informed decisions.
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Major Events of CEG In 2019

aj
ESRRZEF—NFEKRSEE

—A

Commercial production of FMA processing line for HERTERKNFMAREGEEEE

ELV recycling

The Group’s FMA (fine-grained metal containing waste) 7<% BEREE BFMA (fine-grained metal
processing line in Germany commenced operation. This  containing waste ) B2 32 £ 4% A\ 4 FE < 2% 72
processing line mainly processes shredded wastes and waste %%+ ZERIEEFIEE M/ NERI A EERER
circuit boards, and recycles the copper and precious metals I EYH A B SR & © & - FMARR IR AR
therefrom. The FMA processing line further reduced the residual ~ — [ 1E T & BB BB ERRERL  I0
wastes which would have been landfilled or incinerated and 1™ 7 MEETHHERS EREUE - FMALRR
enhanced the recovery rate of ELV. The processing technique in MR EE TEH AL B EEK S L
the FMA processing line was researched and developed internally 3 ERMFEZEMK - ZEIB RN RAZESE
over a two year time frame, upholding our leading position in the — BITEFT_E 4 & (R F5 R £ B S UL
industry in terms of technological advancement.

MARCH

Completion of upgrade of
shredder in Kladno, Czech
Republic

The Group's operations in Czech
Republic is boosted with the
completion of an upgrade of the
shredder in Kladno, to better serve the
greater Prague region. Thanks to the
dedication of the team, the project
is completed on time and within
budget. The shredder operation has
since resumed commercial production,
productivity has since increased from
20 tonnes/hour to 35 tonnes/hour.

=A

e B AL 7A £ 52 $L M Bl Kladno By 43 B # 7 4R

NS E A FE e H AN B ) 38 i A Kladno M My FE M ST A R MR 7 - AT R
EMBAMAUBIBER BFEEKN RS ) ZIAB IR REERTK B
% MK IRIER A - EERE B UL 20ME, /N IE INZE35ME /N o
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Major Events of CEG In 2019
BRERTE—NFAEL

APRIL

Commencement of operation of joint venture with Heng Hup Group in
Malaysia

The joint venture between the Group and Heng Hup Group has commenced operation.
This joint venture is primarily engaged in the dismantling of scrap motors and other mixed
metals scrap. The recycled metals are then sold both locally to feed the industrial demands
as well as exported to China.

P9 A

RERADRHESEES
ERIINEELERANE
E
AEEHEE A EE A EKL
MNEEGLEBRAEBE %
RECEFENEEETH
MEMEEERA S BHNIFR

\i 15 FEKE S BRER
B E RN TEE K
AREOZEHE-
- ﬂ

AUGUST J\A

Commencement of e-motor NREBBY R EMEricRBAEBHERMBEIBETR

shredding operations in Erie,  FgEXXEMEREEADERALE  LALREREGTEER

Pennsylvania, USA ﬁ%ﬂﬁkiﬁﬂlaﬁuﬁ’ﬂf%*ﬁ% TR IR B HRR AEE B EE T RA

The Group’s shredded motor line in  BRENEEE BTREFEESH ZEEGOAINEEEESR-

the US commenced operation. This
processing line collects and processes
scrap motors in the East Coast and
around the Great Lakes region in the
US. In designing this processing line,
the Group preserved its flexibility to
the maximum extent, as not only
can it shred scrap motors, but it also
processes scrap cables.
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NOVEMBER

Commencement of operation of
joint venture with CMR in India

The joint venture between the Group
and CMR has commenced operation.
Located in the state of Gujrat, India, this
joint venture is primarily engaged in the
dismantling of scrap motors and other
mixed metals scrap. Currently, all products
are sold domestically to feed domestic
industrial demands.

Establishment of joint venture with Hidaka
Yookoo Enterprises Co. Limited and Suzuki
Shokai Co. Limited

A cooperation agreement was signed among the Group,
Hidaka Yookoo Enterprises Co. Limited and Suzuki Shokai
Co. Limited to establish a joint venture to set up a metal
recycling business in Thailand in 2020, focusing on the
dismantling of scrap motors and other mixed metals scrap.

T=A ’

A ZFredericiafi s &5 L5

Major Events of CEG In 2019
BRARIE—NFARSE

+—A
RENEECMREER LY
BELERANEE
NEBECMRAER A
AELEDRALB-Z
AEDEMEE GujratF
FEREEEREREM
BEERASCBNIRME
e BRIMBEMEIRE
SRS TER
;J):o

BZHidaka Yookoo Enterprises Co. Limited &
Suzuki Shokai Co. Limitedf{ X & & %

7K £ B B2 Hidaka Yookoo Enterprises Co. Limited &
Suzuki Shokai Co. Limited# & & 1E{Ra% - A&
Bh¥ HEE—_STF MBI EIAR
ESHLHEMEERSSBNFMEAETNEED
ET T

DECEMBER
New yard opening in Fredericia, Denmark

The Group's wholly owned subsidiary in Denmark,
Uniscrap A/S (“Uniscrap”), has opened one of the most
modern operating facilities at Taulov Dry Port, Denmark.
The 20,000 square meter yard is linked to a nearby deep
sea terminal in Frederica Port. Taulov is now one of the
most modern scrap yards in Denmark, equipped with
the latest technology and maximum consideration for
the environment. Together with the new port facility in
; Fredericia, Uniscrap has strengthened its position for the
future as a major player in the Danish recycling industry.

AEBNRHEZ 2 E F A7 Uniscrap A/S ([Uniscrap | ) B 7 2 Taulov Dry PortB sk &IF AL
K& BRI 2 — ° 2 L% 620,000 75 K - BL#F 3T & Frederica Portis 7K 5% 58 48 5& © TauloviR
BANERREARENEN S, — EESTREMER&EAEE LRESRENTZE -ERT
Fredericia®y 778 O 5% * UniscrapE. B EHEA S ZERIRITE X E L HE KRR

ESRREBERAT —E-LFER
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To the Shareholders of Chiho Environmental Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Chiho Environmental Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 116 to 270, which comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019;
o the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies.

R R K 18
BESRREBERAARRK
(RESBBHBATHERAF)
R
BMEROAS

BEARREBERAR (ATHE[ERF])
REKBRAR (ATHAMEERE])JIHNE
1M6ZE270E MR A M BHE - B4

e WIZE-NF+-A=+—HHEEE
ERER:

. BERALFEOSAEEEDE:

AMBHRME BRER SRR

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

ALK E G T TFEB P - TP RR 7R
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

HP : +852 2289 8888 » {HE : +852 2810 9888 » www.pwchk.com
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment
assessment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Key Audit Matter
HRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNESFNAEEBERETSE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives

BAERAERUEAFHZEBLEE ZRER

Refer to notes 2.9 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.
E2HY SRR E2.9K%18

The carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives of the Group as at 31 December 2019
was HK$745.3 million and HK$185.4 million, respectively.
Majority of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives arose from the acquisition of Scholz Group in
December 2016.

EEER T NE+-A=T—HZBERKAERUFEHR
FHIz BV EENREED 5 /R7184,5308 %8 7T & 1188,540
B BRI EN A ERAICRFH BT EES
BRAR T —RF+ - ARBIERAEE 225 -

Management performed an assessment on impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives as
at 31 December 2019 to determine the recoverable amount
using value-in-use calculations. These calculations used
pre-tax cash flow forecast based on the financial budget
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five year
period were extrapolated using an estimated long term
growth rate.
EEERAFEABEFER - —NE+=_A=+—8BZ
EEREERAGEAFHBEEEETRER G UETE
ARE e - Z EERAARELFRZHBEELSER 2
AR MR - AF R R RKA T RAE R X
o
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In assessing the appropriateness of the goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives impairment
assessment performed by management, the following
audit procedures have been performed by us:
RIEEEE HERARRAIERFRAZ BT EER
BEtfhzaEl HMEETATERRERF:

Compared the current year actual cash flows with the
prior year cash flow forecast to assess the reliability of
management’s forecast;

BAFEERBEeREE FFEREMNETVAEITHE
B AR B 2R fE TEORI Y AT SE 14

Evaluated management’s financial budget and
discounted cash flow forecast by understanding the
process by which they were drawn up, and testing
mathematical accuracy of the underlying calculations;
AREREMBEAERMRESRETEA  THETR
HEIR R BRE T E 2 EirE R

Assessed the appropriateness of key assumptions used
in the discounted cash flow forecast for the projected
5 years by comparing (i) projected sales volume to
available production capacity and historical sales volume,
(i) metal commodity price forecast to market research
and analyst reports, and (iii) projected gross profit
margin to historical profit margin. We also checked
these key assumptions against actual results in the
period subsequent to the year end;

FHBLLR ()RR H SR AT B BERTAEHESE: (B
7 mm (B8 TR ORI BR T35 A 58 R D AT B R 2+ K (i) FEORI E A1
REFLEFNE FHERKEFRRR R RETEAS PRI
AzEFE2R{[zaB@E -BHMTHRFELEERHARZ

EREE REZFIEZRR:
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
HRETEE HAM B F (R E R R FwT B R

The assessment required the use of significant Evaluated the discount rate by assessing the cost of

management’s judgements and estimates about future  capital of the Group and referencing the cost of capital

business performance including revenue growth (sales  of other comparable companies in the industry; and

volume and metal commodity price forecast), gross profit B@EE BEBZEAKA R2ETAEMAHL

margin and discount rate and accordingly, this was an area B R AIH)E AR A  ;FAZBHIE R |

of our audit focus.

ZAETEEEEB AR RESRIBIEREAHE M5t Evaluated the sensitivity of the Group’s discounted cash

BIERAERE (HERSBREMERTEE)  EF X KXEEIR  flow forecast by considering downside scenarios against

Z AtERBRMNEZECSK 2 —- reasonable possible changes to the key assumptions.
ERFTEBRZCABEAREEDH 2 TTRER iz BS
ERIERIR SR ETER 2 BURE -

Based on the procedures performed, we found that
the judgements and estimates made by management
in respect of the goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives impairment assessment were
supportable by available evidence.

BELMEETER BRMARREEEERELAER
R A B 2 BT 8 R ERT b R AT 2 2B R k5t R
Bz BIEZIF-

EoBREEERAR —E2-hEsg 111
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group'’s financial reporting process.

Annual Report 2019
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Independent Auditor’s Report
BIENHRS
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIZSEIRS

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Annual Report 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIENHRS

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, #EDAIEE/EBAEIEF « FFIrE T ML H 18
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the HARHIGAMGRRNBAHAEE  HAME
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period  FREASEZEFHE1E - RVEZ AR E P HME
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters Y= IH  BIBAERER T AT ARBEELE
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public @ sfEMHERNBERT MRS ETEHAE
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, FfiRETREBRFEFEERNE@MERBEB
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report ~ EAK AR  RIVRETEERE FER
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably FZ=E18-

be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent HEABT ZEMBRENBFTEBEAERAR
auditor’s report is Chan Kam Chiu, Raymond. BRERE o

PricewaterhouseCoopers EERKESTHMERKA

Certified Public Accountants HE G A

Hong Kong, 12 May 2020 BE T EFHAT=AH
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

RS IRmR

For the Year Ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)\F
Notes HKS$M HK$M
B = BEBT BEATT
Revenue Wz 5 15,363.4 20,912.8
Cost of sales 5 &R 8 (14,485.5) (19,228.7)
Gross profit E A 877.9 1,684.1
Other income H AU A 6 127.0 99.2
Other gains, net H Yz 5 %8 7 43.1 232.6
Net reversal of impairment S EERERERFE
on financial assets 39.4 36.4
Distribution and selling expenses DN HE R X 8 (51.5) (49.0)
Administrative expenses 1THR 8 (970.1) (1,283.3)
65.8 720.0
Finance income B A 10 23.6 36.6
Finance costs B 75 A AR 10 (236.2) (412.7)
Finance costs, net B 75 Bk AV 58 (212.6) (376.1)
Share of post-tax loss of an associate &k B ‘& A B [ 7 14 55 18 19 (0.3) (0.7)
Share of post-tax profit of joint ventures &1l & & b 2k i 14 & 5 19 47.6 126.2
(Loss)/Profit before income tax BRETSRLAT (B518) a7 (99.5) 469.4
Income tax expense FriS i 2 11 (34.3) (70.4)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FR(EE),SaF (133.8) 399.0
(Loss)/Profit attributable to: LATR & 75 el (B518) s -
Shareholders of the Company RAaE PR (128.7) 401.2
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR = (5.1) (2.2)
(133.8) 399.0
(Loss)/Earnings per share attributable to 7N 22 &) B 5 fE 15 F A
shareholders of the Company for the &A% (E18) & F
year (expressed in HK$ per share) (AFRAETSIR)
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREX (EE) &F 13 (0.08) 0.25
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share SRS (B18) &7 13 (0.08) 0.25
The notes on pages 124 to 270 are an integral part of these £124E270B M RZFirEMBHRED

consolidated financial statements.

116 Annual Report 2019

— 85



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

=AW E A E S

For the Year Ended 31 December 2019 HE=E—ZFT—hF+_A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-h#EF —ZE-N\F
Notes HKS$M HK$M
Bt 5 BEER BEATT
(Loss)/Profit for the year ER(FR) =R (133.8) 399.0
Other comprehensive (loss)/income HttZ2m (&E) IS
Item that may be reclassified to B D E B 2 HE -
profit or loss:
Currency translation differences on TEONZETS 2 B AR
foreign operations (92.4) (302.2)
Items that will not be reclassified to ~ TEBE# 7 HEEm ZEHE -
profit or loss:
Change in fair value of financial BRAFEFAHMEE
assets at fair value through other Wz eMEEZ
comprehensive income NSEEE-5) (7.5) =
Remeasurements of post- EFTEREARRBEZ
employment benefit obligations BHEE (4.6) 1.6
Share of other comprehensive loss Bl EtEZ
of joint ventures Hth = HEE1E (4.4) -
Income tax relating to these items BZEIRE BANFEH 1.9 0.4
Other comprehensive loss FAEMEEEE  HKRTIE
for the year, net of tax (107.0) (300.2)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FANEE (B18) W85
for the year (240.8) 98.8
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for A RN&H EEFEANEE
the year attributable to: (EB#B) Wi :
Shareholders of the Company VNN (234.0) 102.2
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR A 2 (6.8) (3.4)
(240.8) 98.8

The notes on pages 124 to 270 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mo=ERE

As at 31 December 2019 R-ZT—NFE+-_F=+—8

2019 2018
—E-NF —E—)\F
Notes HKS$M HK$M
Bt 5 BEER BEATT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB R E 14 2,982.9 3,603.5
Leasehold land and land use rights THE 3 % + {5 A A 15 - 387.9
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 1,185.8 =
Investment properties AW 17 9.1 3.2
Intangible assets EVEE 18 1,115.0 1,183.9
Investments accounted for using FREREARZEE
the equity method 19 630.9 613.2
Financial assets at fair value through ¥ AFEFFAEBZRZ
profit or loss TR E 20 1.9 0.8
Financial assets at fair value through  #ZAFEFAHEMEH
other comprehensive income Wiz @ @MEE 21 98.7 111.0
Other non-current assets HiERBEE 22 17.0 5.8
Deferred income tax assets BEFMSHEE 23 109.3 148.7
6,150.6 6,058.0
Current assets REEE
Inventories S 24 1,495.9 2,105.7
Trade, bills and other receivables B 5 - B8R & H b fE W R IE 25 1,375.8 1,882.1
Fixed return investment & € Bl i & 26 88.4 211.3
Amounts due from related parties JFE W2 2 Bt 05 SRR 39 47.9 68.2
Derivative financial instruments MESRT A 27 25.0 36.1
Tax recoverable A 3R [B] 7% 18 29.9 15.4
Pledged bank deposits B IFIRITE K 28 191.7 313.6
Cash and cash equivalents RekRESFHBHER 28 784.8 697.1
4,039.4 5,329.5
Total assets EE#E 10,190.0 11,387.5
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EzRkEE
Equity attributable to shareholders Z< 7 T IR 3R fE {5 #E %5
of the Company
Share capital A& 2 29 16.1 16.1
Other reserves H % 30 6,614.9 6,720.2
Accumulated losses 2itEiE (1,689.7) (1,561.0)
4,941.3 5,175.3
Non-controlling interests R = 31 (10.3) (29.4)
Total equity R 4,931.0 5,145.9
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

moBERER

As at 31 December 2019 R—ZE—AF+-HA=+—8H

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HKSM HK$M
Bt 5 BEBT BEBT

Non-current liabilities FRBEMF
Borrowings B 32 226.4 2,429.1
Lease liabilities HEAE 33 569.4 =
Retirement benefit obligations RIKEREFE 34 27.3 23.4
Other payables H &~ 3B 35 96.6 110.7
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSHAE 23 342.8 380.4
1,262.5 2,943.6

Current liabilities REBAEE

Trade, bills and other payables 25 EENEMEMNKIE 35 1,066.9 1,732.2
Current income tax liabilities BNERFT ST B (& 101.2 120.5
Borrowings R 32 2,569.0 1,358.5
Lease liabilities HEEE 33 191.7 =
Amounts due to related parties FE {5 BA B 5 SRR 39 37.5 66.3
Derivative financial instruments PTESHMTE 27 30.2 20.5
3,996.5 3,298.0
Total liabilities EE%8E 5,259.0 6,241.6
Total equity and liabilities EREREEEAR 10,190.0 11,387.5

The consolidated financial statements on pages 116 to 270 were FHRFE116E270EMFEEH BMENR=_S=
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 May ZTH& A A+ RAEE=gERREQM
2020 and are signed on its behalf by: W TIESKRERES:

Mr. Tu Jianhua Mr. Qin Yongming

REERE FKBPRE
Director Director
- EFE

The notes on pages 124 to 270 are an integral part of these £8124Z270B MM RZEHAE MBEmEKRA
consolidated financial statements. —FB e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RO EmEER

For the Year Ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

KRARIRRER
Other Non-
Share reserves  Accumulated controlling Total
capital (Note 30) losses Total interests equity
H it
BA (M&E30) RitE#B @it FERER LY e
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M

BEEAT BEBT AEAT  BEBT  AERL  BEER

At 1 January 2018 R=E-\F—FA—H 16.1 7,018.9 (1,961.9) 5,073.1 (26.0) 5,047.1
Comprehensive income 2EYE
Profit for the year FREF - - 4012 40122 2.2) 399.0

Other comprehensive (loss)/income E 2 (E18) /M
Currency translation differences AEBIINEBMEEZ

on translation of foreign ERER
operations - (301.0) - (301.0) (1.2) (302.2)
Remeasurement of post- ENHEREER
employment benefit R%E s BHNEE:
obligations, net of tax B HIE = 2.0 = 2.0 = 2.0
Total other comprehensive ERNEMEZEBRLR
loss for the year, net of tax MEBE - (299.0) - (299.0) (12) (300.2)
Total comprehensive income ERNEANHEEE
for the year, net of tax eIl = (299.0) 401.2 102.2 (34) 98.8

Transactions with shareholders in B2 (LARE 5 17)
their capacity as shareholders 7725

Transfer of reserves B = 03 (03) = = =
Total transactions with HRER (ARESR)
shareholders in their capacity as  #1TR 5#%
shareholders - 0.3 (0.3) - - -
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+-F=1+—-H 16.1 6,720.2 (1,561.0) 5,175.3 (29.4) 5,145.9
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ReEME R

For the Year Ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—-Z

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

—NE T E | E S

KARRRES
Other Non-
Share reserves Accumulated controlling Total
capital (Note 30) losses Total interests equity
Hitbfkte o N
BA (ME30) AR @ FERER ags
HK$SM HK$SM HK$SM HK$|\_/| HK$|\_/| HK$|\_’|
AEER AEER AEER AEER AEER AEER
At 1 January 2019 “Z-NF—-R—H 16.1 6,720.2 (1,561.0) 5,175.3 (29.4) 5,145.9
Comprehensive loss 2EEE
Loss for the year FNEE - - (128.7) (128.7) (5.1) (133.8)
Other comprehensive loss EEEER
Currency translation differences  G9NER ¢ BB =5
on foreign operations - (90.7) - (90.7) (1.7) (92.4)
Change in the fair value of BATHE ﬁ/\ﬁﬂﬁiﬁl&
financial assets at fair value wLE HMFZ FE
through other comprehensive &) Tﬂ R
income, net of tax - (6.1) - (6.1) - (6.1)
Remeasurement of post- ENEEELER
employment benefit R 2B ﬂﬁﬁ '
obligations, net of tax MERHE - (4.9) - (4.9) - (4.9)
Share of other comprehensive ~ A& RE Y
loss of joint ventures 2 EER - (4.4) - (4.4) - (4.4)
Total other comprehensive loss ~ FREM 2 HEBEERE
for the year, net of tax MmekHimE - (105.3) - (105.3) (1.7) (107.0)
Total comprehensive loss EREEBRER
for the year, net of tax M HE - (105.3) (128.7) (234.0) (6.8) (240.8)
Transactions with shareholders in SRR (LABREH7)
their capacity as shareholders  #17% 5
Contributions from non- FERERTE
controlling interests N - - - - 21.7 21.7
Deregistration of a subsidiary & #5 %A JHRIE R
with non-controlling interests 2 F/A 7] - - - - 42 42
Total transactions with HRE (LRRF7)
shareholders in their capacity as  #1{1R 5 #%
shareholders - - - - 25.9 25.9
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-—N%E
+-A=+—-H 16.1 6,614.9 (1,689.7) 4,9413 (10.3) 4,931.0
The notes on pages 124 to 270 are an integral part of these 25124Z2708 KI5 R%F4r & M5 MWK
consolidated financial statements. —&BD e
EABREEERAT —T-hgsH 121
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
IreRERE

For the Year Ended 31 December 2019 HE—-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
Notes HKS$M HK$M
Bt BEAR AEBT
Cash flows from operating activities & & Z B fr 3R &R
Cash generated from operations KEMERE 42 803.6 627.6
Interest paid B F A (214.8) (242.4)
Tax paid, net BAIHIEF (60.0) (67.9)
Net cash generated from RETHMEBERLFR
operating activities 528.8 317.3
Cash flows from investing activities R & ;ZE ISR ER
Purchases of property, BEWE BWELXE
plant and equipment (336.5) (281.1)
Purchases of intangible assets BEEFAE (5.6) (2.5)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BER&E
plant and equipment and AREREEEZ
right-of-use assets Fr {5 k18 42 267.9 103.1
Placement of pledged bank deposits T?)\E?ﬁﬁfﬂﬁﬁ%’ﬂ (180.1) (534.7)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 2Bl 2 KB R 1717 3K 300.5 303.5
Decrease in fixed return investment & BE[E i€ B H{i& & 135.5 150.0
Proceeds from disposals of financial ~HEFABRZ EMEE
assets through profit or loss FriS 5018 - 24.5
Proceeds from disposal of assets ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ’ﬁ—r{’ﬁﬁiﬁfk
classified as held for sale Z P15 IA - 152.6
Proceeds from disposal of Hj’ETxé{%%ZFﬁ%ﬁ
investment properties - 195.2
Investments in joint ventures KRESEE 4.1) =
Dividend received from joint ventures WHLA &> ¥ S 37.4 81.0
Other dividends received B ICH i R 2 4.8 35
Acquisition of business, net of cash Wb 2755
acquired NMBREEERS 41 4.7) (8.1)
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash ~ HEF AR IKEHE
disposed of Re 25.5 -
Interest received 21 B 6.8 8.8
Net cash generated from RETHFE
investing activities REFHE 247.4 195.8
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—-Z

moRERER
—hE+=A=t—BLFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF =F— N4
Notes HKS$M HK$M
B BEAR AEBT
Cash flows from financing activities B & ;EE ISR &R
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIE R Z A5 5 IE 731.3 1,015.1
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITHER (1,287.0) (1,264.9)
Proceeds from other borrowings H M &R Z 5 518 53.1 1,691.5
Repayments of other borrowings fﬁ%&ﬁm1ﬁ§ﬁ\&ﬁ§ﬁmﬁ
and note payable - (2,115.1)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHERE
(2018: Repayment of finance (ZZ—N\#F
lease liabilities) BEREHEAR) (198.7) (92.6)
Contributions from non-controlling FEIE IR IT &
interests 21.7 -
Net cash used in financing activities B & EE T AH € F58 (679.6) (766.0)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYzReRBLEEEE
beginning of the year 697.1 976.4
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBReEEBEEN
cash equivalents CRA) F58 96.6 (252.9)
Exchange differences on cash and ReRkBEELFEERZ
cash equivalents PEH =% (8.9) (26.4)
Cash and cash equivalents FERZEERESEHEHER
at end of the year 28 784.8 697.1

The notes on pages 124 to 270 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N=RUECES EL VR

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chiho Environmental Group Limited (‘the Company’) is an
investment holding company. The Company and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) are mainly engaged in the principal
business of resources recycling, involving recycling of mixed
metal, end-of-life vehicle (ELV), waste electrical and electronic
equipment (WEEE), wasted oil and production of aluminum ingots
from zorba in Asia, Europe and North America. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 44.

The Company is incorporated and registered as an exempted
company in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands with limited liability. The address of its registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company's ultimate holding company is Loncin Group Co.,
Ltd. (“Loncin Group”), a limited liability company incorporated in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"”), and the Company’s
immediate holding company is USUM Investment Group Hong
Kong Limited (“USUMHK"), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability. Loncin Group is 98% owned by Mr. Tu
Jianhua (“Mr. Tu”), an executive director of the Company.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollar
("HK$"), unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income, and financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at
fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies.

The Group reported a net loss of HK$133.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019. As at
31 December 2019, the Group’s current assets
exceed its current liabilities by HK$42.9 million. It
had borrowings of HK$2,795.4 million, of which
HK$2,569.0 million are current borrowings due
within twelve months from 31 December 2019. As
at the same date, it had cash and cash equivalents
amounted to HK$784.8 million.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MR RMIEE

/

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Included in current borrowings as at 31 December
2019 was a syndicated term loan (the “Syndicated
Term Loan"”) with an outstanding principal amount of
US$220.0 million scheduled to be fully repayable in
June 2020.

In view of such circumstances, the Directors have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group, taking into account the
impact arising from the COVID-19 outbreak if any,
and its available sources of financing in assessing
whether the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to continue as a going concern. Certain
plans and measures have been taken to mitigate the
liquidity pressure and to improve its financial position
which include, but not limited to, the following:

° Subsequent to 31 December 2019, the Group
has successfully entered into an agreement
with the lenders of the Syndicated Term Loan
to extend the maturity date to March 2021,
and that certain undertakings of the Company,
guarantor and obligor were revised (Note
32). The Group will continue to monitor its
compliance with the restrictive financial and
non-financial undertaking requirements and
the Directors expect the Group would be
in compliance continuously throughout the
remaining term of the Syndicated Term Loan;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

o The Group continues its efforts to ramp up
the production capability of the new recycling
facilities in Asia, implement measures in Europe
and North America to generate cash flow from
operations, and further control capital and
operating expenditures to strength its working
capital; and

o The Group is actively looking for other sources
of financing including other debt or equity
financing to enhance the capital structure and
reduce the overall financing expenses.

The Directors have assessed the Group’s cash flow
projection covering a period of twelve months from
31 December 2019. They are of the opinion that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to finance
its operations and to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due within the next twelve
months from the date of the consolidated balance
sheet. Accordingly, the Directors are satisfied that it
is appropriate to prepare the Group’s consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MR RMIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group

The following new and amended standards
and interpretations have been adopted by the
Group for the first time for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2019:

2 EBEAREHEHE (A)
21 REEE (H)
(6) AHEBRMAIHER

AEIEETER R 2 FE
AEBER=ZZ—N
F—H—BZ®z&H
PR EV BT IR R R R
T BIFTRT RARIERT

Annual Improvements Project
(Amendments)

FEIGEEREE (BRI AR)

HKAS 19 (Amendments)

BB ERZFE 195 (BETA)

HKAS 28 (Amendments)

R ERFE285 (BRI A)

HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

78 B 75 & AR I B 95%
(BETA)

HKFRS 16

BBV GG AR E 16587

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

58 (BRTBHRERE
ZEg) —RESE23%

R P &=

Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle

—E-NFE T+ FROFELCE

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
sTEMERT BB S A E

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
BENFLatbENREES

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
HEamENREENFNT

Leases

HE

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
FRIS TR 3B 1) D HERE 14

Except for HKFRS 16, the other new and
amended standards and interpretation listed
above did not have any significant impact on
the amounts recognised in prior years and are
not expected to significantly affect the current
or future years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fme M B R RMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
(continued)

The following explains the impact of the
adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s financial
statements.

The Group elected to adopt HKFRS 16 without
restating comparatives. The reclassifications
and the adjustments are therefore not
reflected in the consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 December 2018, but are recognised
in the opening consolidated balance sheet
on 1 January 2019 as appropriate. The new
accounting policies are disclosed in Note 2.28.

The adoption of HKRFS 16 will result in almost
all leases being recognised on the consolidated
balance sheet, as the distinction between
operating and finance leases is removed. Under
the new standard, an asset (the right to use
the leased item) and a financial liability to pay
rentals are recognised. The only exceptions
are short-term and low-value leases. The
accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IRE M BHRRMTEE

/

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
(continued)

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group
recognised lease liabilities in relation to
leases which had previously been classified as
‘operating leases’ under the principles of HKAS
17 Leases. These liabilities were measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate as at 1 January
2019 (date of initial application). The weighted
average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
applied to the lease liabilities on 1 January
2019 was 2.7%.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fme M B R RMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
(continued)

The right-of-use assets associated to leases
which had previously been classified as
‘operating leases’ were measured at the
amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to that lease recognised in
the balance sheet as at 31 December 2018.

For leases previously classified as ‘finance
leases’, the Group recognised the carrying
amounts of these leased assets and lease
liabilities immediately before transition as the
carrying amounts of the right-of-use assets and
the lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 (date of
initial application). The measurement principles
of HKFRS 16 are only applied after that date.

For leasehold land and land use right which
previously presented as a separate line on the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2018 was reclassified to right-of-use assets as
at 1 January 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IRE M BHRRMTEE

/

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

2

EXSHBERBE (8)

21 RREE (H)

New and amended standards and (a) AEBZRAEFETR
interpretations adopted by the Group AENEETZER R 72 7
(continued) (%)
The following tables show the adjustments TRINRE D EER
recognised for each individual line item. Line A ETEREL
items that were not affected by the changes EXREEHTEN
have not been included. The adjustments are HE % FHENE
explained in more detail below. Z B R T X
B o
Consolidated balance sheet (extract) HeEEERER
(WE)
2018 Effect of 2019
31 December HKFRS 16 1 January
—E-N\%¥ EEMBRE
+=A B 551655 —ZE-h§
=+-8 L -A-A
HK$M HK$M HK$M
HEAT BEAT BEABT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment EN S 3,603.5 (456.2) 3,147.3
Leasehold land and land use rights MAE K+ fF A 387.9 (387.9) =
Right-of-use assets RREERE - 977.9 977.9
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Borrowings &R 2,429.1 (302.3) 2,126.8
Lease liabilities HEEE - 407.4 407.4
Current liabilities REEE
Borrowings & 1,358.5 (136.5) 1,222.0
Lease liabilities HEEE - 165.2 165.2

The following table shows the reconciliation of
operating lease commitments and finance lease
liabilities disclosed as at 31 December 2018 to
the lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January
2019:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fme M B R RMEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAHBERBE (8)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 wBEEXE(E)
(a)  New and amended standards and (a) AEERAIFTFT R
interpretations adopted by the Group AENEETZER R 72 7
(continued) (%)
At 1 January
2019
RZZE—h&F
—HA—H
HK$M
BEATT
Operating lease commitments disclosed R =Z— N \F+=-A=+—BEED
as at 31 December 2018 R E AR 181.4
Discounted using the lessee’s FAABAREXERBBNEEE
incremental borrowing rate at the AAEALIR
date of initial application 139.0
Finance lease liabilities recognised as at R = — /\F+ = =+ — BERHK
31 December 2018 MEREAE 438.8
Less: short-term leases and low-value i ZE R ZER AR TN CBHEHEE
leases recognised on a straight- MEEEHEE
line basis as expense (18.6)
Add: adjustments as a result of a R REIDEERN TR EIE S
different treatment of extension EE AT
and termination options 13.4
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 —NF—A—HHNHEEAE 572.6
Of which are: Hep:
Current lease liabilities nEHEBE 165.2
Non-current lease liabilities ERBEEAE 407.4
572.6

EBEREEERAR —ZE-—hf5HR 133



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS BRRMEE
2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEAHBEBE (8)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 mEEXE(E)
2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 212 B BERBBRIFE
(continued) (#)
(a)  New and amended standards and (a) AEERABIFET R
interpretations adopted by the Group AENEETZER R 72 7
(continued) (%)
There was no material impact on the operating RN E BT MmERE
profits for the year ended 31 December 2019 Al 165% I & K&
as a result of the adoption of HKFRS 16, while EZF-NEFTZA
the segment assets as at 31 December 2019 ST-HIEFEZE
had increased as follows: ERMEEEAY
Z MR -FE—HE
TZA=+—HzZH
HEEDENET
Increase in
segment assets
DEPEE
0
HK$M
AEBT
Asia M 64.9
Europe B 166.0
North America JEEM 10.7
Total st 241.6
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(@)  New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
(continued)

(i)

Practical expedients applied

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time,
the Group has used the following
practical expedients permitted by the
standard:

° the use of a single discount rate
to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics;

° reliance on previous assessments
on whether leases are onerous;

o the accounting for operating leases
with a remaining lease term of less
than 12 months as at 1 January
2019 as short-term leases;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IRE M BHRRMTEE

/

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(@)  New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
(continued)

(i) Practical expedients applied (continued)

o the exclusion of initial direct costs
for the measurement of the right-
of-use asset at the date of initial
application, and

o the use of hindsight in determining
the lease term where the contract
contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess
whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the
date of initial application. Instead, for contracts
entered into before the transition date, the
Group relied on its assessment made applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) 4 ‘Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fme M B R RMEE

POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

The following new and amended standards,

2.1

(b)

new interpretations and framework have been
issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2019 and have
not been early adopted by the Group

The following new and amended standards,
new interpretations and framework are not
effective for financial year beginning on 1
January 2019, and have not been applied
in preparing these consolidated financial

statements:

EXSHBRBE (8)

mREE (/)

LT ET RASEFT2E
Al - #raT i FE R AEHE
RZFE—NF—H—
H F15 8951 B F /2 E
MR IER LR AR
FETRE BIE PR

VAT T AT R A 7T 2
Bl ¥ el ed de R AE 28
RZZE-NF—HA—
B Fa # B B E R
R B AR IERR R
HZEEEMB R
xR

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after
RUTRBH 2%
Rmmest e

Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018
—NERBREDN
R
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 (Amendments)
B G ERE 15 R
BB G EAIER
(B3TK)
HKFRS 3 (Amendments)
BB RS EDF3N
(fB3T%K)
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9
(Amendments)

SR TR F395, - BB IR

Sk
AFETRREBYHRSERER

(BaTA)
HKFRS 17
BEMBREERBI7H
HKFRS10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)

ERENBREENZ0RREEG
LRI F285 (1BFTA)

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 1 January 2020

BETHBREBAER

Definition of Material

BEAENES

Definition of a Business

FBHER
Hedge accounting

gt

Insurance Contracts

REEH

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

&gﬁﬁgm%ﬂw& AEOEIHNEELE
B

The above new and amended standards, new
interpretation and framework are not expected
to have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

EaRREBERAH
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1 January 2020
“Z-T5-f—H
1 January 2020
“Z-T%-f—H
1 January 2020

s =|

1 January 2021
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A date to be determined by
the 1ASB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MR RMIEE

/

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(Note 2.3).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fno M FE R RMIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEREIHEHE (B&)
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 22 HFERAIREZEE (H)

accounting (continued)

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting (Note 2.2.5), after
initially being recognised at cost.

The Group’s joint arrangements are classified
as either joint operations or joint ventures. The
classification depends on the contractual rights and
obligations of each investor, rather than the legal
structure of the joint arrangement.

The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint
ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method. Interests in joint ventures are
accounted for using the equity method (Note
2.2.5), after initially being recognised at cost in the
consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MR RMIEE

/

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group's share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of
the investment.

Where the Group's share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in
the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.10.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fno M FE R RMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAREHBEME (&)
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 22 HERAIREREE (&)

accounting (continued)

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or received
is recognised in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to shareholders of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its
fair value, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MR RMIEE

/

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liguidation are measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured,
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

Business combinations (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest

net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.

recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the consolidated statement of profit
or |oss.

Where businesses are acquired and fair values of the net
assets of the acquired business are finalised within 12
months of the acquisition date, all fair value adjustments
are recorded with effect from the date of acquisition and
consequently may result in the restatement of previously
reported financial results.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’'s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM"). The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Executive Committee that makes strategic
decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MR RMIEE

/

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
HK$, which is the Company’s functional and the
Group's presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except
when deferred in other comprehensive income
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in

the consolidated statement of profit or loss within
‘other gains, net'.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are
repaid, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss
on sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MR RMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BAEBEHE (B)

POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued) 25 IMEEN (&)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices.
Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost over their estimated useful lives as

2.6
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Buildings 12 — 50 years
BF 12E504
Plant and machinery 5 - 20 years
TR 5 Re 2 5Z20%F
Office furniture and equipment 3 - 13 years
MAERBRRE 3E13F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within ‘other gains, net’ in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost. Cost includes the costs of construction
of buildings and the costs of plant and machinery. No
provision for depreciation is made on construction-
in-progress until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and ready for intended use. When the assets
concerned are brought into use, the costs are transferred
to other property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated in Note 2.6.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising land and
buildings, are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the
Group. Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs.
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of investment properties over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual

Subsequent to initial recognition,

value, using the straight-line method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MR RMIEE

/

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the
lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fno M FE R RMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BAETEEREE (8)
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (continued) 29 EBEEE (&)

Computer software acquired are capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over
their estimated useful lives of 5 years.

Separately acquired brand names, patents and
licences are shown at historical cost. Brand
names, patents and licences acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Certain brand names, patents and
licences which have a finite useful life are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of certain brand
names, patents and licenses over their estimated
useful lives of 8 to 20 years. Certain brand names
have indefinite useful life and carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment
assessment is undertaken annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment.

Customers’ relationship and suppliers’ relationship
acquired in a business combination are recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. The customers’
relationship and suppliers’ relationship which have a
finite useful life are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of the customers’ relationship and
suppliers’ relationship of 5 to 20 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MR RMIEE

/

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (continued)

Non-competiton agreement is recognised at fair value
at the agreement date. Non-competition agreement
has a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment loss.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over the agreement term of 2 years.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.11 Investments and other financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income or
through profit or loss); and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fno M FE R RMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BAETEEREE (8)
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

211 RERHEtEREE (H)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through profit and
loss (“FVPL") are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MR RMIEE

/

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or
loss and presented in ‘other gains, net’ together
with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in ‘other gains, net’ in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
on equity investments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fno M FE R RMIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EREHBEREBE (8)
POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Investments and other financial assets 211 RERHMEREE (F)
(continued)

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis NG BRI AR M EAERT (i
the expected credit losses associated with its AR A BRI B T
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The HABAMTEREEEE FT
impairment methodology applied depends on & A BBE R EEUAREE
whether there has been a significant increase in credit [R\ P 2 A B IE N
risk.
For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified HEZEWGRIEM S - A&
approach in accordance with HKFRS 9, which requires BERIRE B ELERE
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial SRR B E A A
recognition of the receivables (Note 25(b)). REBHFERATHEESE

] 45 T 52 JE LA 3R T R e 7R
(Pt 5E25(b) ) °

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments 212 E#EEMTIA
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount cREERBEBESEERE mMH
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally BIERE LR R EITRENEED
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and BREERBERENFEELESE
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the FRARZREERSEEER
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally TEEBBERIHFE - EEL
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events AR H TR NS RKARRE
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business EHRNERETEBRRRA
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the BRI E F R FKIE & AHER
company or the counterparty. PR ol BB 22 FRF 7 ) S ISR o

2.13 Derivative financial instruments 213 fTE£®mIA
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date PTETERTTETAGHEILE
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently HERAFENGRER EERA
re-measured at their fair values. Changes in the fair value FEEHFE - WETESRT
of these derivative instruments are recognised immediately B2z N FENEES &R R®
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss within ‘other mEBmAN [ Hfh e F5E ] i
gains, net’. The Group does not have any derivative that is R o AN B AR E ] 35 7E A HF
designated as a hedging instrument. THRZHTET R
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods comprises,
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads. It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.15 Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade and bills receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade, bills and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

The Group holds trade, bills and other receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows. Accordingly,
trade, bills and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less loss allowance
(Note 2.11.3).

Trade, bills and other receivables are written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Impairment losses on trade, bills and other receivables are
presented as net impairment losses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the
same line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and bank overdrafts.

2.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

2.18 Trade and bills payables

Trade and bills payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers.

Trade and bills payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.
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RS MR RMIEE
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Borrowings (continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

2.20 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance charges
in respect of borrowings and lease liabilities, and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to
the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs. The exchange gains and losses that are
an adjustment to interest costs include the interest rate
differential between borrowing costs that would be
incurred if the entity had borrowed funds in its functional
currency, and the borrowing costs actually incurred on
foreign currency borrowings. Such amounts are estimated
based on interest rates on similar borrowings in the entity’s
functional currency.

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fno M FE R RMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAHBERBE (8)
POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Current and deferred income tax (continued) 221 ENHARIEFEFTSH (&)

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company'’s subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MR RMIEE
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Investment allowances and similar tax incentives
Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim
special tax deductions for investments in qualifying
assets or in relation to qualifying expenditure. The
Group accounts for such allowances as tax credits,
which means that the allowance reduces income tax
payable and current tax expense. A deferred tax asset
is recognised for unclaimed tax credits that are carried
forward as deferred tax assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fno M FE R RMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BAETEEREE (8)
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Employee benefits 222 EEER

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit obligations
in the consolidated balance sheet.

The liabilities for long service leave and annual
leave are not expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service. They
are therefore measured as the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect
of services provided by employees up to the end of
the reporting period using the projected unit credit
method. Consideration is given to expected future
wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures and periods of service. Expected future
payments are discounted using market yields at the
end of the reporting period of high-quality corporate
bonds with terms and currencies that match,
as closely as possible, the estimated future cash
outflows. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IRE M BHRRMTEE

/

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

The Group operates various post-employment
schemes, including defined benefit plans and defined
contribution pension plans.

(a)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods. A defined benefit
plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

Typically, defined benefit plans define an
amount of pension benefit that an employee
will receive on retirement, usually dependent
on one or more factors such as age, years of
service and compensation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fno M FE R RMIEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

Pension obligations (continued)

The liability recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation
is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates
of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the
related pension obligation. In countries where
there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit
plan, recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in employee benefit expense,
except where included in the cost of an asset,
reflects the increase in the defined benefit
obligation results from employee service in the
current year, benefit changes, curtailments and
settlements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MR RMIEE
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

Pension obligations (continued)

Past-service costs are recognised immediately
in consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Changes in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service
costs.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of
plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Remeasurement arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity
in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise.

For defined contribution plans, the Group
pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fno M FE R RMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BAEBEHE (B)

POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (continued) 222 EERF (&)

(b)  Termination benefits (b) HuEEF
Termination benefits are payable when R IR AR R B R
employment is terminated by the Group before IEERNA BRI IE

EABRIT EHT
EXBRERAR
R bt %5 78 ) B ST A
REEEATREH
HAZE A B RERR AR LEAR
M @QEBAKETE
B Z SR
KBF : R(b)E E R HE

the normal retirement date, or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises
costs for a restructuring that is within the

scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment REOEHEKABERE
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer Bt ERIE375RE
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the WENH R AT E
termination benefits are measured based on & I 5 o 72 5% B B T
the number of employees expected to accept EFERNEZOER
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 T 8 1B 48 F iR TE HR
months after the end of the reporting period BEXEANBIHE
are discounted to their present value. FTE - EWmE HRIE

i 1218 A Z S H R

MERRRERE-

2.23 Share-based payments 223 URGAER ZMARK

REERE % (E AR 4 B AR
AREROM S E BB

The Group operates a number of equity-settled share-

based compensation plans, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MR RMIEE

/

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Share-based payments (continued)

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital
and share premium.

2.24 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation.

2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the
goods is transferred to the customers in accordance
with relevant shipping terms. A receivable is
recognised when control of the goods is transferred
to the customers as this is the point in time that
the consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

Rental income from investment property is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Services income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when a service is
transferred to the customer and the customer obtains
control of that service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fno M FE R RMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BAEBEHE (B)

POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Interest income 226 FIEWA

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in
the net fair value gains/(losses) on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and
financial assets at FVOCI calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

2.27 Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at
FVPL and at FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as other
income in profit or loss when the right to receive payment
is established. This applies even if they are paid out of pre-
acquisition profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of an investment. In this case,
the dividend is recognised in other comprehensive income
if it relates to an investment measured at FVOCI. However,
the investment may need to be tested for impairment as a
consequence.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MR RMIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BRETHEWE (8)
POLICIES (continued)
2.28 Leases 228 #HE

166

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys
to the lessee in return for a payment, or series of
payments, the right to use an asset for an agreed
period of time.

When assets are leased out under an operating lease,
the asset is included in the balance sheet based on
the nature of the asset.

Lease income on operating leases is recognised over
the term of the lease on a straight-line basis.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate;

° amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising
that option.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.28 Leases (continued)

Lease payment to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value in a similar economic environment
with similar terms and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing
was received;

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group entity, which does not
have recent third party financing; and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg
term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MR RMIEE

/

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.28 Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease

liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs; and

o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.
(Notes 2.6 and 2.9)

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment, vehicles, offices, warehouse and all leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small
items of office furniture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fno M FE R RMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BAETEEREE (8)
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (continued) 2.28 #HE (&)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment
where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
other long-term payables. The interest element of the
finance cost is charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The property,
plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is
depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the
asset and the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MR RMIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.29 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

2.30 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, fixed return investment, derivative
financial assets, pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other payables, derivative financial
liabilities and borrowings, etc. Details of the financial
instruments by category are disclosed in Note 36.

The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

()

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has foreign currency sales,
purchases, trade, bills and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade, bills and other payables,
derivative financial instruments, borrowings
and amounts due from/(to) related parties
which expose the Group to market risk arising
from changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group currently does not have a specific
foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management closely monitors its foreign
currency risk exposure and considers any
foreign currency forward contracts should the
need arise.

In addition, the Group had entered into several
foreign currency forward contracts with banks
to reduce its exposure to currency fluctuation
risk. The derivatives were not accounted for
under hedge accounting. The Group was
required to estimate the fair value of the
foreign currency forward contracts at the end
of the reporting period, which therefore also
exposed the Group to foreign exchange risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MR RMIEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

0]

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

At 31 December 2019, if Renminbi (“RMB")
had weakened/strengthened by 5% (2018:
5%) against the HK$ or the US$ with all other
variables held constant, pre-tax loss for the year
would have been HK$15.9 million higher/lower
(2018: pre-tax profit would have been HK$25.0
million lower/higher), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation
of RMB/US$ denominated trade, bills and
other payables, borrowings, derivative financial
instruments and cash and bank deposits.

At 31 December 2019, if Euro (“EUR") had
weakened/strengthened by 7% (2018: 9%)
against the HK$ or US$ with all other variables
held constant, pre-tax loss for the year would
have been HK$5.3 million higher/lower (2018:
pre-tax profit would have been HK$20.9
million higher/lower), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of
EUR/US$ denominated trade, bills and other
receivables and payables, borrowings, derivative
financial instruments, amounts due from
related parties and cash and bank deposits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fme M B R RMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

0]

(i)

3 SRERE

2 (&)

31 SEEREE (&)

Foreign exchange risk (continued) () SMNEESE (E)
The Directors considered the foreign exchange B 7 T B 2 T 4
risk between HK$ and US$ is minimal as HK$ EER/BITEET
has been linked to US$. 2 [ B N BE [ B AR
e
Interest rate risk (i) FFEE
The Group's interest rate risk mainly arises from 72N 5= 1B ) N1 2% L e 3
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable ERGERRZH
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest FEEEH B RER
rate risk. SBAER IR e mAE
[E\ B -
Based on the simulations performed, with a BRI TR A 4T -
100 basis points shift in interest rate, the pre- & A 2= 2 8)1001E &
tax loss (2018: pre-tax profit) would have a ZoBRBAIEE (=
maximum increase (2018: decrease) by the T — \F R AR
following magnitude: F)BHE AN (=
Z—NF:RD)IE
ERNNE
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT—N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEABRT AEBTT
Impact on loss/profit HBRAEHAERE
before income tax i ] Y 5 2 3.2 13.3
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RS MR RMIEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

3

TRtEREE (8)
31 REREER (&)

Price risk (i) (E1EE e
Commodity price risks 72 (B 1% B g
At 31 December 2019, the Group was exposed RZE—-—NF+A
to commodity price risks through its metal =+t—H Xx5EH
commodities future contracts. TEEmESAMm
T3 7 qn B AR R o
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT
The sensitivity analysis below is determined TONGRRE DT THE
based on the exposure to commodity price RZZE—-NFE+=A
risk of metal commodities future contracts at =+—HeEEmmH
31 December 2019. If the commodity price of EEaXEENEME
metal commodities future contracts had been & 2 B2 T 5E o i & B
19% (2018: 21%) higher/lower, the Group's AmBlEENNE
pre-tax loss (2018: pre-tax profit) for the year mE®R L TB
would decrease/increase (2018: increase/ 19% (ZF— N\ F:
decrease) by the following magnitude: 21% ) - BIZRE B4
NRBATEE (=
— )\ : BRELADRF])
L (==
— )\ 80, B)
HTEE AT :
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZET—)N\F
HKSM HK$M
BEERT BEBTT
Impact on loss/profit HIRFTS T AIEE,
before income tax T Al B 2 3.1 73.4

The credit risk of the Group main
and cash equivalents, derivative fin

ly arises from cash
ancial instruments,

amounts due from related parties, fixed return
investment, trade, bills and other receivables and
deposits with banks and financial institutions. The

carrying amounts of these balan

ces represent the

Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation

to financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fme M B R RMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SrtERER(E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 @EKREZE (&)

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Management has policies in place to monitor the
exposures to these credit risks on trade, bills and
other receivables on an on-going basis.

To manage credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents, derivative financial instruments, fixed
return investment and deposits with banks and
financial institutions, the Group only transacts with
reputable and creditworthy commercial financial
institutions and investment counterparties. There has
been no recent history of default in relation to these
financial institutions and investment counterparties.

The Group generally grants credit terms ranging
from 30 to 90 days to customers upon the approval
of management according to the credit quality of
individual customers. The Group measures expected
credit losses and applies lifetime expected loss
allowances for all trade receivables. Details on the
quantification in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk on trade receivables are set out in Note 25.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Amounts due from related parties, bills and other
receivables are considered to have low credit risk.
These balances are continuously monitored by
assessing the credit quality of the counterparties,
taking into account its financial position, past
experience and other factors.

At 31 December 2019, the Group had concentration
of credit risk as 9% and 23% (2018: 20% and 58%)
of its total trade receivables was due from its largest
trade debtors and the five largest trade debtors,
respectively. The five largest trade debtors have good
repayment history and credit quality with reference to
the track records of these customers under internal
assessment by the Group.

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating
entities of the Group and aggregated by group
finance. Group finance monitors rolling forecasts
of the Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure it
has sufficient cash to meet operational needs. Such
forecasting takes into consideration the Group'’s debt
financing plans, covenant compliance, compliance
with internal balance sheet ratio targets and, if
applicable external regulatory or legal requirements —
for example, currency restrictions.
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TREREE (F)
31 SHMEABRRE (#)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) B
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

TRAOMAZBERARFR
FITEERMBENFEEE
MOTES BB E L HIRIR
HREIH 2 BAE Bl - ARV i A
HHEAMNEH A B TR
REETOM - WiTES A
B A KBIEERY TR
ERBEEMEE  BEst

The table below analyses the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities and
net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity
date. Derivative financial liabilities are included in the
analysis if their contractual maturities are essential for
an understanding of the timing of the cash flows. The

amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual ADHTH £ R AR E
undiscounted cash flows. EERANARRANRER
Se
On demand Between Between
or less than 1and3 3 months and Between Over
1 month months 1year 1and5 years 5 years
REXT
SR-BF -Z=fF ZM@ARE-E -5 BENE
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BE&R BB&R BB&R BE&R BBER
At 31 December 2019 R=ZB-n§
+ZA=t-H
Non-derivative FTESRaR
financial liabilities
Borrowings &3 410.6 113.2 2,1206 222 5.1
Lease liabilities HERR 18.0 36.0 1622 537.6 1176
Trade, bills and other payables &5 ZERE BN F0B 641.5 88.5 63.2 354 -
Amounts due to related parties SR 38 19.7 - 16 10.2 -
1,089.8 231.7 2,353.6 805.4 1227
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\F
t-A=1-H
Non-derivative FTESRAE
financial liabilities
Borrowings (excluding finance {53 (R B ERE
lease liabilites) HERE) 2416 3455 674.9 2,142.9 121
Finance lease liabilities BERERR 12.1 242 108.8 3196 20
Trade, bills and other payables ~ &5 ZERE BN 0B 986.4 1232 82.6 126 -
Amounts due to related parties SR 78 479 22 59 103 -
1,288.0 495.1 872.2 2,485.4 14.1
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “on demand or less than
1 month” time band in the above maturity analysis.
As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate carrying
amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to
HK$77.6 million (2018: HK$233.8 million). Taking
into account the Group's financial position, the
Directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment. The Directors believe
that such bank borrowings will be repaid within one
year after the reporting date in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal
and interest cash outflows of HK$77.9 million (2018:

HK$234.6 million) will be repaid within one year.

The amounts included above for the variable interest
rate instruments are subject to change if changes in
actual interest rates differ to those estimated at the

end of the reporting period.

3.2 Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's

overall strategy remained unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes bank and other borrowings and lease liabilities
(2018: bank and other borrowings and finance lease
liabilities) as disclosed in Notes 32 and 33 (2018: Note
32) and, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to shareholders of the Company, comprising

capital, various reserves and accumulated losses.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SRERER(E)

3.2 Capital management (continued) 32 EBEXEE (&)
The directors of the Company review the capital structure RABEETEHREHEREE
periodically. The directors of the Company also balance the RAREZNEBIMRE 2
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, TTHETIR R & 1 B8 B LA S 31T 3 (R
new share issues and share repurchases as well as the B ERREEEB T EEREE
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt. No AEB-BHE_ZT—NFT+=A
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes =+—HIEFE FRABE BUR
during the year ended 31 December 2019. R A EEE) -

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEME
The directors of the Company determine the appropriate ARREERATEAEEES
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value B E R A M ABUE -
measurements.
In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the REFTEEXRBBRRAFER
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is AEEERAERNTSHERY
available. Where Level 1 and 2 inputs are not available, the Bl — RE Z R AZEBRT
Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the AR AEEZEE=F5EK
valuation for financial instruments that are measured at HER AR B EEARFE
fair value on a recurring basis. The Directors and the senior TEZEMIAETHE-ES
management team work closely with the qualified external BREREEKEIINES EK
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques ERE )& EUAIE & B
and inputs to the model. BT R A SRR
Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used fHEE T TREERBEATE
in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities P2 R B9 (4 (B 508 R 3l A BUR =
are disclosed below. BEN T o
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IRE M BHRRMTEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SRRERER(E)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 AFEME (&)
The following table analyses the Group's financial TROMAEBER-_Z—NF
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 December 2019 by TZA=+—BRATFEIERZ
level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure eRIE - BRATEATEMA
fair value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels ZEFHEZ B ABEERE
within a fair value hierarchy as follows: Do BB ABBERTERER

W RA T =45

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for . TEEETS FHEREER AR

identical assets or liabilities (level 1). RFRE (REHAE) (F—
&) -

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level . BRE—ARFTERIERIIREIN -
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either BESBENA HE (A
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived B1%) sk #Z (AR EBE
from prices) (level 2). H)EBRFASaAB(F=

&) -

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on . I FEAR HR AT R 2 T 0% B
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) ETMEEBEGAE
(level 3). (BN A EREABE) (F

=8
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fme M B R RMEE

T REREE ()

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AREMEE (&)
Fair value measurements and valuation process A EFERMGERRF (&)
(continued)

Fair value Valuation technique(s)

Financial assets/(Financial liabilities) Fair value as at hierarchy and key input(s)

cREE/ (£RAR) RUATERNATE NTEER  HERMREESAZE
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
it Sy k3 It Syl
+-A=t-B +=A=1+-AH
HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEBT

1) Metal commodities future contracts classified as derivative (12.9) 2.9 Level 1 Quoted bid commodity futures prices on
finandial instruments in the consolidated balance sheet R the London Metal Exchange.
RGAEEBERTABAMECRIAZCBHRNE RALBRIFMFTRZERAEEAE.
af

2) Metal commodities future contracts classified as derivative 243 31.8 Level 2 Par method, taking actively traded future
financial instruments in the consolidated balance sheet (17.2) (19.9) $-8 prices into account.

R EERERTARRMECRTI A eBERAE AEE 2EXREROAEER-
G

3) Foreign currency forward contracts classified as derivative 0.7 1.4 Level 2 Present value of the future cash flows
financial instruments in the consolidated balance sheet (0.1) (0.6) Ek estimated based on forward exchange
RESEEBERTARAMESRI A MERERH rates (from observable forward exchange

rates at the end of the reporting period)
and contracted forward rates.
HENERER (RASHRIBRNES
%) RE AR BT E M EHRRE
ERMRE.

4)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 19 0.8 Level 3 Primarily based on the present value of

BATEABGZ SBEE F=H the estimated future cash flows of the
investee entities.
FEERRREERMEFAARRE LR
BiE.

5) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive 92%.7 111.0 Level 3 Primarily based on the present value of
income B the estimated future cash flows of the
BATEFAE M2 ARG, SBEE investee entities.

FEERRREERMEFAARRE LR
RfE-

6) Contingent consideration payable (Note 35) - (182.9) Level 3 Primarily based on the present value of

JERTSUARE (Fi3E35) F=H the estimated future cash flows.

IRERMERARR SRR E

EeRREBERAT —F-LFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IRE M BHRRMTEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SRERER(8)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 AFEME (&)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated FeiERBERERNQTEE
balance sheet: 2:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£-R E-R = @t
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M

HE%ET HEER HEERRT BEER

As at 31 December 2019 R-E-h&E+=-A=+—H
Assets EE
Financial assets at fair value through ~ BHATEFABZZEHEE

profit or loss - - 1.9 1.9
Financial assets at fair value through ~ RAFEFAEMEZEKEZ

other comprehensive income SREE - - 98.7 98.7
Derivative financial instruments fTESMIA - 25.0 - 25.0
Liabilities 2f&
Derivative financial instruments fTHEEMIEA (12.9) (17.3) - (30.2)
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+ZA=1—H
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through R AFEFABHEZ

profit or loss SHEE - - 08 08
Financial assets at fair value through ~ RAFEFAEMZE

other comprehensive income Wz e BEE - - 111.0 111.0
Derivative financial instruments THEERIA 2.9 332 = 36.1
Liabilities =0
Derivative financial instruments fTEEMTEA = (20.5) - (20.5)
Other payables and accruals Hit R 5E R gt E A

- contingent consideration payable —ERHARE - - (182.9) (182.9)
There were no transfers among the three levels during HE_Z-NFI=ZZ—N\F
either of the years ended 31 December 2019 or 2018. TZA=+—BIEFE =Z[EE

2 A RS o

The management considers that the carrying amounts ERERA NEaBHREA
of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at REENATENESREERS
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements BmEENEREDEEEL A TEMR
approximate their fair values. B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

The following financial assets are subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements

fme M B R RMEE

3 SRERER(E)

34 HETHEERTHER

AT &R EE S Ao
HEITR O FREEE LR

and similar agreements: LR AR -
Related amounts not net off
Gross amount ~ Net amounts in the consolidated
of recognised of financial balance sheet
Gross financial assets  RAGAEESERIKRY
amounts of liabilities presented BBLE
recognised et off in the in the Cash
financial  consolidated  consolidated Financial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2019 assets  balance sheet balance sheet  instruments received amount
RGREE
BERNBY  RGREE
ERR  EERER  ARREIN EHE
RZB-hE+ZA=t-A SHEESE BESE SHEERA $RIE  ReEAR E
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BERT BERT BEER BEER BEER BBAER
Pledged bank deposits BEREIRH 1917 - 1917 (96.1) (83.0) 126
Derivative financial instruments 744 &I &
- Foreign currency forward —— —SMEREIAY)
contracts 17 (1.0 0.7 - - 0.7
- Metal commodities futre ~ — £ BERES
contracts & 13 - 43 - - 243
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SRERER(8)
3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial 34 EHERMEERESHEE (H)
liabilities (continued)
(@) Financial assets (continued) ) =mEE (&)
Related amounts not net off
Gross amount et amounts in the consolidated
of recognised ~ of financial balance sheet
Gross financial assets  ARNGRAEBERNEN
amounts of liabilities presented RALE
recognised  net off in the in the Cash
financial  consolidated  consolidated Finandial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2018 assets  balance sheet  balance sheet  instruments received amount
REGREE
BERMRY  REREE
ERR CEEREE BEREIN BKE
R=B-NE+=B=t-H SREELR BELE SREAEFE SRMIE  REHERR 38
HK$M HK$M HKSM HKSM HK$M HK$M
BERT BERT BEATL BBAT BEBT BEBT
Pledged bank deposits BERRTER 31356 - 3136 (34.0) (248.1) 315
Derivative financial fTE¢RMIA
instruments
~ Foreign currency forward  —SMEREA 4
contracts 08 - 0.8 - - 08
- Foreign currency swap ~~ —SNEREAL
contracts 24 (2.4) - - - -
— Metal commodities future & BR R
contracts &h 37.0 (17) 353 (03) - 35.0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities (continued)

The following financial liabilities are subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements

fme M B R RMEE

3 SEREREE(E)
34 E#tREERSMAM (M)

AT &R B EXEE A8
HEITR O FREEE LR

and similar agreements: LR AR -
Related amounts not net off
Gross amount  Net amounts in the consolidated
of recognised  of financial balance sheet
Gross financial ~liabilities ~RRGAEEEBRNBRH
amounts assets netoff  presented RHLE
of recognised in the in the Cash
financial  consolidated  consolidated Financial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2019 liabilities balance sheet balance sheet  instruments received amount
REEEE
BERAKN WGEEE
BEA  CERILR SRRIIN BHE
R=B-NE+=A=1-H tREREE EEAE ¢REETE SRMIA REeEAR BE
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
AEBR BEER BERR BERR AEER AEER
Borrowings &R 2,795.4 - 2,795.4 (96.1) (83.0) 26163
Derivative financial ITEERMIA
instruments
— Foreign currency forward  —SMEREA 4
contracts 0.1 - 0.1 - - 0.1
- Metal commodities future —4 B REH
contracts an 31.1 (1.0) 30.1 - - 30.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IRE M BHRRMTEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3 ZRERER (&)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial 34 EHERMEERESHEE (H)
liabilities (continued)
Related amounts not net off in
Net amounts the consolidated
Gross amount of financial balance sheet
of recognised liabilities ~ ARGABEBERNBRA
Gross amounts ~ financial assets presented REEE
of recognised  net off in the in the Cash
financial  consolidated  consolidated Financial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2018 liabilities  balance sheet  balance sheet  instruments received amount
BERIRY  REREE
ERRA EREIER BEREIN B
RZE-N\F+=B=1-H cRaRER EERE SBERFE SRMIE  REHERR 38
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEAT - BEAT BBAT BBAT BEAT
Borrowings B3 3,7876 - 3,787.6 (34.0) (248.1) 3,505.5
Derivative financial fTE¢RMIA
instruments
~ Foreign currency forward  —SMEREA 4
contracts 0.3 - 0.3 - - 03
— Metal commodities future  —% B ik &
contracts &f 219 (17) 202 (03) - 199
—Foreign currency swap ~ — IR BEHAL
contracts 24 (2.4) - - - -

The gross amounts of the recognised financial assets
and financial liabilities as presented in the Group's
consolidated balance sheet, both of which have been
disclosed in the above tables, are measured as fair
value.

The disclosures set out in the tables above include
commodities futures contracts traded through
brokers, and foreign currency forward/swap contracts
contracted with banks. If a default event (included
but not limited to default payment, liquidation,
bankruptcy or insolvency) occurs, the brokers and the
banks are able to exercise the right to offset against
any favourable contracts and/or the collaterals placed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the

future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(a)

(b)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill
and other assets that have indefinite useful lives have
suffered any impairment. Other assets that are subject to
depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amounts of an asset or a cash-
generating unit have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations or its fair value less costs of disposal,
whichever is higher. These calculations require the use of
estimates. The value-in-use calculations primarily use cash
flow projections. Judgement is required to determine key
assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and
changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these
cash flow projections and therefore the results of the
impairment reviews.

Fair value of contingent consideration at the
date of acquisition

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations, which requires the Group to record
contingent consideration at its fair values on the date of
acquisition. Significant judgement and estimate are used
to determine the fair value of the contingent consideration
assumed. The valuation involves determining appropriate
discount rates and other assumptions.

fno M FE R RMIEE

& @it hE RA

lET M AT SR BTG - WA BERSR
REMEAZBER SREREBRT
BEHRREHNSERSR-

AEBEEHARRIEL A REBR- AL
EEZSAFBRARDEREERG
REF - EBERABRR T —HMBFEE
SIBMEERAGBRAEZEBRARENMG
At R RER T X # T

(@) FETRMEERE
AEBEOEERHEREMWE
EREEEBFHNEELITR
A UEERS LR RE Hibd
FMERBENEENEEERS
HHBRRBER R E BT R EE
HE AT B BRI BB EE TR
Mo BEXRSELBMNAK
OEREREREEREAFE
BMEERR (AREERE)FE
TAETNEE - ZEHETER
ENBEE-EREEFELZE
IZERRERERN KRR
METRR A PTER AR E 2 RBRA
TR H BT e R = R
BRI M E RS RETRME
EEARE UYRKFERER
AT VAR ©

(b) RUEERBNIAKELFE

AEBERBKEESER A O
AR EFFEARARERARK
BEMNATELEIARE
WHRA B A H T A5 AEE
A s RARERFE -AE
WREETE A E MR E R E AR

ESBREEERAR —E-—hE5H 187



188

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MR RMIEE

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Asset retirement obligations

Various pieces of land was leased by the Group for
operating scrap yards and preparation of the land might be
needed to make it appropriate for operation as scrap yards.

It was the Group's contractual obligation to bring the land
to its original condition as the Group is not the owner of
the land. The Group estimates the expected costs necessary
to dismantle the scrap yards by assessing the discount rate
as well as expected increment in future cost which might
lead to changes in the provisions recognised.

Estimation of provision for impairment of
receivables

The loss allowances for receivables are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the allowances calculation,
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Where the
expectations are different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the carrying values of receivables
and the impairment loss on receivable is recognised in the
years in which such estimates have changed.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain,

jurisdictions.

such as
deductibility of compensation payments to customers.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences would impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(e)

()

(9)

Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimates, such difference will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax in the
period in which such estimates are changed.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
cost to completion and selling expenses. Management of
the Group reviews the inventories listing on a category-
by-category basis at the end of the reporting period, and
assesses whether the cost of the finished products will
exceed their net realisable value. Management estimates
the net realisable value for such inventories based primarily
on the latest resale value and quoted prices on applicable
commodity exchanges. If the market price of inventories
are to decline, additional write down may be required.
Management reassesses the estimation at the end of each
reporting period.

Fair value of derivatives and other financial
assets

The fair value of financial instruments and other financial
assets (including embedded derivative components of
convertible bonds and options over shares in joint ventures
to joint venture partners, if any) that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using appropriate valuation
techniques and making assumptions that are based on
market conditions existing at each reporting date.

The fair value of options over shares of non-listed entities
are determined using discounted cash-flow method, which
requires the determination of an appropriate discount rate
as well as assumptions regarding the cash-flow projections.

4

(e)

()

(9

EaRREBERAH

fno M FE R RMIEE

==
(=]

Zaarilhat LHE (8)

BNEA REFEFT S B (/)

fid & 22 [E R 45 B R ] BE A JE AR Tt
o ) AR VR I 85 5 B 2 2R e B TR S
BReRRARE TERER
HHBBROELEHBEE i
BHEZNE TR MEEE
BE T B M E B RES
BEERMSHER-

FE2AEEFE
FREZAZRFEL/AEELS
R hEr EER AT R
RHERX ARBEEEER®
SHRREN BRI TR  ALfhE
B fn H R AN R 75 R 8 A] 3R
B-EEETIERSRMEEER
RAEAmR P REMG B
FEMAIZRFE HFEME
T BUSKZAVEH BRIMMORL - B 72
AERESREMRENFHERH
fli&t e

TTETIARHEMESRMEEZ AT
|

WHNERTSEENSRTA
REMEEEE (B AT RRE
HFZBRAATER D kA& &R
XABABLZEE2REBRNE
fetE (0E) ) 2 R FETBEBRK
REAMBRETNEMMREERE R
HEENTRIELNRRKRERE -

FIFEMEEROOBEENR
FEDRBRMERRESRELE
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RS MR RMIEE

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(h) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

0]

and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges
for its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
by reference to the estimated periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of
these assets. These estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets of similar nature
and functions. Management will adjust useful lives as
appropriate. Periodic review could result in a change in
useful lives and therefore depreciation and amortisation
expense in the future periods.

The Group has periodically reassessed useful lives of its
property, plant and equipment, taking into consideration
past usage and performance, prior repair and maintenance
efforts, current physical and operating conditions of these
assets, industry practices as well as future usage plans.

Determination of the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers
all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a
termination option. Extension options (or not periods after
termination options) are only included in the lease term
if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated). The assessment is reviewed when a significant
event or a significant change in circumstances occurs which
affects this assessment and that is within the control of the
leasee.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's revenue mainly represents the amounts received or
receivable for the sales of recycled scraps and wastes, net of sales
related taxes, during the year. The Group derives revenue mainly
from transfer of these goods at a point in time.

In the current year, the Group’'s CODM, which has been
identified as the Executive Committee that makes strategic
decisions, assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on the measure of segment profit. This measurement
basis excludes the effects of non-operating gains/losses, such
as gain/loss on disposals of subsidiaries, gain/loss on fair value
change of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The
measure also excludes centralised costs such as the Group’s key
managements’ remunerations and other central administrative
expenses. Finance income, finance costs, income tax expenses
and those unallocated income and expenses are not included in
the result for each operating segment that is reviewed by the
Group’s CODM. Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing
market price.

Total segment assets exclude deferred income tax assets,
fixed return investment, tax recoverable, derivative financial
instruments and cash and cash equivalents which are managed
centrally. Information relating to segment liabilities is not
disclosed as such information is not regularly reported to the
CODM.

fno M FE R RMIEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HMRMIEE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The following table paresents revenue and segment profit
information regarding the Group’s reportable segments for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, respectively:

D EER (F)
TERANBIERAEBRE-2—N
ER-Z-N\F+-A=+—ALFE
7] 2 5 Hezs R 5 BRI AR

For the year ended
BENTRYLER
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
“R-nEtZAZ1-H B \FT-H=1-H
North North
Asia - Europe  America Unallocated Total Asia  Europe  America Unallocated Total
B Bl tEN APE it &l B RN RAE 23t
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BE%n FEBr EERr EEMn BEEn AEMn EEEn REAT  BEET  BEERD
Revenue Wi
Total seqment revenue HHlELE 20154 12,1668 1,4109 - 155931 37514 151665 23867 - 213046
Inter-seqment sales AHEHE - (1948 (349) - (9 - (834 (1084 - (919
xtermal sales e 20154 119720 13760 - 153634 37514 148831 22783 - 2009128
Segment (loss)profit 28(8E) /%7 (13 37 (484 (459 1131 2752 435 84 1184 8455
Finance income BB 6 3656
Finance costs BRA (236.0) (412.7)
(Loss)Profit before income tax R (B8) /&7 (99.5) 469.4
Income tax expense FiEHE i (343) (104)
(Loss)Profit or the year (58 /&l (133.) 3990
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 77 R& I (i)
(Note) (65.8)  (291.1) (443) 213) (4225 (65.3) (2314) (522) (264)  (3813)
Fair value (loss)igain on derivative fESBIEZATE
financialinstruments (BlB) /s - - - (2.1 (2.1 - - - 347 347
Gain on disposal of property, plantand ~ HENE BEREENR
equipment and right-of-use assets FREEE R - - - 33 33 - - - 296 296
Provision for impairment of property, 41 HERREZRERE
plant and equipment - - - (09) (09) - - - (12) (12)
Loss on disposals and deregistration of  HERFHTAFZER
subsidiaries - - - (137) (137) - - - - -
Gain on disposals of financial assets  HERATET ABEL
atfair value through profit or loss SHEE NS - - - - - - - - 200 200
Gain on disposal of assets classified ~~ HEABRREIEEEL
as held for sale W - - - - - - - - 1095 1095

Note: Depreciation and amortisation expenses for the year ended 31 December
2019 included the depreciation and amortisation of right-of-use assets as a

result of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note 8).
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fme M B R RMEE

5 n#EER (&)

Segment assets PHEE
Reconciliation of segment assets to total assets as at 31 RZTE—-—NF+—A=+—HBEZ=F
December 2019 and 31 December 2018 are provided as follows: —NF+ZA=t+—HBHHBEEREE

REMHRAT
As at
R
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
ZE2-AE+ZA=t-8 “E-N\E+-A=1-H
North North

Asia  Europe  America Total Asia Europe  America Total
3] B LEM @zt EE) B =M &t
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEEnT FEBn EE%x EEER BEET BEAT BEEAT  BEAT
Segment assets PHEE 2,037.9 6,206.0 908.7 9,152.6 2,112.6 6,563.5 1,0028 10,2789
Deferred income tax assets BRAMEHAE 109.3 148.7
Fixed return investment Eraake 88.4 2113
Tax recoverable AREHE 299 154
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T££ BT & 250 36.1
Cash and cash equivalents BeRAESEER 784.8 697.1
Total assets BELE 10,190.0 11,3875

Geographical information i EE R

Non-current assets, other than financial instruments and deferred
income tax assets, and analysed by geographic regions as follows:

FRBEETBREERTANMREEMRS
MEE MBS :

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

R-ZE-hE RK-_Z—N\F

+=—A=+—-8 +=—A=+—8H

HK$M HK$M

BEBTT BEBT

Asia EED 1,033.7 1,037.1
Europe B 4,178.5 4,077.9
North America BRI 723.1 680.6
Total “ET 5,935.3 5,795.6

EeRREBERA
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IRE B MRMIEE
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 DIER(E)
Analysis of revenue by category REBER B2 WED N
For the year ended
BEUTHHILEE
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-h#EF —T-)N\F
+=—HA=+—-8 +ZA=+—H
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEABT
Metal recycling 2 BE K
— Ferrous metal —REEE 10,063.9 11,533.8
— Non-ferrous metal —-BEEE 4,279.3 8,482.6
Forging and foundry s RIS 342.4 153.6
Others HAth 677.8 742.8
Total st 15,363.4 20,912.8
Information about major customers FEEFHNER
No single customer contributed 10% or more to the Group's REBEZE—_Z-NFR-_ZE-N\F+=A
revenue during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. =+—HILFE WES-FXFERA
EERE10% LA £ o
6 OTHER INCOME 6 EHhA
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEERT BEBTT
Rental income THE U A 23.7 22.0
Rental income from investment properties &M EME LU A (HizE17)

(Note 17) 3.7 3.7
Government grants I 478 B 6.5 0.9
Dividend income SN ON 4.8 3.5
Other income from related parties 2R B B HE 7 HY H A g A

(Note 39(a)) (Ht7£39(a) ) 7.8 3.7
Compensation from insurance coverage REatHE 49.0 16.3
Others Hh 31.5 491

127.0 99.2
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fme M B R RMEE

OTHER GAINS, NET 7  HilhasF5
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$M HK$M
EE- - BEBTT
(Loss)/Gain on fair value change of: N EEF
(E18) Mz -
— derivative financial instruments —PTEEmIA (2.1) 34.7
— financial assets at fair value through —BAFEFAERZ
profit or loss CREE 1.7 (3.2)
Foreign exchange gains/(loss), net &5 Wz (518 ) 558 13.9 (1.4)
Provision for impairment of property, Y- BB REEZ
plant and equipment (Note 14) BERE (M5E14) (0.9) (1.2)
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BERK
plant and equipment and right-of-use LA R {56 F e 8 R 2 W e
assets 333 29.6
Gain on disposal of assets classified as held HEDBEAFEHEETE 2
for sale (Note (i) Uz CBI=EG)) - 109.5
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair HEEAFEFAEBRZ
value through profit or loss (Note 20) SR EE 2 W (M15E20) - 20.0
Compensation income ERA - 453
Loss on disposal and deregistration of & R F AR ZEE (M
subsidiaries (Note (ii)) (i) ) (13.7) =
Others HAf 10.9 (0.7)
43.1 232.6

Notes: it & -

(i) Pursuant to a state-owned construction land use right transfer contract, a (i) BIREAERAMERREREAR - —RL
piece of land located in Shandong Province, the PRC, which was classified RBBELURENTHMER =S —tF+=
as assets held for sale as at 31 December 2017, was surrendered to the A=+—B2EAREHEZE HER
local government in 2018 and a gain on disposal of HK$109.5 million was )\ FRTEHBN YREBEE=F
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2018. —\FE+ZA=+—HBLFEBRRHER

@ 1189508 ATt ©

(i) The Group disposed 75% equity interests in three subsidiaries in the USA and (i) HE-_T—NF+-A=1+—HBHLEE"
formed a joint venture with an independent third party who is also engaged AEBHERERZ =M FRAZ75%K
in scrap metal recycling for a consideration of US$4.5 million (approximately BREBYFE=77 (ATHEFLELED
HK$34.9 million) and a loss on disposal of HK$9.5 million was recognised for YO —M&EERE RERIOEET
the year ended 31 December 2019. The remaining amount of HK$4.2 million (%93,4908 78 7T ) W HERR H & E 189508
represented loss from deregistration of a subsidiary. BT 284208 B TRETH—HF

RAEIZEHE -
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IRE M BHRRMTEE

8 EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 BEH 2R
2019 2018
—E-hF —N\F
HK$M HK$M
HEAT BEBTT
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress fE& G MK MTEEZ EH)
and finished goods (141.9) (234.8)
Raw materials and consumables used FT AR & R OEFE dm 12,266.9 16,782.3
(Reversal of provision)/Provision for FE (BERER) BEFEE
inventories, net (Note 24) (FFzE24) (1.9) 18.5
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) EERAEE (FFE9) 1,155.1 1,272.8
Depreciation and amortisation expenses of #)% - B E K& EFEE
property, plant and equipment, intangible ~RIEEWEZITE R
assets and investment properties BIHR 263.2 381.3
Depreciation and amortisation expenses of {# FEEE 2 T & &
right-of-use assets B 159.3
Legal and professional expenses ERREERT 43.8 66.8
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B B
— Audit services — iz 2R 7% 27.5 31.6
— Non-audit services — IR ERTE 7.3 2.7
Other expenses HmE 1,727.8 2,239.8
Total cost of sales, distribution and selling ~ $5& AN « 75 84 &t & 5 2
expenses and administrative expenses AR ATEUF 2 4858 15,507.1 20,561.0
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fme M B R RMEE

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 9 EERMAX
Employee benefit expenses during the year are as follows: FANESEFNFAAT
2019 2018
—2-NF —= JAES
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEBT
Wages and salaries TERF& 961.3 1,078.0
Other termination benefits H Al 5 B AR A 5.4 3.7
Social security costs FEARBK AR 28.3 27.8
Pension costs — defined contribution RIS KA — R ERKETE
plans (Note (a)) (FfF3E@)) 107.7 108.1
Pension costs — defined benefit plans BRAREKA—FREBMETE 0.5 0.6
Other employee benefits HiE S @A 51.9 54.6
Total employee benefit expense EERT M AR 1,155.1 1,272.8
Notes: B2
(a) Pensions — defined contribution plans (a) BHhe - REMNRETE
Contributions totalling HK$0.2 million (2018: HK$0.3 million) were payable to HREH20BB T (ZE—N\F:308%
the fund as at 31 December 2019. AR Z-—NF+ZR=+—HIHE=
NiEE -
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) AUGKSHMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the FAREEZ AU ZRFTHALTEENS
year include two (2018: two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the BEERFIRAK 40T AT 2 M ES (=F
analysis shown in Note 40. The emoluments payable to the remaining three —NEF ML) FABRNFHTI=ML (=
(2018: three) individuals during the year are as follows: T-N\F:Z)ATZHMENT :
2019 2018
S —T-N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEBT
Salaries, bonus and other allowances & - fE4L & H fih )£ B4 10.9 17.6
Pension costs-defined RN PR — FE G &
contribution plans - -
10.9 17.6
The emoluments fell within the following bands: B < 7 - LA T #6[E] -
Number of Number of
individual individual
AB AE
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/%8 7L £3,000,000/% 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T 23,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001/ 7T 25,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 7T 6,000,000/ 7T - 2
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,001/ 7T £6,500,0007% 7T - 1
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IRE B MRMIEE
10 FINANCE COSTS, NET 10 HATEACAN F 58
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$M HK$M
HEAT AEBTT
Interest income from bank deposits RITIF R Z A E WA 9.5 10.5
Interest income from fixed return & 7€ B % & 2 F B A
investment 12.6 22.3
Interest income from related parties B @@ 2 F B WA
(Note 39(a)) (KTE39(a) ) 1.5 3.8
Finance income ””””%7{7']’;%714538\ 77777777777777777777777 236 366
Interest expense on bank loans, overdrafts, RITEBX  EBNZE X
bills payable and note payable ZREMNRIEZFEMAX (79.4) (244.8)
Effective interest expense on other HthfE R ERF SR
borrowings (137.7) (103.0)
Interest expense on early redemption of REELRRENKIBEZ
note payable R - (36.6)
Interest expense on early repayment of REEEEMERZ
other borrowings B - (14.2)
Interest expense on lease liabilities (2018: FE&E (=T — /\%:
finance lease liabilities) (Note 33) MEHEEAR) 2
M BRI (MEE33) (18.5) (13.5)
Interest expense on loans from related KRB BT B R FLE
parties (Note 39(a)) sz (KI5E39(@a)) (0.6) (0.6)
Pl GO I L. (2362) 200
Finance costs, net B 75 B AN 5 5B (212.6) (376.1)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT")
and the relevant EIT Implementation Regulations, the tax rate of
PRC EIT has been provided at the rate of 25% (2018: 25%) on
the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Germany and USA income taxes have been provided at the rate
of approximately 30% (2018: 30%) and 26% (2018: 26%)
respectively, on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Taxation on profits from other jurisdictions has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

11

fme M B R RMEE

FTiS i sz

EBFERTIREFE NG ERREF
R E165% (=2 — /\5E:16.5% ) 5t
B

REBHBECEMRSHR ([REMREHR])
ERBEEEMEHREREN  PED
BB IRIRE QbR BRTUE M R
B E25% (ZF— \F:25% ) st &
e

B R EBEMSHR D BIRFERGETE
REUR AR R H30% (ZF— \F:
30% ) 226% (—F—)\F :26% ) 5T 1=
B o

o 8 Bty FAAEE AR 2 BB TS A
Bl T ER 2 BB B E R
5 RE B F o

2019 2018
—E-NF ZE—)N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEER AEBTT
Current income tax (expense)/credit: BIEAFT S RiIE (AX) %
Germany == (23.8) (104.1)
PRC EIT R FTISH (0.3) (0.5)
Hong Kong profits tax BENGEH (1.3) (2.7)
USA ESEl - (2.2)
Other jurisdictions Er AR (5.0) 1.0
(30.4) (108.5)
(Under)/Over provision in prior years: RBEFE (BETR),/
FRFE AR -
Germany = (1.1) 17.1
Hong Kong profits tax BBNFH 0.2 4.3
USA = 21 -
Other jurisdictions B el kR 0.5 6.2
D 1.7
Deferred income tax (expense)/credit BEFAER (AX)
T me(fmos) Ge 105
Income tax expense Fr8 R (34.3) (70.4)

EaRREBERAH
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IRE M BHRRMTEE

RSt (8)

NEBBRETEHA (BE), SR
TH B A3 A AR A B B8 s F B N
R EmMEANERSEIERAT

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11

The tax on the Group’s (loss)/profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profit of the consolidated entities as

follows:

2019 2018
—E-h#EF —E-)N\F
HKSM HK$M
BEART BEBT
(Loss)/Profit before income tax BT SR A (BR) %A (99.5) 469.4
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates 238 F 7S AR A B 2R 4 1 Y
applicable to profits in the respective 7N H F SR =+ B A I8
countries (15.4) 153.3
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for 7~ A] F0F: 5 5% B9 % 746 57 22
tax purpose 49.8 97.0
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARBBRANF G2
tax purpose (60.9) (40.9)
Tax effect of temporary differences RIERNE RN
not recognised T 2 17.7 (11.4)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTEBENH BT E 64.6 12.4
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses £ 2 Bl R TR Bl B & 18 &Y
previously not recognised M (2.8) (77.3)
Tax impact on share of results from HEGBE A T&A%ﬁ¥
an associate and joint ventures FBIMBHE (17.0) (35.1)
Over provision in respect of B FEBERE
prior years (1.7) (27.6)
Income tax expense for the year FRTEH X 34.3 70.4

MEFEAREE155% (ZF—N
F£:32.7%) ° /ﬁ/ﬂmb‘é%?% Az
ENBE

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 15.5% (2018:
32.7%). The decrease is caused by changes in the profitability of
certain subsidiaries. Rl
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12 DIVIDENDS 12

No dividend was paid or proposed during 2019 and 2018, nor
has any dividend been proposed by the Company since the end of
the reporting period in respect of the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2018.

13 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 13
(a) Basic
Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
(loss)/profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

fme M B R RMEE

i

ARRRZE—NFER_ZT—\FHE
K SREZRAEAKE  BBE=-Z
—NFER=ZZE—N\F+=ZA=+—HL
FERFRE R IMEREZ RS AR

B o
/T

=% (EB8) /&F

(@ E=X
FREAN (BB) /B JHEA A
AR B AFEE (BE) % F
FRUAZNF S B 317 Z @R i F
HHBFTERSD -

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HKSM HK$M
BEAR AEBT
(Loss)/Profit (F518) %A
(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable 72 &) B IR fE G
to shareholders of the Company REE (F518) w575 (128.7) 401.2
Number of shares R4 E
Weighted average number of BEITE AR INE
ordinary shares in issues FHHE (FR)
(thousands) 1,605,153 1,605,153
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREAN (F8) &
(expressed in HK$) (LA T35, ) (0.08) 0.25
(b) Diluted b) #E
The Group has no potentially dilutive shares outstanding REEZT-NFR=F-NF
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. TRt ALEFEAREY
EmEBITEEEERND -

EaRREBERAH
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RS BRRMEE
14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 W% - WE k&
Office
Plant furniture
Land and and and  Construction
buildings machinery  equipment in progress Total
RRRE
THREF BERES & EEIR @t
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEBTL BEBTL BEBTL BEAT BEAT
At 1 January 2018 nZZ-NF—F—-H
Cost A 2,7415 1,2933 109.2 98.0 4242.0
Accumulated depreciation and ZAMERAMERSE
impairment loss (146.5) (502.6) (33.6) - (682.7)
Net book amount EEFE 2,595.0 790.7 75.6 98.0 3,559.3

Year ended 31 December 2018 EHE-T—)\5

TZRA=+-HLEE

Opening net book amount ENEmEE 2,595.0 790.7 75.6 98.0 3,559.3
Acquisition of business (Note 41)  URBE %7 (it 541) - = 05 = 05
Additions RE 80.3 264.9 134.2 122.7 602.1
Transfer upon completion iR L 14.9 79.6 15.6 (110.1) =
Transfer from assets classified as ~ EB D EABELENEE

held for sale 5.1 - - - 5.1
Impairment loss (Note 7) REBE (ME7) (1.0 = (02) = (1.2)
Disposals e (33.8) (32.7) (2.9) 4.1 (73.5)
Depreciation charge FERY (121.8) (168.6) (45.6) - (336.0)
Currency translation differences ~ EX Z% (110.9) (33.2) (5.8) (2.9) (152.8)
Closing net book amount ERZERFE 2,427.8 900.7 1714 103.6 3,603.5
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF+-A=1+—H
Cost A 2,699.1 1,531.1 2448 103.6 4,578.6
Accumulated depreciation and ZEMERBEBE

impairment loss (2713) (630.4) (73.4) - (975.1)
Net book amount BEFE 2,427.8 900.7 1714 103.6 3,603.5

202 cChiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fme M B R RMEE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14 %% /= K&k (&)

Office
Plant furniture
Land and and and  Construction
buildings machinery  equipment in progress Total
BORE
THREF BERES &Y ERIE @zt
HK$M HK$M HK$M HKSM HKSM

AERET AEET AERET AEET BERT

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-_Z-NF+-RA=1+-H

fl:35

Opening net book amount FNREFE 2,421.8 900.7 1714 103.6 3,603.5
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 RMEBH RS LR E 1652

(Note 2.1.2(a)) 2 (Mit2.1.2@) (29.7) (302.2) (1243) - (456.2)
Restated opening net book amount & &5 F¥ER A F(E 2,398.1 598.5 471 103.6 3,1473
Additions NE 79.2 63.2 79.3 115.8 3375
Transfer upon completion IR kB R 1.8 719 24.2 (107.9) -
Transfer to investment properties BERENZ

(Note 17) (B#17) (6.6) - - - (6.6)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEFAH (4.8) (8.7) (1.7) (1.0) (16.2)
Impairment loss (Note 7) REEE (M7) (0.9) - - - (0.9)
Disposals HE (137.8) (54.7) (22.8) (4.8) (220.1)
Depreciation charge HERY (106.6) (83.1) (31.0) - (220.7)
Currency translation differences ERES (32.3) (4.9) 0.2 (0.4) (37.4)
Closing net book amount ERZEEFE 2,200.1 582.2 95.3 1053 2,982.9
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+ZA=1+—H
Cost AR 2,531.8 1,070.5 160.4 105.3 3,868.0
Accumulated depreciation and ZAMERREER

impairment loss (331.7) (488.3) (65.1) - (885.1)
Net book amount REFE 2,200.1 582.2 95.3 1053 2,982.9
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RSB HMRMIEE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Notes:

Construction in progress as at 31 December 2019 mainly comprises new metal scrap
processing machinery and equipment being constructed in Asia and Europe.

Buildings and plants with a net book value of HK$1,905.0 million (2018: HK$1,838.3
million) were pledged to secure certain borrowings and general banking facilities
granted to the Group (Note 37).

As at 31 December 2018, plant and machinery includes the following amounts where
the Group is a lessee under a finance lease:

14

W BB MRt ()

G2

RIE-NF+-A=+-—HNERIRIEE
FEIMEBOMNZRTOMBESBIN THER

BREFER19E500BB T (ZT—\F: 188
3,8308 % L) MIEFREE B EIF  (EAREERE
BETERR—RRITRE /KR (ME37)

RZFB-—N\F+_A=+—H0 BEREHIEEN
T2 A5EERET —ERERNNARA

2018
—E-N\F
HK$M
BEBTT

Cost — capitalised finance leases ERA—ERMEEERLD
Accumulated depreciation ESiin

166.3
(61.5)

Net book amount BREFE

104.8

From 1 January 2019, leased assets are presented as right-of-use assets in the
consolidated balance sheet (Notes 2.1.1 (a) and 16).
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RO RMTEE
15 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 15 ME i N HoF AR
The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid REB NI E BN ESETAMNEE
operating lease payments and their net book values are analysed HENFEEERFEITAOT
as follows:
2019 2018
—E-h#EF —E-N\F
HK$M HK$M
AEBT BEBTT
At 1 January R—H—H 387.9 412.9
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 FRANT S B T R ZE Bl
(Note 2.1.2(a)) Fl6R 2w B
(Hi7E2.1.2(a)) (387.9) -
Restated opening net book amount KCE I F A AR TEDF RE - 412.9
Amortisation charge BiHR S - (10.3)
Currency translation differences PE 5 =% - (14.7)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H - 387.9
From 1 January 2019, leasehold land and land use rights were BE-E—hE—F—HE - BELHE
reclassified to right-of-use assets upon adoption of HKFRS 16 + i R RE R AN TS B 15 3R & 28
(Notes 2.1.2 (a) and 16). FleRmBEEND B ATREEE (M

212 (@k16) °
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16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HMRMIEE

16 FAEEE

Office
Land Plant furniture
and and and Intangible
buildings machinery  equipment assets Total
WAKR
THRET EERESR SET BREE Foh
HKSM HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEER BEER BEAR BRBAER BRBER
At 1 January 2019 RZE-hF—A—-H
(upon adoption of HKFRS 16) (RNEREBIERE
EB|E1651%)
Cost A 607.6 4973 182.4 0.4 1,287.7
Accumulated depreciation, amortisation 24 & 8 &
and impairment loss REBE (96.1) (181.6) (32.1) - (309.8)
Net book amount REFE 511.5 315.7 150.3 0.4 977.9
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-Z-—nF
TZA=+—-ALEEE
Opening net book amount FNREFE (RERES
(upon adoption of HKFRS 16) FEREERE65%) (i
(Note 2.1.2 (a)) 2.12 () 511.5 315.7 150.3 0.4 977.9
Additions RE 134.9 170.0 90.8 - 395.7
Disposals & (8.1) (2.5) (3.9) - (14.5)
Depreciation and amortisation charge #7 & J % §55 % (31.9) (88.2) (38.9) (0.3) (159.3)
Currency translation differences ERES (7.2) (4.6) (2.2) - (14.0)
Closing net book amount FRZEEFE 599.2 390.4 196.1 0.1 1,185.8
At 31 December 2019 RZB-—h%F
+-A=1+-A
Cost KA 725.9 640.9 258.0 0.4 1,625.2
Accumulated depreciation, 2iiE BERAEES
amortisation and impairment loss (126.7) (250.5) (61.9) 0.3) (439.4)
Net book amount FREFE 599.2 390.4 196.1 0.1 1,185.8
Notes: B &

Certain leasehold land and land use rights with a net book value of HK$288.2 million
(2018: HK$316.4 million were pledged to secure certain borrowings and general
banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 37).

Expenses relating to short-term leases of HK$20.1 million and expenses relating to
leases of low-value assets that are not classified as short-term leases of HK$13.4
million were charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year

ended 31 December 2019.

Annual Report 2019
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fme M B R RMEE

17 "REWH

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HKS$M HK$M
BEET BEAT
At 1 January R—A—H 3.2 3.5
Depreciation charge WERX (0.4) (0.2)
Transfer from property, plant and EEAME BRERZE
equipment (Note 14) (FFE14) 6.6 =
Currency translation differences PEH =% (0.3) (0.1)
At 31 December R+-_A=+—8H 9.1 3.2
Notes: B 5
(i) The above investment properties, which are situated in the PRC (2018: the (i) FRRFPR(ZE—N\F FEH)NEEY

PRC) are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the remaining useful lives.

(ii) The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31 December 2019 was

HK$16.6 million (2018: HK$6.1 million).

(iii) Rental income from these investment properties recognised in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to HK$3.7 million (2018: HK$3.7 million) (Note 6).

(iv) Investment properties with a net book value of HK$9.1 million (2018: nil)
were pledged to secure certain borrowings and general banking facilities

granted to the Group (Note 37).

EERRTEAFHAEREENRE-

(ii) REBLEMER-—FT—NLE+=-A
=+—HHAFEAR6608ET (=%
—N\E:6108BT) °

(i) MEBEE-FT-AF+ZA=t—HLFE
ERABERRANBANKEZTRENE
WHSWARI708E T (ZF—/\F:370
EH87L) (MisEe) -

(iv) REFERIOBEL (ZE-N\F 8

REMEEER UMERAKREERTE
FERR—RIRITELE HHEIR (FE37) -
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RSB HMRMIEE

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18 ELEE

Customers'
relationship
Brand names, and Non-
Computer  patents and suppliers’  competition
Goodwill software licenses  relationship  agreement Total
mie EH BRFEEER  HERE
BHE  sKEN LERE HERMER A b
HKSM HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEET RAEEL BERT BA&ET ABERT BERT
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZE=ZT—/)\F
TZA=t-RIEEE
Opening net book amount FENREFE 791.7 59 3115 98.6 - 1,207.7
Additions NE - 2.5 - - 453 47.8
Acquisition of business Yok %75 (Mizka1)

(Note 41) - - - 16.0 - 16.0
Amortisation charges BHERZ - (3.5 (11.2) (8.8) (11.3) (34.8)
Currency translation differences & 5 Z %8 (34.8) (0.4) (13.3) (4.1) 0.2) (52.8)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 756.9 45 287.0 101.7 338 1,183.9
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F

+=A=+—-A
Cost A 756.9 10.3 302.9 114.3 45.0 1,229.4
Accumulated amortisation 2ETE - (5.8) (15.9) (12.6) (11.2) (45.5)
Net book amount REHE 756.9 4.5 287.0 101.7 33.8 1,183.9
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fme M B R RMEE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 18 EEE (B)
Customers’
relationship
Brand names, and Non-
Computer patentsand  suppliers’ competition
Goodwill software licenses relationship  agreement Total
mE-BF EFEER RERH
BE  ERgK kiEE HEFERE &8 @zt
HK$M HK$SM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEAR BEER EX-3- EX-3- -3 EE-3-
Year ended HE-Z-NF
31 December 2019 TZRA=+-RALLEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 756.9 45 287.0 101.7 33.8 1,183.9
Additions NE - 5.6 - - - 5.6
Disposals of subsidiaries HETFAT - - - (14.2) - (14.2)
Amortisation charges BHRY - (2.3) 9.7) (8.1) (22.0) (42.1)
Currency translation differences [ 5 2% (11.6) - (4.4) (1.5) 0.7) (18.2)
Closing net book amount FREmFE 745.3 7.8 2729 719 141 1,115.0
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NF
+-A=1+-AR
Cost R 7453 16.2 2983 96.9 443 1,201.0
Accumulated amortisation g 3] - (8.4) (25.4) (19.0) (332 (86.0)
Net book amount EEFE 745.3 7.8 272.9 71.9 1.1 1,115.0
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18

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives

Goodwill is recognised through the acquisition of Yantai Liheng
Environmental Protection Technology Co., Ltd* (/& & 3 3R
REEBRAA]) (“Yantai Liheng”) and Scholz Holding GmbH
(“Scholz Holding”) in 2016 with carrying amount of HK$13.6
million and HK$731.7 million (2018: HK$14.1 million and
HK$742.8 million), respectively, as at 31 December 2019.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives represented brand
names with carrying amount of HK$185.4 million (2018:
HK$188.3 million) as at 31 December 2019.

Management reviews the business performance based on
geographic regions. It has identified Asia, Europe and North
America as the main regions. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of Yantai Liheng is allocated to Asia region and that
arising from the acquisition of Scholz Holding is allocated to
Asia, Europe and North America regions. Brand names have been
allocated to Europe and North America regions.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated
below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the metal recycling business in which the CGU
operates.

Annual Report 2019
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BmEEE (&)
BERAERUEHFTFH2EBLEE
ZRE R
BEDNEAR T —~"FREES T
GEREREERAR ([EExE]) R
Scholz Holding GmbHI|IBE & 2% B R
AaE* ([NEERIZER]) MR R=F
—hWE+ZA=+—10 KEES A
1,3608 8 7t k7183,1708 8 T (=&
—\F:1,4108 % T & 7184,2808 %
TT) °

EERAERFRACEFLEEER
E-NE+-_A=+—HERERIE
8,540 BT (=& — )\ : 1188,8308
PEIT) MM AE L TE -

EEERBEMWBMEEFEBRR -H
ERAIEM  BUNRIEEMER T 21
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill and intangible assets

with indefinite useful lives (continued)

For the impairment test for goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives, the key assumptions, long term growth
rate and discount rate used in the value-in-use calculations are

18 EREE (&)

ZBERR (%)

BERAERUEAFHZETEE

SEBKAERAERFHZELEE
ZRERH  EREER
ERR RMEBERXERIFRERERT

BREARNE

disclosed below: X
North
Asia Europe America
M BUM 3k EM
2019 —E-NF
Long term growth rate REE R X 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Pre-tax discount rate (Note (i) BRELATHTIR K (HIEEG)) 17.7%-19.1% 14.2% 13.9%

Gross profit margin

%

5.2%-7.9%

7.7%-9.0%

8.0%-9.6%

Revenue growth rate W R 2.6%-37.0% 2.3%-9.1% 3.3%-11.0%
North

Asia Europe America
=M BOM Sl

2018 —E-NE

Long term growth rate REPER® 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%

Pre-tax discount rate (Note (i) BRI AT E & (HEEEG)) 17.7%-19.1% 14.2% 13.9%

Gross profit margin EH = 5.6%-7.2% 8.7%-9.1% 9.3%-9.6%

Revenue growth rate Y 7 48 & X 1.2%-39.8% 0.4%-2.9% 2.0%-17.7%

Note: B &

(i) Pre-tax discount rate applied to the pre-tax cash flow forecast. (i) FERRBRFLATER &R RI R BRI AT IR X o

The recoverable amounts for Asia, Europe and North America
CGUs would still exceed their carrying amounts if the assumptions

were changed as follows:

° lowering long term growth rate by 1 percentage point;

° raising pre-tax discount rate by 1 percentage point; or

° lowering revenue growth rate by 20% of the expected

growth rate.

FHRRE(E :

i RREBOT M- EMH)SUE%/)H
ReEERMH AR E SRS ES

RRERXEEIEE S

BB AT T IR RARTHE B 5 3

%

s R R T B R

20% °
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RSB HMRMIEE

19 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 19 FAEREYERNRE
EQUITY METHOD
(a) Interest in an associate (@) REEARZER
2019 2018
—®-hE  ZF)\F
HK$M HK$M
BEBT BEBT
Cost of unlisted investment in REEE AR ZIELETIRE
an associate (Note) A (BE5E) 2.3 2.3
Share of post-acquisition FE(RULEE 12 REtE 1R
accumulated losses (0.6) (0.3)
1.7 2.0
Notes: B 5 -
Details of the Group’s associate at the end of the reporting period are as REBPNBERGBHLAATHEBOT :
follows:

Proportion of

Place of ownership interest

Name of entity principal business held by the Group Principal activity
7 52 @ T %

BREE TEEE B HEERBLS EEER
Poly Metals Company Limited (”Poly Metals") Hong Kong 20% Trading of metal scrap
EReBRRAR ([EE]) BB BESBRS
Poly Metals is a private company and there is no quoted market price available BRIV ARTLAR R RERG I &R 1SH TS
for its shares. HE-
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's WEEEAREBREE QT 2
interest in an associate. mZHABE
Set out below is the summarised financial information TXINHERB 2 M BERTE
for Poly Metals which is accounted for using the equity HEARERET AR

method.
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fme M B R RMEE

19 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 19 (FREDREAVIERENRE (8)
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(a) Interest in an associate (continued) (a) REEAR 2= (&)

Summarised balance sheet EEEERUE

2019 2018

—g-nE  —2-)\F

HKS$M HK$M

BEBTT EE-Yov

Total current assets MEEERE 40.5 293

Total non-current assets EREBEERE 0.9 0.7

Total current liabilities mBBEERE (40.7) (27.8)

Total non-current liabilities JERE A FEREE - =
Summarised statement of comprehensive income ZEHKERPE

2019 2018

—g-nE  —2-)\F

HKS$M HK$M

BEBTT EX-Yov

Revenue U 2= 233.4 117.5

Loss and total comprehensive loss EiEREEEELRRE (1.6) (3.4)
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RGBS KM EE
19 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 19 FRAEREYERNIEE (8)

EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(a) Interest in an associate (continued) (a) REEDQEZ2ED (H)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial A E R R B B B
information to the carrying amount of the interest in Poly ZERHEE (KRGS BHRE AR
Metals recognised in the consolidated financial statements: R)ZHERIAT

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEAR AEBT
Net assets of Poly Metals as at ERR+=—A=1+—8H
31 December BEFE 0.7 22
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7<% B/ 2 B 2 1 5 #&
interest in Poly Metals YAl 20% 20%
Share of net assets of Poly Metals EREREEFE 0.2 0.5
Goodwill EES 1.5 1.5
Closing carrying value FARKREE 1.7 2.0
The information above reflects the amounts presented 3 B R S B 3t AN £ B R B
in the financial statements of the associate adjusted for NRIZ BT BEREZRERBER
differences in accounting policies between the Group and ZMERR M BREES 2 ®
the associate. H o
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no quoted market price for its shares. It is engaged in collection,

processing and trading of scrap metal in Mexico.

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 19 FRA#EZREYIRNKRE (8)
EQUITY METHOD (continued)
Interests in joint ventures (b) REELXZER
Particulars of the significant joint ventures are set out FESERELFBHINMOT
below:
Place of
establishment/
principal place Principal ~ Measurement
Name of entity of business % of ownership interest activities method Carrying amount
RItE/
ERER TEEXBE EEREZEAL TEER TREE REE
2019 2018 2019 2018
=L ST I Y “e-0E ZFNE
HKSM HK$M
BEETR BEAT
Schrott und Metallhandel Germany 75% 75% Note (i) Equity 119.7 115.7
M. Kaatsch GmbH (e HizE() B
Scholz Austria GmbH Austria 63.35% 63.35% Note (ii) Equity 214.6 2118
A () Ea
Kalischatarra, S.de R.L. de C.V. Mexico 50% 50% Note (i) Equity 129.5 126.2
=Tk, k()] s
Individually immaterial joint ventures Note (iv) Equity 165.4 157.5
EREERRERE i) s
629.2 6112
Notes: Bff 5 =
(i) Schrott und Metallhandel M. Kaatsch GmbH is a private company (i) Schrott und Metallhandel M.
and there is no quoted market price for its shares. It is engaged in Kaatsch GmbHA—fEFLA R A R H
collection, processing and trading of scrap metal in Germany. 5 W E M IZRE - Z R BN ER
REUE - NIREEBLESR -
(ii) Scholz Austria GmbH is a private company and there is no quoted (ii) Scholz Austria GmbHA —EFAA A
market price for its shares. It is engaged in metal recycling business in A R EH AR 10 W 45 T35 B o 52 A A
Austria. REMFREEBESRETR -
(iii) Kalischatarra, S.de R.L. de C.V. is a private company and there is (iii) Kalischatarra, S.de R.L. de C.V.A—

AL A 2 B K E B 3 & 35 5
B > ZRBNBAEFEWRE T
rEEBLESR-

EaRREBERAH
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19 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv) In addition to the interests in joint ventures as disclosed above, the
Group also has interests in a number of individually immaterial joint
ventures that are accounted for using the equity method:

19 EREDEIIRNIEE (8)

(b)

REELREHS (H)
e ()
V) BEXEBZRAEC¥ZME

S AEBE TR BREREERE
EhREGER WEMAEDEA

AR :
2019 2018
—E-h#F —T—)\F
HK$M HK$M
HEBT BEBT
Aggregate carrying amount of individually ~ R{EBIFEERAE L DEZ
immaterial joint ventures EREEARE 165.4 157.5

Aggregate amount of the Group's share of: 7S5 B fE {h 2 4855 :

Profit for the year FRm=F 17.0 51.6
Other comprehensive loss Hith 2 HEEHE 0.2) il
Total comprehensive income EHE N =BEE 16.8 51.6

Commitments and contingent liabilities in respect of
joint ventures

The Group provided guarantees of approximately HK$35.3
million (2018: HK$35.9 million) for borrowings to certain
joint ventures as at 31 December 2019.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
interests in the joint ventures.
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19 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 19 (FREDREAVIERENRE (8)
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (continued) (b) REBLEIRER(H&)
Set out below is the summarised financial information T X% &HSchrott und
for Schrott und Metallhandel M. Kaatsch GmbH, Scholz Metallhandel M. Kaatsch
Austria GmbH and Kalischatarra S.de R.L. de C.V. which GmbH * Scholz Austria GmbH X
are accounted for using the equity method. In the opinion Kalischatarra S.de R.L. de C.V.Z Bf
of the Directors, these joint ventures are material to the BERME  HigigEm £5|R -5
Group. ERB ZEEELEHLER
MEBEKX-
Schrott und
Metallhandel Scholz Austria Kalischatarra,
M. Kaatsch GmbH GmbH S.deR.L. de C.V.
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
-0 T\ ZEB-hE ZZ-\& ZB-NFf ZT)\F
HK$SM HK$M HK$SM HK$M HK$M HK$M

BEBR BEBT HEEx AEAT  EEBEBR  BEAR

Revenue s 954.2 1,122.7 2,380.6 2,865.8 708.4 744.6
Profit/(Loss) for the year ~ F &%,/ (&18) 78.5 220 285 96.1 (2.9) (5.6)
Other comprehensive loss £t Z2HEE - - (6.6) - - -
Dividends received from  EMAERERES

joint ventures 83 8.0 83 253 - -
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19 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (continued)

Summarised balance sheet

Schrott und
Metallhandel
M. Kaatsch GmbH

19 EREDEIIRNIEE (8)

(b)

E\QA

g S ()
BEER

BEREE

Scholz Kalischatarra,
Austria GmbH S.deR.L de C.V.

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-Af T\ ZE-hE ZT-\& ZB-AFf ZT-)N\F
+=A +=A +=A +=A +=A +=A
=t-8 =t+-A =+-A =t-A =t+-H =t—-A
HK$M HK$M HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEBRL BEBT BEAT BEBT BEBAR BEBAT
Current &

Total current assets MOEERE 137.9 155.8 393.3 529.7 237.7 3152
Total current liabilities ~ 7E & EAH (76.7) (80.5) (343.3) (419.9) (172.4) (243.2)
Total net current assets B EEFEAR 61.2 753 50.0 109.8 65.3 72.0

Non-current kR E
Total non-current assets 3R )& E A (E 212.7 170.2 411.8 267.5 196.6 1783
Total non-current liabilities FEiE) & (B4 (126.9) (104.0) (194.6) (115.5) (35.1) (30.6)
Net assets BEFE 147.0 1415 267.2 261.8 226.8 219.7
Group's share in % REEREAS L 75% 75% 63.35% 63.35% 50% 50%
Group's share in HKSM ~ ASEEEEEAT 110.3 106.1 169.3 165.8 113.4 109.9
Goodwill HE 94 96 453 46.0 16.1 16.3
Closing carrying value ~ FXREEE 119.7 115.7 214.6 211.8 1295 126.2

The information above reflects the amounts presented in
the consolidated financial statements of the joint ventures
adjusted for differences in accounting policies between the
Group and the joint ventures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are all held for
trading and include the following:

20

fme M B R RMEE

BN EFABSCEMEE

BRAFEFABRZ CREEDHIER
5 BENT:

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEERT BEBTT

Unlisted equity securities FEHRAES
At 1 January Rn—H—H 0.8 5.3
Additions NE 1.1 -
Disposals k=S - (4.5)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1.9 0.8

Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of HK$20.0 million was recognised in “other gains, net” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2018 (Note 7).

HERAFEF ARSI EREEMS
Y 42,0008 87T TREBE-F—N
FH_A=t—HLFEZHFABHER
[E e as 38R ] R (KIFE7) ©
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RSB HMRMIEE

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 21 BAVEFARMEERGZ

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME TREE
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income BATHESFAREMEEKE s eBEE
are all held as long-term strategic investments that are not AREEEAERHATgEE 2R
expected to be sold in the short to medium term and include the HISRBS MR E B A T EIE
following:
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-)N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEAT AEBTT
Unlisted equity securities I LT RAE S
At 1 January ®n—HA—H 111.0 116.1
Disposals e (2.9) =
Fair value change NEEE (7.5) -
Currency exchange differences PE 5 =58 (1.9) (5.1)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—A8 98.7 111.0
Dividend income of HK$4.8 million (2018: HK$3.5 million) from BHE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HLHF
these unlisted equity securities are recognised in “other income” B ZEHFETBRAEFAFRER
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended A480& BT (=T — /\ 4 :3508 8
31 December 2019 (Note 6). )RR ABRER [HAMKRA ] hiER
(Kizx6) ©
22 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 22 HMIERBEE
2019 2018
—E-AF - N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEABR AEBTT

Deposits, prepayment and other receivables %< - T8} 5018 &
H & UK IR 17.0 5.8
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me R RMEE
23 DEFERRED TAXATION 23 IREFLIA
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income RIEMGEHEERELEMEHRAEZD
tax liabilities is as follows: HIBUENE
2019 2018
—E-AF —E—)N\F
HKS$M HK$M
BHEET EX-Yov
Deferred income tax assets: FIEFTIS T B =
Deferred tax assets to be recovered 1551218 B & 4 2 /Y
after 12 months EEFIEE B 81.0 97.8
Deferred tax assets to be recovered 15 5A121E B Rk e fY
within 12 months FEMIAE & 28.3 50.9
109.3 148.7 -
Deferred income tax liabilities: RIEFTSHBE:
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled BR12E R EEER
after 12 months RLEHAEEE (318.2) (340.0)
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled BR1I2EARNGEERN
within 12 months EEFRIEAE (24.6) (40.4)
(342.8) (380.4)
Deferred income tax liabilities, net EEFfMEHAETEHE (233.5) (231.7)
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IRE B MRMIEE
23 DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 23 RFERIE (&)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during FRNEEMSHEERBB2ES (K
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of St A — B RARE I N e A5 R 8 )
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: U
Accelerated
Deferred income tax
tax liabilities depreciation Others Total
i
EEFMBHERE HIENE Hit et
HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEBTT BEBTT BEATT
At 1 January 2018 R-—Z—\FE—A—H 391.9 24.6 4165
(Credited)/Charged to the REEEEmER
consolidated statement (5t A) 0k
of profit or loss (20.5) 4.3 (16.2)
Currency translation differences ME i = &R (22.4) 2.5 (19.9)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F
+=—A=+—8 349.0 31.4 380.4
Credited to the consolidated RérEaEm&RTA
statement
of profit or loss (21.6) (10.1) (31.7)
Credited to the consolidated RirEEMEE
statement of other e &REEA
comprehensive income - (1.4) (1.4)
Currency translation differences MEH =58 (5.6) 1.1 (4.5)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—-hF
+-—A=+—H 321.8 21.0 342.8
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23 DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 23 EEFRIE (B)

Decelerate Unrealised
tax profit on
Deferred income tax assets Tax losses depreciation  Provisions  inventories Others Total
HE RER
BEFBHEE HEBR  BERE BE  REEAN A @t
HKSM HKSM HK$M HK$M HKS$M HK$M
RERT BEART  ABAT  BEAT  BEERT  ABRER
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\E—A—-H (65.6) (20.4) (25.8) (24) (53.9) (168.1)

(Credited)/Charged to the RiEaBaxk
consolidated statement (FFA)/ 1k

of profit or loss (1.4) 438 1.1 0.9 2.1 5.7

Credited to the consolidated NERAMZE

statement of other WHERETA

comprehensive income - - - - (0.4) (0.4)
Currency translation differences ~ ERZ® 1.8 5.0 21 - 5.2 14.1
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZ-N\E

+-A=t-B (65.2) (10.6) (22.6) (3.3) (47.0) (148.7)

Charged/(Credited) to the REEBRE

consolidated statement n/ (GtA)

of profit or loss 14.0 (3.8) 10.8 02) 16.5 373

Credited to the consolidated WEREMZE
statement of other WHERETA
comprehensive income - - - - (0.5) (0.5)
Currency translation differences  ERZEE 12 03) 0.7 - 1.0 26
At 31 December 2019 RZZ2-n%
+-A=1+-H (50.0) (14.7) (11.1) (3.5) (30.0) (109.3)

The Directors do not have an intention to distribute the retained
earnings of certain subsidiaries such that deferred income tax
liabilities of HK$139.9 million (2018: HK$117.6 million) have
not been recognised for the withholding tax and other taxes
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of these
subsidiaries. Unremitted earnings totalled HK$630.2 million
(2018: HK$604.0 million) as at 31 December 2019.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did
not recognise deferred income tax assets of HK$475.3 million
(2018: HK$502.9 million) in respect of tax losses amounting to
HK$2,098.7 million (2018: HK$2,017.1 million). Unrecognised
tax losses of HK$1,482.6 million (2018: HK$1,337.4 million) have
no expiry date and the remaining tax losses will expiry at various
dates up to and including 2038 (2018: 2038).

BEEEDRE T TRARIZREBEARN
HUM AR B2 S 72 AR R BE ) & I FE
METEINT R R IBRERIEE AT 1S
HAE1E3,9908 8L (ZE—N\F 1
181,7608% L) - R-_ZFT—N&E+_A
=+—H ' REHABFE *E6(E3,020
BB (T —/)\F : 6{84008BT) °

ARG ERGEEH 2 HBEEEREL
Fri8fi &2 - HEIE A G T E R A 7] 4E
BB AR 7 BRI E AR A
& B 7 48 5t B 78 5 1820189,8708 78 7T
(_ — \45 : 20181,7108 /8 7T ) FE R
EEFTSTH EEAME7 53088 T (=8
— A\ : 582908 B r) - R ERF A
E1E14E88,260B B L (=T — NF:
13183,7408 % o) W& fEm B & ﬁﬁ%
THEEBEEBBER-Z=ZN\F (==
F . _E=)\F) (a?ﬁii)izﬁuz
[ B B fEm o
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InEHIBHRMEE

24 INVENTORIES 24 FE&
2019 2018
—ZB-hF —E-N\F
HKS$M HK$M
BEBT BEBIT
Raw materials R K 338.0 1,036.4
Work-in-progress & m 33.8 23.8
Finished goods 2IRK ah 1,124.1 1,045.5
1,495.9 2,105.7

25

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
of sales amounted to HK$12,123.1 million (2018: HK$16,566.0
million), which included net reversal of provision for inventory of
HK$1.9 million (2018: provision for inventory of HK$18.5 million)
(Note 8).

As 31 December 2019, the Group has pledged inventories with a
net book value of HK$711.7 million to secure certain borrowings
and general facilities to the Group (2018: HK$809.7 million)
(Note 37).

ERARI W T AHERANTFER A
BEE12182,31088 T (=2 — )\ F:
165186,6008 B 7L) ' BRETFERER
EFE1908B T (ZE—N\F: FER
11,8508 % L) (MIEES) °

N-ZB-NE+-_A=+—H8 &X&H
BEREFEATEINTI088 T2 EER
FE UERAESEERNE TERE
—MEE (ZZF—/\F : 8{89708H L)
(B$3E37) »

TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25 BF EENMEMEWFIE
2019 2018
—E-hE —E—)N\F
HKS$M HK$M
BEBT BEEIT
Trade receivables H 5 WG IE 983.1 1,426.4
Less: loss allowance B EEEE (39.9) (62.8)
Trade receivables, net E 5 W IE F 58 943.2 1,363.6
Bills receivables R WGIE 14.1 3.9
Deposits and prepayments e RFBIHIA 134.6 189.9
Deposits paid for purchase of raw materials & & R £ 2 2 L4 39.3 40.5
VAT recoverable AlAR BEER 116.4 160.6
Other receivables (Note) H b e U ROE (B ) 128.2 123.6
1,375.8 1,882.1
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fme M B R RMEE

25 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25 B5 EERKEMERFIE

(continued) (&)

Note: As at 31 December 2019, the balance includes a receivable of HK$64.0 MizE: R=FT—NAhE+=-_B=+—H &&HEE
million (2018: HK$65.5 million) from the Taizhou Bay Committee, a KETEBEEREMEEZ S ERR
government authority in the PRC. 186,4008 BT (ZZF — /A% :6,5508 8

JT) e

At 31 December 2019, the Group has pledged trade receivables RZZF-—hF+=ZA=+—0 4&5H

with a net book value of HK$701.7 million (2018: HK$1,030.3 BEEEFERIEI7088 T (ZE—N

million) to secure certain borrowings and general banking F:10183,030887L) cE B E FE

facilities to the Group (Note 37). WERTE  AERAEBERNE TER

K—MRRITEE (MIRE37) -

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the aging analysis of the trade RZE-NERZF-NEFE+ZA
receivables based on invoice date was as follows: =+—H - ES5RKEIEREZA N
BRER DATIATE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HKS$M HK$M
BEBRT BEBT
0 - 90 days 0%290H 885.8 1,323.5
91 — 180 days 912 180H 48.1 45.7
Over 180 days FBiE180H 49.2 57.2
983.1 1,426.4
(a) Fair values of trade receivables @) BZEWRFEAFE
Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, R B e G IE R R B 1
their carrying amount is considered to approximate their HEEEEHERAEEAFEME
fair values. Ho
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IRE M BHRRMTEE

25 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(b) Impairment and risk exposure

The Group measures the expected credit losses on the
trade receivables by grouping them based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected
loss rates are estimated based on the historical credit
losses experienced, adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the
historic data has been collected, current conditions and the
Group's view of forward looking economic conditions. On
that basis, the loss allowances as at 31 December 2019 and
2018 were determined as follows:

25 BF ERENMEMEWFIE

=
o
“E

NN

(b)

)
B & R B A
AEERBARERERREHEK
B HA R Bt & 5 FE W R IR B TR HA
EEBRETHOETE -BHE
BRRatEEBRERMAR
A 48 58 BE DA = BR Ui 5% JEF S
2 OB AR - WA OR R AN &
BAEELERARBERZEZR -
BBEEE RZT—-NAFR=
E-N\E+ZA=+—BHEE
BfsEEmT:

Gross carrying

Expected amount
credit loss rate — trade receivables Loss allowances
BEREE
FHEEBER —EBEZERFIE EiERE
HKS$SM HK$M
BEET BEET
As at 31 December 2019
RZZE—-—hF+=A=+—H
Active accounts
EIRER
Current 0.1% - 5.0% 7111 6.1
BN HA
Past due 1 — 30 days 0.1% - 25.0% 182.6 9.8
BER1E30K
Past due 31 — 90 days 0.1% - 70.0% 51.0 4.1
1 HA31 290K
Past due over 90 days 0.5% - 100% 234 4.9
8 BRER BO0R
Terminated accounts 100% 15.0 15.0
RIERRF
983.1 39.9
Total
#Et
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25 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

(b) Impairment and risk exposure (continued)

25

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fme M B R RMEE

85 BB KEMEWRIA

\:i:
=
“E )

N\

(b) FEREBREE (&)

Gross carrying

Expected amount
credit loss rate — trade receivables Loss allowances
AR E
BHEEBEX —E S ENKFIA EERH
HK$M HK$M
BEATT BEBTT
As at 31 December 2018
RZE—NF+A=+—H
Active accounts
ERRER P
Current 0.2% - 5.0% 969.4 5.0
BVHR
Past due 1 — 30 days 0.1% - 25.0% 371.5 20.9
BER1E30K
Past due 31 — 90 days 0.4% - 85.0% 53.1 8.9
1 HA31 290K
Past due over 90 days 1.9% — 100% 16.3 11.9
8 BRER BO0R
Terminated accounts 100% 16.1 16.1
RIEERF
Total 1,426.4 62.8
#ET

EaRREBERAH
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IR RMIEE
25 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25 J,:éfz% EE R EAMEW IR

(continued) (&)

(b) Impairment and risk exposure (continued) (b) BERRERERE ()
Movements on the Group’s loss allowance of trade $%E%E§H&%ﬁlﬁz%}§}§é{%
receivables are as follows: ZEBFERMT -

2019 2018

—E-hE —ET-N\F

HK$M HK$M

BEBTT BEBT

At 1 January R—H—H 62.8 127.8

(Decrease)/Increase in loss B R A B 1R E

allowance recognised CRA) /1 hn (21.0) 12.1
Receivables written off during FRMIEEN R E 2

the year as uncollectable JRE W kIR (1.3) -
Reversal of impairment of B 5 FE W IR R B #E 1)

trade receivables - (74.6)

Currency translation differences fEH =% (0.6) (2.5)

At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 39.9 62.8
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25 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)
(b) Impairment and risk exposure (continued)
As at 31 December 2019, provision for impairment

of prepayments and other receivables amounted to
approximately HK$8.7 million (2018: HK$8.0 million).

The other classes within trade, bills and other receivables do
not contain impaired assets. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables, net
of provision, are denominated in the following currencies:

25

fme M B R RMEE

B 5 FE R R OR

==
&=
n=|

(b)

N\

)

BERREEE (&)
R-ZT—hE+=-_A=+—8"
TEA FRIB R H A 2 Uk 3R TR (B 1
HAEA8I0B BT (T — )\ F:
8008 B TT) °

25 REkEMERRAERE
EHNLE T B ECHEEE K
S B ES A EAEmEE
e

AEE 2B 5 WA (F05 5
1#) ZBEEETIA T EMEHE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —T-N\F

HK$M HK$M

BEBT BEBIT

RMB AR 94.9 36.0
HK$ BT 0.7 30.9
EUR BT 540.9 829.8
us$ ETT 208.7 329.2
Other currencies H b E i 98.0 137.7
943.2 1,363.6

The carrying amounts of the Group's other receivables are
mainly denominated in RMB, EUR and US$ (2018: RMB,
EUR and US$) as at 31 December 2019.

26 FIXED RETURN INVESTMENT

As at 31 December 2019, the fixed return investment of HK$88.4
million (2018: HK$211.3 million) represented investment carries
fixed interest at 7% per annum (2018: 7% per annum). The
principal amount and fixed return are guaranteed by a private
equity firm and the director of the private equity firm.

RZEB-—AF+ZR=+—8"
RE B E A EWRIRZ FREEE
ENUARE BIRET(ZF
—N\F:AR¥E BOTEET)F
=

26 [EEEFHREE
R-ZE-AE+_A=+—R0 AF
Bl R 1% &8,8408 B L (=T — \F : 2
B11308 B L) IEZRFNERI% (ZF
—\F : FFERT% ) 2 EEF R B
’& - A% K [EE BT B AL B A
RAIRHEESFER

EeRREBERAT —F-LFER

229



230

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IRE M BHRRMTEE

27 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2019 2018
—E-hEF —\F
HK$M HK$M
BEBT BEBTT
Derivative financial assets TEEMEE
Metal commodities future contracts eBRmHAEEL
(Note (i)) CPRFEEG)) 24.3 34.7
Foreign currency forward contracts INEER BB S 4Y
(Note (i) (P EEG)) 0.7 1.4
25.0 36.1
Derivative financial liabilities "Tiﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬁ
Metal commodities future contracts CEEmBAESL
(Note (i) (B &% (i) ) (30.1) (19.9)
Foreign currency forward contracts HNEESRBRE 4
(Note (ii)) (B (i) ) (0.1) (0.6)
(30.2) (20.5)
Notes: B 5
(i) Metal commodities future contracts () EEERPEEN
The Group enters into copper and other metal future contracts and options in AREEET 8RR E A2 BHE S 4 R HE -
order to manage its exposure to the price risk of inventories. These contracts NEBEGENERER ZEAHONE
are actively traded in an active market and are measured at fair values based B RRERWRBN®RE B A2 RE
on quoted price as at reporting date, with gain or loss recognised directly in RATVEFE HEEREERNGAER
consolidated statement of profit or loss. RHER o
The notional principle amount of the outstanding metal commodities future AEECBERPRANNEERLSHER
contracts was approximately HK$1,057.2 million (2018: HK$1,600.2 million). #910185,720& & T (ZZ — J\F : 161820
BATT) °
(ii) Foreign currency forward contracts (ii) IEEHBER
The Group entered into foreign currency forward contracts in order to ARER BTSN R B A RO LAORE SNE BB

mitigate its exposure to the foreign currency risk. These contracts were
measured at fair value using quoted forward exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period, with gain or loss recognised directly in consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The notional principle amount of the outstanding foreign currency forward
contracts were approximately HK$106.2 million (2018: HK$456.9 million).
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fme M B R RMEE

28 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND 28 EHEMBETERERE LIRS
CASH EQUIVALENTS £EIEH
Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to EHEFRITFRERRITERUAR
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group. Deposits SEERN —RBRITEEEERNT
amounting to HK$191.7 million (2018: HK$313.6 million) have e 89,1708 B L (ZZE— N\F : 318
been pledged to secure bank borrowings, and are therefore 1,360@ B 70 ) M F R E B IRERITE R
classified as current assets (Note 37). WER BUtEs B AR EE (s
37) °
Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and short-term bank RekReFEERERIHBA A=A
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. ASATHIRS R EIRITF R
2019 2018
—E-h#EF —E-)N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEERT BEBT
Cash at bank and on hands RITRFHERE 783.3 696.5
Security deposit (Note) REZ (M) 1.5 0.6
Total cash and cash equivalents as per HeERenERZEER
consolidated statement of cash flows ReEMEBEELRE 784.8 697.1
Note: The balance represents a deposit placed with a financial institution as security fiitE: HEHRETACREBERRAEZESERD
for open metal commodity future contracts. The security deposit is non- HESHERNES RESATFHE-

interest bearing.
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RSB HMRMIEE

29 SHARE CAPITAL 29 A
Authorised share capital SEE R
Numbers
of shares Share capital
RO E N
(Thousands) HK$M
(F8&) BEATT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at RZZE—-—NFE—H—1"
1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, —E-N\F+H
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 =+—H8 —FE—h#F
—A—HEZZE—NF
+ZA=+—RH~2
BREME0.01E T 2 Tl 5,000,000 50
Issued and fully paid ERTRERE
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, RZZE—-NF—H—BQ8-
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 —ET-N\F+=A
=t—H —Z—A%F
—A—BARZ=ZZT—hF
+=A=+—H 1,605,153 16.1
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30 OTHER RESERVES

30

H Al

fme M B R RMEE

fei f9

Foreign
Capital Statutory Enterprise  Remeasurement  Remeasurement currency
Share redemption Capital general expansion on financial of pension translation
premium reserve reserve reserve fund assets plans reserve Total
EfitE EfiE
RfRE  EAREER BARE  iE-REE  LRERES SREE EREHY  AMEXRE #it
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT ABAT BEAT BEAT BEAT L
(Note (i) (Note (i) (Note (i) (Note 21)
(B3E() (M3 (i) (GEI) (Hfs21)
At 1 January 2018 RZF-\5-F-B 59119 03 2109 107.0 1069 = 04 681.5 70189
Currency translation differences on 5N £z B 2%
foreign operations - - - - - - - (301.0) (301.0)
Remeasurement of post-employment E# it EREERBR% ZEHER
benefit obligations, net of tax NEHE - - - - - - 20 = 20

Transfer of reserves L LE - - - 01 02 - - - 03

At 31 December 2018 RZF-N\E+=A=1-H 59119 03 2109 1071 1071 = 24 3805 6,7202

At 1 January 2019 R=B-hE-A-A 59119 03 2109 1071 1071 - 24 380.5 67202

Currency tranlation differences SN ER BN 28

on foreign operations - - - - - - - (90.7) (%0.7)
Change in the fair value of RATEF A2 EREZ

financial assets at far value SREEIATESY.

through other comprehensive pili]

income, net of tax - - - - - (6.1) - - (6.1)
Remeasurement of post-employment B it EREER B4 JEHER

benefit obligations, net of tax NEHE - - - - - - (@.1) - (%))
Share of other comprehensive loss ~ EEAERF 2 EM2AHHE

of joint ventures - - - - - - (a.4) - (44)

At 31 December 2019 R=®-ME+ZA=t+-A 59119 03 109 1071 1071 (6.1 (6.1) 28938 6,6149

Notes: B 5 -

(i) Capital reserve represents the sum of (a) the difference between the nominal (i) BARREEQARBANR-_ZEZENGFEES
value of the aggregate share capital and share premium of the subsidiaries ERFTREF A RRA R G & ERTE 2
acquired by the Company upon a group reorganisation in 2008 and the EE SRR AR B REFMETIRD ZHE
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange and (b) a MEBERO)—ZE—ZFEMBRERZ
capitalisation of shareholders’ loans in 2010. @ o

(ii) Statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund represent the (ii) AARFREFARNEBERARRE -

appropriation of 10% of profit after tax determined based on the relevant
accounting rules and regulations of the PRC as required by the Articles
of Association of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. The appropriation may
cease to apply if the balance of the statutory general reserve and enterprise
expansion fund has reached 50% of the PRC subsidiaries’ registered capital.
The statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund can be used to
make up prior year losses or to increase share capital.

A
Ea

ARIE T BIAR & AR B ORI E 15
BgmF10%BNEE —RIFR R B
BREE -HEE - REBREEZERES
EAERED B A R & AR E50% » Al 7]
RIEBE - ZEREBREEERES
A A A TR 28 1 A E S 1R S AR A o

BRREBARAH
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IR RMIEE
317 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 31 FEEERRRER
Share of net liabilities of
subsidiaries
it FARAEFEHE
2019 2018
—E-hE —E—N\EF
HK$M HK$M
BEBTT BEBT
At 1 January ®n—HA—H (29.4) (26.0)
Transactions with non-controlling interests B2 JEIEAR R ETR 5 25.9 -
Share of loss for the year, net FRATLHBEFE (5.1) (2.2)
Share of other comprehensive loss, net iR EMEEEIEFE (1.7) (1.2)
At 31 December R+—-A=+—H (10.3) (29.4)
32 BORROWINGS 32 &
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\E
HKS$M HK$M
BHEBTT BEBT
Non-current B
Bank borrowings (Note (a)) RITIE R ( WI )) 226.4 388.7
Other borrowings (Note (a)) H b gk (KizE@)) - 1,738.1
Finance lease liabilities (Note (b)) MEHEAE (W (b)) - 302.3
D AR 0 226.4 BN LALEL
Current B
Bank borrowings (Note (a)) RITER (@) 547.3 971.5
Other borrowings (Note (a)) Eanfg sk (MisE@)) 2,021.7 250.5
Finance lease liabilities (Note (b)) BERESE (HED) - 136.5
e R 2,569.0 I
Total borrowings BB 2,795.4 3,787.6
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32 BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Bank and other borrowings

Bank borrowings mature at various dates up to 2029 (2018: 2025) and bear
average coupons ranging from 1.1% to 8.5% per annum (2018: 1.2% to
8.0% per annum).

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s bank and other borrowings
were repayable as follows:

Bank borrowi
RITER
2019

32

ngs

2018

—B-NF ZB-N\E

HK$M

HK$M

BEER BEET

fme M B R RMEE

fE (%)

B
(@ BEREMER

RITERRTRBHIES EE=-F-NF
BE(CE-NF:—Z_R%) FHE
EFEMENT1.1%E85% (=T —/\F:
FEFE12%E8.0%) °

R=FB-NFR_B-NE+=_F=+—
B AEBRTREMERZIBERE

I
Other borrowings Total
Hip R @t
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-hE ZB-N\E ZE-hFE ZEB-N\F
HK$M HK$M HK$SM HK$M

BEET BEETL BEET BEETL

Within 1 year —FR 547.3 971.5 2,021.7 250.5 2,569.0 1,222.0
Between 1 and 2 years —EMF 180.1 125.4 - 1,738.1 180.1 1,863.5
Between 2 and 5 years MERE 41.2 252.5 - - 41.2 252.5
Over 5 years REE 5.1 10.8 - - 5.1 10.8

226.4 388.7 - 1,738.1 226.4 2,126.8

773.7 1,360.2 2,021.7 1,988.6 2,795.4 3,348.8
The carrying amounts of the bank and other borrowings are denominated in $RIT R E A2 2 > BREE T A T 5 S M=t
the following currencies: @

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$M HK$M

HEBT BEBT

EUR BT 541.1 525.3
us$ E 1,854.1 2,315.2
RMB AR 273.1 371.7
Czech Koruna ("CZK") R ([EREH]) 82.5 61.8
Danish Krone (“DKK") FERA ([FFEREA]) 9.9 12.0
Polish Zloty (“PLN") R ER ([ZER]) 34.7 62.8
2,795.4 3,348.8
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IRE M BHRRMTEE

32 BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(@)

(b)

Bank and other borrowings (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had aggregate facilities of approximately
HK$5,969.2 million (2018: HK$6,614.2 million) for loans, factoring and
guarantees. Unused facilities as at the same date amounted to approximately
HK$2,393.2 million (2018: HK$2,341.4 million) which were uncommitted
facilities. These facilities are secured/guaranteed by certain properties, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets, investment properties, inventories, trade
receivables and bank deposits (2018: properties, plant and equipment,
leasehold land use rights, inventories, trade receivables and bank deposits)
with an aggregate amount of HK$3,807.4 million (2018: HK4,308.3 million)
(Note 37).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has drawn down a new
2-year syndicated term loan of US$220.0 million to early repay certain other
borrowings and note payable. The loan was guaranteed by USUMHK and Mr.
Tu. The Group has pledged the shares of certain subsidiaries to secure the
loan. Subsequent to year ended 31 December 2019, the maturity date of the
syndicated term loan has been extended to March 2021 with some terms,
amongst which certain financial and non-financial undertakings, have been
revised.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair values.
Finance lease liabilities

From 1 January 2019, lease liabilities are presented as a separate line item in
the consolidated balance sheet (Notes 2.1.2 (a) and 33).
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fno M FE R RMIEE

33 LEASE LIABILITIES 33 HE&AE
The Group leases various land and land use rights, property, plant, AEBHESE MR LMERE Y
equipment and intangible assets (Note 16). Rental contracts are ¥ BE- REREREE (HiE16) -
typically made for fixed periods of 2 to 6 years but may have HEARNBETEIE _Z - FNEEH
extension options. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual PR - AT RS AE AR AR A o A B IR RIR
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. BRI EEEITHER - B 2R TR
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants. KRG - HE BRI E RS-
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of TRETASEHEEEER=ZE—NF
the Group's lease liabilities as at 31 December 2019: TZA=+—HZHTEHIHIER:
2019
—E-hEF
HK$M
HEBT
Gross lease liabilities HEAEEE
- minimum lease payments - REHAESK
No later than 1 year TBR—F 216.2
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years EBR—FETERAF 537.6
Later than 5 years BRAEF 117.6
871.4
Future finance charges on leases FAEMRRME S T (110.3)
Present value of lease liabilities HESENHRE 761.1
The present value of lease HEABHREWDT:
liabilities is as follows:
No later than 1 year TERR—F 191.7
Later than 1 year BR—F 569.4
761.1
Interest expenses on lease liabilities of HK$18.5 million was MEBEZFERXZ1,8508 B LE &
charged to finance cost for the year ended 31 December 2019 ABE_T-NF+-A=+—HILHF
(Note 10). & 2 BA s A A (B EE10)
The total cash outflow for leases was HK$232.2 million for the BHE_Z-NEFT_A=+—HILF
year ended 31 December 2019. E2HERSRHAER21E3,2208%8
=
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RS BRRMEE
34 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 34 ERIKEFIFTE
The table below outlines where the Group's post-employment TREMAE B ASRE VB RK 2B
amounts and activity are included in the consolidated financial BRERRBEzERED -
statements.
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\F
HK$M HK$M
AEBT BEBT
Consolidated balance sheet obligations for: 478 EEBEXRMIA T EHAE
ZEME:
Defined benefit plans (Note (b)) AERFEE (HED)) 27.3 23.4
Consolidated statement of profit or loss EERRFEATSETA
charges included in operating profit for: E%xﬁﬂZfitﬂ
Defined contribution plans (Note (a)) FEMFKEE (HEE@)) 107.7 108.1
Defined benefit plans (Note (b)) AERAEE (H&ED)) 0.5 0.6
108.2 108.7
Remeasurements for: HATEEZERTE
Defined benefit plans (Note (b)) REBAETE (KFED)) 4.6 (1.6)
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fme M B R RMEE

34 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued) 34 RKEFIETE (8)
(a) Defined contribution plans (@) HREHNKTE
The Group operates a couple of defined contribution plans RNEEFZEZERERRGE
which receive fixed contributions from group companies. HESE QA BEBERERR K
The Group's legal or constructive obligation for these plans SEMZEFTE EAEIEER
is limited to the contributions. The expense recognised EAERBR - RFE g% F
in the current year in relation to these contributions was RERZAZBIEII0BH T
HK$107.7 million (2018: HK$108.1 million). (ZZ2—-N\F: 11881088 T) -
(b) Defined benefit plans (b) HREFAE
The Group operates several defined benefit pension plans AEERAEERBENE T T
for selected former and active employees of the Group's NEINKBRTEAERETESE
certain subsidiaries in Germany. The plans provide benefits EE TRERMBNREE-ZF
in the form of a guaranteed level of pension payable for FTEIRREBKFERE T HEMSE
life. The plans are mostly financed by the Group's internal TR E RN BA 2 F 5T E
resources. A part of the plans is covered by plans assets in ABOBEAEEANTEREE
the form of reinsurance policies. iM% Eat 81785 A BRBRIRE
FEX R EIEERRE -
The Group's major plans are valued by qualified actuaries REBEZFZHETFHEER
annually using the projected unit credit method. The EEEE A TE B E AR RIEE
amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are B-RGEEEABRAER
determined as follows: SREDEATIABRE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEER BEAT
Present value of funded obligations BB EENIRE 14.3 11.8
Present value of unfunded obligations % Bh & (T8I IR(E 19.2 17.3
Fair value of plan assets AEIEEMATE (6.2) (5.7)
Liabilities in the consolidated balance #FABEBEXRMAE
sheet 27.3 23.4
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RSB HMRMIEE

34 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued)

34 RIKEFIFTE (

(b) Defined benefit plans (continued) (b) REBRFE (&)
The movement in the present values of defined benefit FRRAERNEERIREEGE
obligations and fair value of plan assets over the year is as BEMATEZEOT :
follows:
2019
—E-h§
Present
value of
defined Fair value
benefit of plan
obligations assets Total
RERF FEEE
EENERE HAFE @t
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEER BEER BEER
At 1 January R—A—H 29.1 (5.7) 234
Current service cost EHRBAA 0.5 - 0.5
Interest expense FERZ 0.5 - 0.5
Interest income FIEHA - (0.2) (0.2)
30.1 (5.9) 24.2
Remeasurements: EHE:
Effects from change in financal ~ B EBRESHFE
assumptions 43 - 43
Effect from other experienced Hi AR {EL
based adjustments RENTE 0.4 - 0.4
Return on plan assets, excluding B BER LR
amounts included in interest TREFANEMANESE
income - (0.1) (0.1)
4.7 (0.1) 4.6
Currency translation EXER
differences 0.1) 0.1 -
Contributions 5k
— Employers -Ex - (0.3) (0.3)
Payments from plans: RN
— Benefit payments LU (1.2) - (1.2)
As at 31 December W+=BA=+-H 335 (6.2) 273
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me R RMEE
34 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued) 34 RIKEFIFTEI(8)
(b) Defined benefit plans (continued) (b) REBRFE (&)
2018
—E-N\E
Present
value of
defined Fair value
benefit of plan
liability assets Total
RERF EEE
BEEMBE KAFE a@st
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEBT BEBT
At 1 January R—A—H 322 (5.5) 26.7
Current service cost & BRI A 0.6 - 0.6
Interest expense FIERAX 05 - 0.5
Interest income FIEWA - (0.1) (0.1)
333 (5.6) 27.7
Remeasurements: EHGE:
Effects from change in financial ~ B HEBREBHHNF E
assumptions (1.5) - (1.5)
Return on plan assets, excluding ~ sfE|EEREIR -
amounts included in interest AREFAFERANE B
income - (0.1) (0.1)
(1.5) (0.1) (1.6)
Currency translation differences E X Z% (1.4) 0.4 (1.0)
Contributions H®®
— Employers -Ex (13) (0.4) (1.7)
As at 31 December R+=BA=+-H 29.1 (5.7) 234
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RS MR RMIEE

34 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued)
(b) Defined benefit plans (continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

34 RUREREE (48)

(b)

RERAE (8
FRERAMERRBERRNOT

2019 2018

—E-h#E —E—N\F

HK$M HK$M

BEER BEAST

Discount rate BhIR = 0.65% 1.8%
Future pension increase rate RACGRIRE 5L 0 LE = 1% - 2% 1% — 2%
Future salary increase rate AR 2R N b = 0% -3% 0% - 3%

The sensitivity of the defined benefit plans to changes in

RERAMGE L T2 ERE

the weighted principal assumptions is: @Z@Q@\EQDT :
Impact on defined benefit liabilities
HATRNERANTE
2019 2018
“E-0F —EZ-N\E
Change in Increase in Decrease in ~ Changein  Increase in  Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption assumption  assumption  assumption
BEE®  RREM  BEREL  BREY  BREN BIRD
HKSM HKSM HK$M HK$M
BEERT HEER BEET HEBAT
Discount rate BEIR X 0.50% decrease increase 0.50% decrease 1.6 increase 2.0
by 2.1 by 2.3 1.6 #102.0
2.1 #m2.3
Pension increase rate iR 3 0L & 0.50% increase  decrease 0.25% increase 0.9 decrease 0.7
by 1.0 by 1.0 #£110.9 0.7
#m1.0 H21.0

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an
assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.
In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of
the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to significant
actuarial assumptions the same method (present value
of the defined benefit obligations calculated with the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting
period) has been applied as when calculating the pension
liabilities recognised within the consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fme M B R RMEE

35 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 35 B EEREEMERFKIE

2019 2018
—g-hE —E-N\F
HK$M HK$M
HEAT AEBTT
Trade payables B 5N RIE 639.3 1,042.9
Contract liabilities (Note (i) AHBaE (M=EG) 40.0 25.4
Other taxes payable HAth fE A B4 18 67.5 70.9
Accrued salaries and employee benefits st e RIEBRT 143.5 159.3
Provision for claims and contingencies RERKNAFIEEE 17.7 20.5
Accrued professional expenses T EERX 22.6 28.9
Asset retirement obligations BEMERT 72.8 84.8

Other payables and accruals (Note (ii) HEmERIERETER
(B (i) ) 160.1 410.2
1,163.5 1,842.9

Less: non-current portion R FERENEL

Asset retirement obligations BEREEMT (72.8) (84.8)
Other payables H M fE T RIB (23.8) (25.9)
1,066.9 1,732.2
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RSB HMRMIEE

35 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES
(continued)

Notes:
(i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current
reporting period relates to carried-forward contract liabilities.

35

=
&)

B 3 -

\m]d

~~

(i)

BB LA MR
BA R ERB I

TRITIRAHE BRHARRNEEES
& BRI U -

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T—)\F
HK$M HK$M
HEBT BEBT
Revenue recognised that was included in the BREEFEVEHEAGBELNA
contract liabilities balance at the beginning of H) B iR U 2
the year 25.4 17.9
(ii) As at 31 December 2018, the balance included the contingent consideration (ii) ® NE+—A=1+—H HHERE

payable with respect to the acquisition of Scholz Group and its debt
restructuring programme in 2016. In 2019, the directors of the Company
considered the Group’s obligation for the contingent consideration was
released as the predetermined conditions were not met.

The aging analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date

—F—
M= F—RE AR IR R R R B R K ET
AT BRI B SRR AE - ﬁf\,j—jl
i N TR R QR B AR A
$WDE¢'§I§E‘E§Z}Z%KFZ%§%EZ§Q¢
B o

S RNFRRBEEZ A REDIT

was as follows: U
2019 2018
—E-AF —ZE-)N\F
HKS$M HK$M
HEBT AEBTT
0 — 90 days 0£90H 601.3 1,007.9
91 — 180 days 91£180H 12.5 14.9
Over 180 days 181800 25.5 20.1
639.3 1,042.9
The carrying amounts of the trade, bills and other payables B 5 ZiR R E M e R IE 2 BREE
approximate their fair values. H R?ﬁ*ﬁé °
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fme M B R RMEE

36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36 mERE eI A

Assets at

amortisation

Assets at
fair value
Assets at through the
fair value other

through  comprehensive

cost profit or loss income Total
BATEFA
REBHEE ROTLETA Htt2E
SRz EE BRvEE WEzEE @zt
HKSM HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEET BEER BEET BEET
31 December 2019 “E-hE+=A=+-H
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet ~ GABERERCEE
Trade, bills and other receivables 25 FER
excluding non-financial assets H o MR E
TEEFeREE 1,081.0 - - 1,081.0
Fixed return investment BT EHREE 88.4 - - 88.4
Amount due from related parties FEM B R 5 50R 41.9 - - 479
Derivative financial instruments fTEemIA - 25.0 - 25.0
Pledged bank deposits BHEFRTER 191.7 - - 191.7
Cash and cash equivalents RekRAeSEER 784.8 - - 784.8
Financial assets at fair value through BRTEABRZ
profit or loss SREE - 1.9 - 1.9
Financial assets at fair value through other XA FEF A
comprehensive income B 2ENE L
EREE - - 98.7 98.7
Other non-current assets, excluding HiEme&eE
non-financial assets TEEEEREE 5.5 - - 55
Total st 2,199.3 26.9 98.7 2,324.9
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RSB HMRMIEE

it

36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36 KHEMNED 2RI E (&)
(continued)

m|

Assets at

fair value

Assets at through the

Assets at fair value other

amortisation through comprehensive
cost profit or loss income Total

RAFIEHA

RBHRAR  BATEEA Hit2HE
SRz EE  BucBE UaEE @t
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M

BEETL BEETL BEBTL BEETL

31 December 2018 “2-Nf¥t=A=+-H
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet ~ GABERERCEE
Trade, bills and other receivables excluding 25 Zi5 & E it fE k8 -

non-financial assets TREEEREE 1,484.1 - - 1,484.1
Fixed return investment B B3R & 2113 - - 2113
Amount due from related parties JE U BB B 75 ROR 68.2 - - 68.2
Derivative financial instruments fTEemIA - 36.1 - 36.1
Pledged bank deposits BHEBRTER 3136 - - 3136
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEFEER 697.1 - - 697.1
Financial assets at fair value through profit ~ BAFEFAER 2 EREE

or loss - 0.8 - 0.8
Financial assets at fair value through other ~ ZAFEFAEMEE

comprehensive income famzeMAE - - 111.0 111.0
Other non-current assets, excluding non-  EHiZEREEE -

financial assets TEEFEREE 1.9 - - 1.9

Total wat 2,776.2 36.9 111.0 2,924.1
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fme M B R RMEE

36 L& ZemIE (B)

36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)

Other Liabilities
financial at fair value
liabilities at through
amortised profit or
cost loss Total
R E
DRz EHM RAFERA
cRAE BREZARE #at
HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEBT BEBT BEAET
31 December 2019 —E-hEF
+=HA=+—H
Liabilities as per consolidated #ABEABRZAE
balance sheet
Borrowings (Note) Bk (FEEE) 2,795.4 - 2,795.4
Lease liabilities (Note) HEARE (M) 761.1 - 761.1
Derivative financial instruments $74 ¢ @ T A - 30.2 30.2
Trade, bills and other payables, &%  Z&E N
excluding non-financial H fth & - FRIA -
liabilities TEfEFECRAR 828.3 - 828.3
Amounts due to related parties &1~ B 5 75 Z 8 37.5 - 37.5
Total s 4,422.3 30.2 4,452.5
31 December 2018 —E-N\F
+—A=+—H”
Liabilities as per consolidated #EEEBERZAR
balance sheet
Borrowings (Note) f& R (PR 5E) 3,787.6 - 3,787.6
Derivative financial instruments #7444 a T A - 20.5 20.5
Trade, bills and other payables &5 ZiE K
excluding non-financial H th J& 1~ 7R IE -
liabilities NRECE =R 1,204.8 182.9 1,387.7
Amounts due to related parties & {< B3 E /5 5118 66.3 - 66.3
Total S 5,058.7 203.4 5,262.1
Note: See Note 2.2.1(a) for details on the impact from changes in accounting Mixx: Bt EEH s S EHBERWE

policies.
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RS BRRMEE
37 PLEDGES OF ASSETS 37 BEEKM
At the end of the reporting year, the Group has pledged the RMEFER ASEEEMUTE
following assets to secure certain borrowings and general E UNERETAKEZEFTERE—
banking facilities granted to the Group: BIRITEE:
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEAR BEBT
Property, plant and equipment Y BE R RE 1,905.0 1,838.3
Leasehold land and land use rights (Note) & = 7 & + 3 {5 F 4
(=) - 316.4
Right-of-use assets (Note) FREEE (M) 288.2 =
Investment properties "EME 9.1 -
Inventories "rE 711.7 809.7
Trade receivables 2 5 fEWRIA 701.7 1,030.3
Pledged bank deposits B RITIFEHK 191.7 313.6
3,807.4 4,308.3
Note: See Note 2.1.2(a) for details on the impact from changes in accounting feE: FEASHTRREH2HEFBERWE
policies. 2.1.2(a) °
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R BRI EE
38 COMMITMENTS 38 AdE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAREIE
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, significant capital RZZE-—NFRZZT-—N\F+=
expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred is as A=+—H BiHEBREEXZ
follows: BEAEARITHT:
2019 2018
—E-h#EF —ZE—N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEAR AEBT
Capital expenditure contracted for ~ B I QEARREA B HKIRESR
but not provided in the BENERMAY
consolidated financial statements
in respect of:
— acquisition of property, plant and ~ —UWEE¥%E B KR E
equipment 118.8 95.9
— additions in construction in —AREERIRE
progress 2.2 16.6
— investment in joint ventures —REGEDE 7.9 4.1
128.9 116.6
Authorised but not contracted for: B IR R ARETA :
— additions in construction —ABEERIR
in progress 2.0 0.8
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RGBS KM EE
38 COMMITMENTS (continued) 38 EIE ()

(b) Operating lease commitments — as lessee (b) REHERE-EREBEA
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non- RIRT AT S E 2 R R &
cancellable operating leases are as follows: EEERNFEENAT

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-)N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEABR BEAT
Note (i)
B E)
No later than 1 year TEBR—F - 52.1
Later than 1 year and no later BR—FETERASF
than 5 years - 79.1
Later than 5 years ERAE - 50.2
- 181.4
Note: See Note 2.1.2(a) for details on the impact from changes in MizE: AESTERREP2TEFBRM
accounting policies. 7$2.1.2(a) ©

(c) Operating lease commitments - as lessor (0 REVFHAE—(FERHAA
The future aggregate minimum lease payments receivable RIRT AT REE S = E 2 R R &
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: REERRETEWT

2019 2018

—E-AF —ET-)N\F

HK$M HK$M

BEET AEBT

No later than 1 year TRR—F 27.9 11.9
Later than 1 year and no later BR—FETERASF

than 5 years 414 41.0

Later than 5 years ERAE 32.9 316

102.2 84.5
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39 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 39

The Group is controlled by USUMHK which owns 62.85% of
the Company’s shares. The remaining 37.15% of the shares are
widely held. The ultimate holding company of the Group is Loncin
Group Co., Ltd (incorporated in the PRC). The ultimate controlling
party of the Group is Mr. Tu.

(a) Transactions

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with its related parties during the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018.

All of the transactions were carried out in the normal
course of the Group's business and on terms as agreed
between the transacting parties. They are summarised as
follows:

fno M FE R RMIEE

FaEE 7 R 5
REBEHAEBBE AR EsHEE
KR A162.85% AR 17 © B #237.15% % 10
HEZHEARE ASBZEZERA
AREESEER AR (R BEEMK
ST) o ARG B B ARAE ST RIR A&

(@ X3
BrERER A B ISR R E AL 30 3
BN AEEREBEE_ZT—NF
rF—E—NF+-_A=+—HIt
FECHAEBRE T ETUATR
%o

B SHERAEE R EELB
TR 1252 5 B8 77 T 160 7E O R R
17 FEIERaan T -

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HKS$M HK$M
BHEBTT BEBTT
Sales of goods to MU TEHEEER
— Joint ventures —EEHE 99.6 97.7
— Related parties — @A 173.3 608.1
Purchases of goods from BATNEAHEE®
— An associate /NG (41.3) =
— Joint ventures —EhHE (259.8) (279.3)
— Related parties — AR (108.5) (150.2)
Interest income from KBTS BHEWA
— Joint ventures —SEH 1.0 1.1
— Related parties — A B 0.5 2.7
Interest expense to MA TR & A ZREFE R
— Related parties — AR (0.6) (0.6)
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RSB HMRMIEE

39 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (continued) 39
(@) Transactions (continued)

B HsE 5 R

5 (&)

(@ x5 (&)

2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEAT
Sales of property, plant and FA RS FHEME -
equipment to = & & A
— A related party ——HEEE 1.1 =
Other income from (Note (i)) KBTS ABE MU A
(P REG) )
— Joint ventures —EEDHE 2.6 1.2
— Related parties — A 5.2 2.5
Administrative expenses to (Note (i) [A1JA N &5 HH
7B = (BEaEGi))
— Joint ventures —AEDHE (0.7) (0.1)
— Related parties — AR (1.0) (2.2)
Notes: B 5
(i) Other income mainly comprised management fee income, rental (i) HWAFTZEEEREERA M

income, service income and commission income.

(ii) Administrative expenses mainly comprised management fee, lease
expense and service fee.
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fme M B R RMEE

39 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (continued) 39 BEARS (8)

(b) Key management compensation (b)

(0

Key management includes chairman of the Company, all
directors, chief executive officer, chief financial officer,
chief operation officer and chief investment officer. The
compensations paid or payable to key management for
employee services are shown below:

TEEEEFMH
IREREREARAEE 2
BEE THER BEVKE
BELZEENEBRERER iR
HESRBMENRENEIRE
BEHFBNGIRIT :

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\EF
HKS$M HK$M
BEBT BEBIT
Wages and salaries, including IB8RF® BEEEKAR
restructuring costs and other HAth 4% (- (12 7
termination benefits 27.1 29.6
Pension costs — defined contribution 3R K 4 Bk 28 — R F K ET 2
plans 0.1 0.1
Other employee benefits H g 518 A 0.7 1.6
Total st 27.9 31.3
Year-end balances © FRER
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HKS$M HK$M
BHEET BEBIT
Receivables from: FEUA T & 75 5808
— Joint ventures (Note (i) — & & (M) 33.9 38.3
— Related parties (Note (i) — @55 (MI=EQ)) 14.0 29.9
47.9 68.2
Payables to: FET LA %5 708
— Joint ventures (Note (ii)) —& & (KEEi)) (15.5) (29.6)
— Related parties (Note (ii) —BABsE 7T (B EEGI)) (22.0) (36.7)
(37.5) (66.3)

EaRREBERAH

—Z2-nEg®R 253



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HMRMIEE

39 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (continued) 39 B@BAERS (&)
(c) Year-end balances (continued) (0 FREH(E)
Notes: Bt 5 -
(i) The receivables from joint ventures and related parties include trade (i) A ECERBE T RIERESE
receivables and other receivables. Trade receivables are repayable DENGRIA R BN HIE-E 5
within 60 days, and other receivables are repayable on demand. Both FEU R IB A 60 A B HE - i H A
of them are unsecured and non-interest bearing. FENGRIE R IR B SR (E & - Z MR
REH REERRTE -
(ii) The payables to joint ventures and related parties include trade (i) EREECERB T RBRESE
payables and other payables. Trade payables are repayable within 60 FRAREREMENRIE-E S
days, and other payable are repayable on demand. Both of them are FEAT FRIBARG0R AEE - i H b
unsecured and non-interest bearing. FERRIERI AR ERKEE - ZM A
REH AEERRTL -
40 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 40 ESEH Mg
(a) Directors’ emoluments () E=HEE
The remuneration of the directors for the years ended 31 HE_Z-NFRZZ-N\EF
December 2019 and 2018 is set out below: TZA=+T—HILEFEEZESH
B ZI 0 T
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and  Performance scheme Other
Fees  allowances bonus  contributions benefits Total
BRER
Year ended 31 December 2019 e HeREE REEA S 2 ER @t
BECE-NETZA=t-HLEEE HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEETR ABER BEETR BEETR AEETR BEETR
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Tu REE - 26 35 - - 6.1
Mr. Qin Yongming (“Mr. Qin) RRAEE ([REE])
(Note (i) (HI3EG)) - 52 40 - 07 9.9
Mr. Wong Wun Lam (“Mr. Wong") BAREE([EEE])
(Note (i) (FEGi) - 3.0 - - - 3.0
Non-executive directors: FHTES!
Dr. Loke Yu EBMEL 03 - - - - 03
Ms. Qian Liping BEERT 03 - - - - 03
Mr. Zhu HongChao (Note (i) R (K= 03 - - - - 03
0.9 10.8 15 - 0.7 19.9
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fme M B R RMEE

40 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 40 EEFEF NER (8)
(continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) () E=ME (&)
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and  Performance scheme Other
Fees allowances bonus  contributions benefits Total

BT
Year ended 31 December 2018 Be  FeREH FAfL HE TS Hit g A b
BE-2-N\E+-A=t-BLEE HK$M HK$M HK§M HK$M HK$M HK§M

BEAT Bt BEBT BERT BEBT BEAT
Executive directors: BiTEE:
Mr. Tu L - 23 36 - - 5.9
Mr. Qin (Note (i) 254 (FrE) - 50 42 - 0.6 98
Mr. Wong (Note (i) R (EEG) - 26 12 - - 38
Non-executive directors: FYTES:
Dr. Loke Yu BEEMEL 03 - - - 03
Ms. Qian Liping BEYLL 03 - - = 03
Mr. Zhu HongChao (Note (iif) Fok s (ki) 02 - - - 02
Mr. Zhu Dajian (Note (iv)) FARLE (M) 0.1 - - - 0.1
0.9 9.0 - 0.6 204

Notes: B
(i) Mr. Qin was also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and his (0] EEEIRARDNTIITHES B

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by
him as Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Qin resigned as the Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 1 March 2020.

Mr. Wong was also the Chief Financial Officer of the Company and
his emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by
him as Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Wong resigned as executive director
and the Chief Financial Officer with effect from 20 December 2019.

Mr. Zhu HongChao was appointed as independent non-executive
director on 18 April 2018 and resigned with effect from 19 February
2020.

Mr. Zhu Dajian retired as independent non-executive director on 12
June 2018.

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors waived any emoluments during both years.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

EaRREBERAH

EXREEZME BRERREET
BT RERB M N2 ME
RALCHETRAR B-_F=
TE=ZA—HBER

REENMARAEIERUBE &
R EXHEE M EREET
B E B PR 4 AR A M sz 45 2 B
L EBRLECHARTESRER
BB B2 NE+=_A=+
BB AR o

IHBEEER=ZZ—NETA
TNBEZERBIFRITES:
YEBE BZZE=_TF_A+h
B4R

FARREER_T-N\FARA+T=
BREBIIFRTES

REEFE REERERTTE
FARERSHFALINMESES
TR 5| A S AN AR SR B B O 22 )
HERRRAE - HEEENRE
FERREMME -

—E-NEFEFER
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IRE M BHRRMTEE

40 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ retirement benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
made contributions to the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme for Mr. Tu, Mr. Qin and Mr. Wong in the
amount of HK$18,000, HK$18,000 and HK$18,000,
respectively (2018: HK$18,000, HK$18,000 and
HK$18,000, respectively).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2018: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities
with such directors

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, there were no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and controlled
entities with such directors.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the financial year
(2018: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

fme M B R RMEE

41 EBEH

In 2018, the Group acquired substantially all assets and RZT—NF AEEP2108ET (8
operations of BNC Recycling Inc (“BNC”), which was principally 1,650& 7% 7T ) YWEEBNC Recycling Inc
engaged in recycling of ferrous and non-ferrous metals in ([BNCJ) (FEREBIRILEHRIEE
northeast area of USA, for US$2.1 million (approximately EREECNEESE) 2BABDEE
HK$16.5 million). PSEIE
As a result of the acquisition, the Group is expected to enhance WK AEBRHGATIEARE
the Group's processing coverage and sales channels especially in EzNMTEREBGERHEERSE LER
the northeast area of USA. EE R Efib [ o
The following table summarises the consideration paid for TREAEBNCEB BN 2 RE R
acquisition of business of BNC, the fair value of assets acquired WHEBHEWEEERMEEZAEBZ
and liabilities assumed on the acquisition date: NFE:
2018
—ZN\F
HK$M
BEBTT
Consideration: RE:
— cash consideration - ReKE 8.1
— consideration payable (Note (i) — ERHRE (BEEG)) 8.4
Total consideration BRE 16.5
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired EWREAHFIEERIREAEZ
and liabilities assumed: WREH:
Property, plant and equipment I E RN e 0.5
Intangible assets B EE 16.0
Total identifiable net assets ARl E ERE 16.5
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IRE M BHRRMTEE

41

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

Cash flows involved in the acquisition of business of BNC is
summarised as follows:

41

EBatt(8)
B RWEBNCER 2 HEmE
S é

At 40

2018
—E—N\EF
HK$M
BEBIT

Cash consideration paid BENEeRE
Add: cash and cash equivalents acquired mn:FrikER e &
ReEEER

Net cash outflows of cash
— investing activities

ReEnt #FE-—RELY

Note:

(i) Cash consideration of US$0.6 million (equivalent to HK$4.7 million) was
settled in 2019 while the remaining cash consideration of US$0.4 million will
be settled in January 2020.

Acquisition-related costs of approximately HK$0.6 million were
charged to administrative expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Since the acquisition, the business operation and financial
reporting of BNC has been fully integrated within the North
American segment. Revenue and profit of BNC since the
acquisition date, and had it been acquired on 1 January 2018,
were insignificant to the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fno M FE R RMIEE

42 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 42 REFMHFRE
Reconciliation from (loss)/profit before income tax to cash BrRETISFLAT (B518) R I B & s
generated from operations: ok
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HKSM HK$M
BEBT AEBTT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHRERERE
(Loss)/Profit before income tax BRETSRLAT (B51R) A (99.5) 469.4
Adjustments for: AT SIHFE
Finance costs (Note 10) BATERCAR (M95510) 236.2 412.7
Finance income (Note 10) B (KizE10) (23.6) (36.6)
Dividend income (Note 6) Az B WA (KtEE6) (4.8) (3.5)
Depreciation and amortisation (Note 8) e R (MI5E8) 4225 381.3
Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative MESBTAZ ATE
financial instruments, net (Note 7) B8 (W) F58
(HI&E7) 2.1 (34.7)
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets BAFEFABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss SRMEEANTE
(Note 7) (M=) 518 (KiaE7) (1.7) 3.2
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BE RREHENUR
plant and equipment and right-of-use ERAEEE 2 W&
assets (Note 7) (FfF=E7) (33.3) (29.6)
Gain on disposal of assets classified as HESHEARELEEEZ
held for sales (Note 7) Wz (MHEE7) - (109.5)
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair ~ HEZRAFEFAEBZEZ
value through profit or loss (Note 7) SREE W (HEE7) - (20.0)
Net reversal of impairment on CREERBERRFE
financial assets (39.4) (36.4)
(Reversal of provision)/Provision for FE (BERE)
inventories, net (Note 8) BEEF R (M5Es) (1.9) 18.5
Provision for impairment of property, L ERN V&L
plant, and equipment (Note 7) WEEE (ME7) 0.9 1.2
Compensation income (Note 7) mEWA (KEE7) - (45.3)
Loss on disposal and deregistration of HE RTHF AR ZEE
subsidiaries (Note 7) (FIE7) 13.7 =
Share of loss of an associate FE (R B = A Bl B 18 0.3 0.7
Share of profit of joint ventures BIEE & 3EuF (47.6) (126.2)
Non-cash post-employment FRSEEBLERRBE R Z
benefit expenses =l (0.6) (0.6)
Net foreign exchange losses HMNE B3 185 58 (20.9) 2.4
402.4 847.0
Changes in working capital EEECEE
Decrease in inventories FERD 580.3 121.2
Decrease/(Increase) in trade, bills and 25 ZEREMER
other receivables IR A (380) 508.5 (41.6)
Change in derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 & @t T A& &) 23.8
Decrease in trade, bills and H5 ZHREHAM
other payables JE S FRIE R (711.4) (300.5)
803.6 627.6
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IRE B MRMIEE
42 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 42 REMFIRE (&)
(continued)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from RireHReRnER HEWE BER
disposal of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets FEARFERAEEE CFISIEELE:
comprise:
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE—N\F
HKSM HK$M
BEART AEBT
Net book amount of property, plant and YIZE - B R 2
equipment (Note 14) BRTEFE (MIsE14) 220.1 735
Net book amount of right-of-use assets EAEEE 2 REFE
(Note 16) (KzE16) 14.5 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE BERFEEAR
plant and equipment and right-of-use i AREE E 2 W
assets 33.3 29.6
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEVE BERZEUR
plant and equipment and right-of-use fFRAEEE ZFMERE
assets 267.9 103.1
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CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(continued)

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the

in net debt for each of the years presented.

movements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fme M B R RMEE

42 REMSHRE

(%&)

REEFEFRLTRA2IN S FE

B HRER -

Liabilities from financing activities

MEEHELNAR
Lease
liabilities Lease
(2018: liabilities
Finance lease (2018: Bank Bank Other Other Note
liabilities) due  Finance lease  borrowings Borrowing  borrowings  borrowings  payable due
within liabilities) due due within due after due within due after within
1year after 1year 1 year 1 year 1 year 1 year 1 year Total
R-FrE R-F&E
ANERAR MNERAR
(ZB-NEF: (ZB-N\F:
REHE BEEE R-FRIH R-F4IHE R-FA3E R-F4£385 R-FriH
af) aff) WHERTER  WETEX  HHOER NEEER  NESRRE #5t
Net debt as at R-Z—t%F
31 December 2017 +=A=+-8%
BHFE 835 1421 1,083.0 572.0 3791 4189 1,476.6 4,155.2
Proceeds/additions HRHE/RE 64.0 257.0 980.1 35.0 - 1,691.5 - 30276
Repayments 58 (91.1) (1.5) (1,172.3) (92.6) (115.5) (431.6) (1,568.0) (3,472.6)
Other non-cash movement HinJpR a2 85.2 (85.2) 1204 (114.0) (13.1) 59.3 914 144.0
Currency translation differences EH =S (5.1) (10.1) (39.7) (11.7) - = = (66.6)
Net debt as at R-B-N\F
31 December 2018 +=A=+-8HK
EHEE 136.5 3023 971.5 388.7 250.5 1,738.1 - 3,787.6
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 ROBEBHBREENL16% 2
(Note 2.1.2(a)) 2 (M:2.1.2@) 28.7 105.1 = = = = = 133.8
Restated opening balance as at RZB-NE-A—-AZ
1 January 2019 LEYFNES 165.2 407.4 971.5 388.7 250.5 1,738.1 = 39214
Proceeds/additions 358/ RE 145.7 246.8 697.0 343 53.1 - - 1,176.9
Repayments BEFE (147.1) (51.6) (1,186.0) (101.0) = = - (1,485.7)
Other non-cash movement Hit kB2 30.2 (29.6) 84.1 (85.7) 1,739.8 (1,738.1) - 0.7
Currency translation differences [EHZER 2.3) (3.6) (19.3) (9.9) (21.7) - - (56.8)
Net debt as at R-B-NF
31 December 2019 tZA=t+-AW
EHEE 191.7 569.4 5473 226.4 2,021.7 = = 3,556.5

EeRREBERA
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IRE B MRMIEE
43 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 43 BEBBERNHFEEE
Balance sheet of the Company KRR 2EEEER
2019 2018
—E-h#F —ET-N\F
Note HK$M HK$M
Bt 5 BEBT BEBTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Investment in subsidiaries, unlisted R F AR 2% & FE LT 3,500.4 3,500.4
Investment in a joint venture, ReEBREZIRE LM
unlisted 4.1 -
Right-of-use assets EREEE 29.5 =
Other deposit Hibige 2.7 -
Loan receivables from a subsidiary [f&U T2 BRI E K 89.1 90.1
3,625.8 3,590.5
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H h & GRIE 95.0 215.0
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEWF A A FIA 2,335.1 2,434.2
Amount due from a related party & 4% B3 B 5 ZIE 1.3 0.6
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFHBHER 36.1 1.8
2,467.5 2,651.6
Total assets EE®RE 6,093.3 6,242.1
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERREE
Equity attributable to D E R REGREE
shareholders of the company
Share capital & 29 16.1 16.1
Reserves & 3,785.0 3,998.5
Total equity BRES 3,801.1 4,014.6
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RO RMTEE
43 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 43 BEBEBEXREREEZSZ (B)
(continued)
Balance sheet of the Company (continued) KPR zEEE/ER (H)
2019 2018
—E-hF —ET—)\F
Note HK$M HK$M
P BEAT AEBTT
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
Other borrowings H M &5 - 1,738.1
Lease liabilities HEAE 18.1 =
Other payables H h fE SRR 3.0 =
21.1 1,738.1
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables FERT & A I E b JE < 3R IE 17.2 18.3
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERFRARIFIA 523.5 4711
Lease liabilities HEAR 8.6 =
Other borrowings H M &5 1,721.8 =
2,271.1 489.4
Total liabilities REE 2,292.2 2,227.5
Total equity and liabilities HEZRERE 6,093.3 6,242.1
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of ARARZEEABREOESEEN_Z
Directors on 12 May 2020 and was signed on its behalf: ZEFRATAAETHATESR
REE:
Mr. Tu Jianhua Mr. Qin Yongming
REFERE FXKBPEE
Director Director
EE EF
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RSB HMRMIEE

43 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 43 BEAERXRLFEEEZS (&)
(continued)
Reserves movement of the Company KRR ZRERE
Capital
Share  redemption Capital Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
BARE [
W15 (8 & BARGEE Rt E#E st
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEBTT BEBT BEBT BEBT BEBT
(Note (i)
(PR (i) )
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F
—H—H 5911.9 0.3 216.2 (1,616.8) 4,511.6
Loss for the year FRNEE = - = (513.1) (513.1)
Total comprehensive loss FRNEEEBERE
for the year - - - (513.1) (513.1)
At 31 December 2018 RZZB-N\F+-H
=+—H 5911.9 0.3 216.2 (2,129.9) 3,998.5
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fme M B R RMEE

43 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 43 EEBEBEXREHEHEZS (B)
(continued)
Reserves movement of the Company (continued) AARZREERS (&)
Capital
Share redemption Capital Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
EXER
1R E 51 EXRRE RtER Bt
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M

BEER BEER

HEBR HEER HEBR
(Note (i)

(FEEEG))

At 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF

—A—H 5911.9 0.3 216.2 (2,129.9) 3,998.5
Loss for the year FREE - - - (213.5) (213.5)
Total comprehensive loss FREABRELE

for the year - - - (213.5) (213.5)

At 31 December 2019 RZZ—NF

+-A=+—H 5,911.9 0.3 216.2 (2,343.4) 3,785.0
Note: P 3 :
(i) Capital reserve represents the sum of (a) the difference between the nominal (i) BEARREEEQARAR-_ZENFEEE

value of the aggregate share capital and share premium of the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company upon a group reorganisation in 2008 and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange and (b) a
capitalisation of shareholders’ loans in 2010.

ARBEEFRARRA LB BEAE
E{EEA R R R ;AP ETRN 2 mE
MEBERO =T -TFEERMMEBRER-
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COMPANY

44  PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HMRMIEE

44 RRRZFRAFHIS

(@) General information of principal subsidiaries

The table below shows the subsidiaries as at 31 December
2019, which in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affect the revenue, net assets or business aspects of the

Group. To give details of all subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive

(a)

FEFRAN-—REH
TRINTEZRRN_F—NF
TZR=+—BYHAREEKA
FEESAXRBAIEFEZTA
A-BERR REMBETFARZ
HEKeTREBANITR

length.
Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Attributable equity
Place of incorporation/ registered interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary operation establishment capital held by the Group Principal activities
A ERTRAERA AEEAEEERAERER
FRARER TEnE /BB /RRBRA RE TEER
2019 2018
ZE-NE ZT)N\%
Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Purchasing agent of the
BEXM (FE)ERAR &b i 1% Group and wholesales
of metal scrap without
processing
REBFERERBEAE
MIZBEERE
Chiho Eco Protection Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
BAGERRARAR B B 10,0008 7 metal scrap and WEEE
MIRHEBESBRER
BARETR
Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Metals Company ~ The PRC The PRC 1S$108,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Limited** el # 108,000,000% T metal scrap
aMEER e BERAR! MIRHEREER
Chiho Environmental (Suyang) Resources  The PRC The PRC RMBS5,000,000 100% - Processing and sales of
Recycling Company Limited*+ H H AR 5,000,000 metal scrap
ERRRAEER (N5) BRAR MIRHEREERE
Chiho-Tiande (YanTai) Resources The PRC The PRC US$40,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Recycling Company Limited** HE FE 40,000,000% T metal scrap
Eart(ER)BEERARAR MIRHEREER
Yantai Liheng Environmental Protection ~ The PRC The PRC RMB55,150,000 60% 60%  Processing and sales of
Technology Company Limited** H H AR 55,150,0007C lubricating oil
BEaTERRRBEERA R MIRHEERRR
Dalian New Green Recycle & Resources ~ The PRC The PRC JPY 8,566,011,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Corporation** Ll HE 8,566,011,0008 metal scrap
AEHEBEERMIBRAR" MIRHEREER

For identification purpose only
Limited liability company
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fme M B R RMEE

NS NS S AE (43
44 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 44 KRTBZFRAIEFE (B)
COMPANY (continued)
(a) General information of principal subsidiaries (a) EEFARN—RER (F)
(continued)
Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Attributable equity
Place of incorporation/ registered interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary operation establishment capital held by the Group Principal activities
A BRIRBERE AEEAEEERAERER
FRRER BEny /RIS Vaitili % R IEXH
2019 2018
—E-hE  ZZN\E
Heng Hup Chiho Recycling Malaysia Malaysia RM4,000,000 51% - Processing of metal scrap
(Malaysia) SDN. BND. ERAES SRAR 4,000 0005 REELE MIBEEER
Hidaka-Chiho Metal Recycling (Thailand) ~ Thailand Thailand Baht78,750,000 45.7% - Processing and sales of
Company Limited® ZE ZE 78,750,000% 8k metal scrap
MIRHEBELE
Delco Europe B.V. The Netherlands The Netherlands EUR18,151 100% 100%  Purchasing agent of the
i HE 18,151BUT Group
AEEZRBRE
Fegert Recycling GmbH Germany Germany EUR84,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
28 = 84,0008 7T metal scrap
MIRHEREER
Scholz Industrieservice GmbH Germany Germany EUR50,000 100% 100%  Providing industrial and
&E &E 50,0008! 70 logistic services
RETERDRR
Scholz Recycling GmbH Germany Germany EUR100,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
e ZE 100,000,0008 7T metal scrap
NIRHERLSE
SIV Immobilien Verwaltungs GmbH Germany Germany EUR25,000 100% 100%  Purchase and administration
28 &8 25,0008 70 of real estate
BEREERIE
Scholz Management Service GmbH Germany Germany EUR25,000 100% 100%  Providing services to group
&E &E 25,0008% 7T companies
RERKTFEERA
# The Group controls the board of directors = rEEZHESEE
BERAREEERAR =ZE-IFFR
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RSB HMRMIEE

== NS (43
44 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 44 RRBIZFRAFE (&)
COMPANY (continued)
(a) General information of principal subsidiaries () EEFRARN—REHR (F)
(continued)
Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Attributable equity
Place of incorporation/ registered interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary operation establishment capital held by the Group Principal activities
A BRIRBERE AEEfEEERAERER
FRRER BEny /RIS Vaiiil e B IEXH
2019 2018
—E-hE  ZEN\E
SRW metalfloat GmbH Germany Germany EUR1,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
&E | 1,000,0008% 70 metal scrap
MIRHEBESE
Liberty Iron & Metal, Inc. USA USA US$3,100 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
*H *E 3,100% T metal scrap
MIRHEBELE
Uniscrap A/S Denmark Denmark DKK20,003,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
E BE 20,003,000 %52 58 metal scrap
MIRHEREER
Uniscrap Sverige AB Sweden Sweden SEK100,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
i i 100,0005% #5256 metal scrap
MIRHEBESE
Scholz Polska Sp. z.0.0. Poland Poland PLN88,501,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
it il ] 88,501,000 &2 metal scrap
MIRHERLSE
Scholz Austria Holding Gmbh Republic of Austria Republic of Austria EUR35,000 100% 100%  Holding company
B FIHAE Bup I £AE 35,0008X 7 BRAR
Kovosrot Group CZ s.r.0. Czech Republic Czech Republic (CZK499,834,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
R ANE R AAE 499,834,004 52 52 3 metal scrap
MIRHEREER
Sberne suroviny, a.s. Czech Republic Czech Republic CZK61,217,000 79.6% 79.6%  Processing and sales of
R ANE R £NE 61,217,005 7 52 5 metal scrap
MIRHEBESE
DINOS d.d. Republic of Slovenia Republic of Slovenia  EUR2,279,700 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
g X B H£AE Mg X B H£AE 2,279,70080 ¢ metal scrap
NIRHERLSE
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fno M FE R RMIEE

44 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

(b) Significant restrictions

(c)

Cash and short-term deposits held in the PRC are subject
to local exchange control regulations. These regulations
provide for restrictions on exporting capital from the PRC,
other than through normal dividend.

The carrying amount of the assets included within the
consolidated balance sheet to which these restrictions apply
is HK$396.7 million (2018: HK$544.5 million).

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interest

The non-controlling interests of all non-wholly owned
subsidiaries are individually not material to the Group.

45 CONTINGENCIES

(a)

The Company is one of the defendants to a legal claim
by Delco regarding an alleged non-payment of a portion
of the loans advanced by Delco Asia to subsidiaries of the
Company, amounting to approximately HK$57.8 million
together with interest and costs. Delco alleged that it
acquired the assets and liabilities of Delco Asia in 2011.
Delco Asia was dissolved by deregistration in 2012. Each
of Mr. Fang and HWH undertook to the Company to
indemnify and hold the Company harmless on demand
against all losses arising out of, inter alia, this claim in
accordance with the terms of a letter of indemnity signed
by Mr. Fang and HWH in favour of the Company on 17
December 2015 (the “Indemnity”).

The court case is still in progress. The directors of the
Company, after taking legal advice from its legal advisers
and in review of the Indemnity and the Escrow Account,
are of the opinion that it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle this claim. Accordingly, no provision of this claim has
been made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONTINGENCIES (continued)

(b)  The Company and Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited (“CTHK"), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, are two of the
defendants to another legal claim by Delco regarding an
alleged breach of a letter of undertaking in relation to a
convertible bond issued by the Company and subscribed for
by Delco. Delco further claimed against CTHK for a sum of
US$1.0 million, allegedly advanced by Delco Asia to CTHK.
Delco further claimed interests, costs and further or other
relief of approximately HK$6.3 million.

The court case is still in progress. The directors of the
Company, after taking legal advice from its legal advisers,
are of the opinion that it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle this claim. Accordingly, no provision of this claim has
been made.

() As at 31 December 2019, the Group does not have any
contingent liabilities (2018: HK$27.4 million) which consist
of non-financial guarantee in favour of investee entities.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

After the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures were firstly enforced in
China, and later in Europe and the US as some measures in China
began to uplift. The Group is closely monitoring the development
of the COVID-19 outbreak and its disruption to business and
economic activities.

As at the date of this report, the management of the Group
has assessed the overall impact of the situation on the Group's
operations and financial position and concluded that there are
no material effects on the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019. As at the date of this
report, management is unable to reliably estimate the financial
impact of COVID-19 on the Group’s financial results for the year
ending 31 December 2020 as the pandemic has yet to run its full
course hence the current situation is still fluid. The Directors shall
continuously assess the impact of COVID-19 on its operations as
well as the financial position for the year ending 31 December
2020.
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5-Year Financial Summary

hFUBRE

Summary of selected items of consolidated statement of HFEEZRBETHAYE
profit and loss

For the year ended 31 December

HET-A=T-HLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-hE -\ Tt —T—RF —T-1F
HKS$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

BEER HBEAT AEAT HEBT HESATL

Revenue Wiz 15,363.4 20,912.8 18,491.0 3,211.4 3,136.6
(Loss)/Profit before income tax BATERAT (EB), /R (99.5) 469.4 546.2 (4436)  (1,1437)
Income tax (expense)/credit FiEH (%) /#% (34.3) (70.4) (110.6) 0.4 (0.3)

(Loss)/Profit attributable to: T &R (B1B),/ 57
Shareholders of the Company ARARR (128.7) 401.2 426.8 (439.9) (1,138.8)
Non-controlling interests FmRES (5.1) 2.2 8.8 (3.3 (5.2)
(133.8) 399.0 435.6 (443.2) (1,144.0)

Summary of selected items of consolidated balance sheet S&EEABERETHREME

As at 31 December

R+-—A=+—8H

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-hE T\ —ZT—+t& —T-RF —T-1F
HKS$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEAT HBHEST BEST BEARL

Asset BE
Current assets MEEE 4,039.4 5,329.5 6,022.2 6,602.3 4,920.3
Non-current assets ERBEE 6,150.6 6,058.0 6,071.5 5,183.4 1,117.6
Total assets BEHLE 10,190.0 11,387.5 12,093.7 11,785.7 6,037.9

Liabilities =8
Current liabilities M & E 3,996.5 3,298.0 5,365.2 5,032.9 1,481.1
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 1,262.5 2,943.6 1,681.4 2,668.4 143.0
Total liabilities BEBE 5,259.0 6,241.6 7,046.6 7,701.3 1,624.1
4,931.0 5,145.9 5,047.1 4,084.4 4,413.8

Equity attributable to: TN bR

Shareholders of the Company ARARR 4,941.3 51753 5,073.1 4,117.2 4,487.9
Non-controlling interests R (10.3) (29.4) (26.0) (32.8) (74.1)

4,931.0 5,145.9 5,047.1 4,084.4 44138
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Corporate Information

RIAEN

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)

Mr. Tu Jianhua

Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed with effect from 1 March 2020)

Mr. Wong Wun Lam (Chief Financial Officer)
(resigned with effect from 20 December 2019)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Loke Yu
Ms. Qian Liping
Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew
(appointed with effect from 19 February 2020)
Mr. Zhu Hongchao
(resigned with effect from 19 February 2020)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)

Mr. Tu Jianhua

Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed with effect from 1 March 2020)

Mr. Wong Wun Lam (Chief Financial Officer)
(resigned with effect from 20 December 2019)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dr. Loke Yu (Chairman)
Ms. Qian Liping
Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew
(appointed with effect from 19 February 2020)
Mr. Zhu Hongchao
(resigned with effect from 19 February 2020)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)
Dr. Loke Yu
Ms. Qian Liping
Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew
(appointed with effect from 19 February 2020)
Mr. Zhu Hongchao
(resigned with effect from 19 February 2020)
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew (Chairman)
(appointed with effect from 19 February 2020)
Dr. Loke Yu
Ms. Qian Liping
Mr. Zhu Hongchao
(resigned with effect from 19 February 2020)

STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)
Mr. Tu Jianhua
Mr. Goh Kian Guan
Mr. Wong Wun Lam
(resigned with effect from 20 December 2019)
Mr. William Thomas Bird
(resigned with effect from 24 October 2019)

PRICING COMMITTEE

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)
Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan

(appointed with effect from 1 March 2020)
Mr. Udo Langhans
Mr. Wong Wun Lam

(resigned with effect from 20 December 2019)
Mr. William Thomas Bird

(resigned with effect from 24 October 2019)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Tu Jianhua
Ms. Yiu Yi Ting

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Wong Wun Lam
(resigned with effect from 20 December 2019)
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Yiu Yi Ting

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

LEGAL ADVISORS

Conyers Dill & Pearman (Cayman Islands)
DLA Piper (Hong Kong)

Deacons (Hong Kong)

Dechert (Hong Kong)

LC Lawyers LLP (Hong Kong)

Zhejiang Xingce Law Firm (China)
Latham & Watkins LLP (Germany)

CMS Hasche Sigle (Germany)

Menold Bezler (Germany)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China

Agricultural Bank of China

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank

KeyBank National Association

REGISTERED OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
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REGISTERED OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

48 Wang Lok Street
Yuen Long Industrial Estate
Hong Kong

GROUP HEADQUARTERS

23/F., Infinitus Plaza
199 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

No. 8, Baijin Road

Taizhou Renewable Metal Resources Industry Base
Lugiao, Taizhou

Zhejiang

The PRC

HEADQUARTERS IN EUROPE

Berndt-Ulrich-Scholz-Str. 1
73457 Essingen
Germany

HEADQUARTERS IN NORTH AND CENTRAL
AMERICA

2144 W. McDowell Road
Phoenix, AZ 85004
USA 85009

* For business addresses of other principal operational bases of the Group, please refer
to the Company’s website
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

WEBSITE

www.chihogroup.com

STOCK CODE
Hong Kong Stock Exchange 976
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CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED
EeRAREEERAH

48 Wang Lok Street,
Yuen Long Industrial Estate, Hong Kong

FHE A T UPRGH485%

Tel E55%: (852) 2587 7700 / (852) 2589 3500

Fax {§E: (852) 2587 7799
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